Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Democratic Services

Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath, BA1 1JG

Telephone: (01225) 477000 main switchboard Date: 25" April 2016

Direct Lines - Tel: 01225 394452 Fax: 01225 394439 E-mail:  Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk
Web-site - www.bathnes.gov.uk

To: All Members of the Cabinet

Councillor Tim Warren Leader of the Council and Conservative Group Leader

Councillor Liz Richardson Cabinet Member for Homes and Planning

Councillor Patrick Anketell- Cabinet Member for Economic Development, Conservative

Jones Deputy Group Leader Bath

Councillor Charles Gerrish Cabinet Member for Finance and Efficiency, Conservative
Deputy Group Leader North East Somerset

Councillor Vic Pritchard Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Health

Councillor Anthony Clarke Cabinet Member for Transport

Councillor Martin Veal Cabinet Member for Community Services

Councillor Michael Evans Cabinet Member for Children's Services

Chief Executive and other appropriate officers
Press and Public

Dear Member
Cabinet: Wednesday, 4th May, 2016

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Cabinet, to be held on Wednesday, 4th May, 2016
at 4.00 pm in the Community Space, Keynsham - Market Walk, Keynsham.

The agenda is set out overleaf.

Yours sincerely

Jack Latkovic
for Chief Executive

The decisions taken at this meeting of the Cabinet are subject to the Council's call-in procedures. Within 5 clear working days
of publication of decisions, at least 10 Councillors may signify in writing to the Chief Executive their wish for a decision to be
called-in for review. If a decision is not called-in, it will be implemented after the expiry of the 5 clear working day period.

If you need to access this agenda or any of the supporting reports in an alternative
accessible format please contact Democratic Services or the relevant report author
whose details are listed at the end of each report.

This Agenda and all accompanying reports are printed on recycled paper




NOTES:

Inspection of Papers: Any person wishing to inspect minutes, reports, or a list of the
background papers relating to any item on this Agenda should contact Jack Latkovic who
is available by telephoning Bath 01225 394452 or by calling at the Guildhall Bath (during
normal office hours).

Public Speaking at Meetings: The Council has a scheme to encourage the public to
make their views known at meetings. They may make a statement relevant to what the
meeting has power to do. They may also present a petition or a deputation on behalf of a
group. Advance notice is required not less than two full working days before the meeting
(this means that for meetings held on Wednesdays, notice must normally be received in
Democratic Services by 4.30pm the previous Friday but Bank Holidays will cause this to be
brought forward).

The public may also ask a question to which a written answer will be given. Questions
must be submitted in writing to Democratic Services at least two full working days in
advance of the meeting (this means that for meetings held on Wednesdays, notice must
normally be received in Democratic Services by 4.30pm the previous Friday but Bank
Holidays will cause this to be brought forward). If an answer cannot be prepared in time for
the meeting it will be sent out within five days afterwards. Further details of the scheme
can be obtained by contacting Jack Latkovic as above.

Details of Decisions taken at this meeting can be found in the minutes which will be
published as soon as possible after the meeting, and also circulated with the agenda for
the next meeting. In the meantime details can be obtained by contacting Jack Latkovic as
above.

Appendices to reports are available for inspection as follows:-

Public Access points - Reception: Civic Centre - Keynsham, Guildhall - Bath, The Hollies
- Midsomer Norton. Bath Central and Midsomer Norton public libraries.

For Councillors and Officers papers may be inspected via Political Group Research
Assistants and Group Rooms/Members' Rooms.

Recording at Meetings:-

The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now allows filming and
recording by anyone attending a meeting. This is not within the Council’s control.

Some of our meetings are webcast. At the start of the meeting, the Chair will confirm if all
or part of the meeting is to be filmed. If you would prefer not to be filmed for the webcast,
please make yourself known to the camera operators.

To comply with the Data Protection Act 1998, we require the consent of parents or
guardians before filming children or young people. For more information, please speak to
the camera operator

The Council will broadcast the images and sound live via the internet
www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast An archived recording of the proceedings will also be
available for viewing after the meeting. The Council may also use the images/sound
recordings on its social media site or share with other organisations, such as broadcasters.

Attendance Register: Members should sign the Register which will be circulated at the
meeting.


http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast

THE APPENDED SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ARE IDENTIFIED BY AGENDA ITEM
NUMBER.

Emergency Evacuation Procedure

When the continuous alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building by one of the
designated exits and proceed to the named assembly point. The designated exits are
sign-posted.

Arrangements are in place for the safe evacuation of disabled people.

Officer Support to the Cabinet
Cabinet meetings will be supported by the Senior Management Team.

Recorded votes
A recorded vote will be taken only when requested by a member of Cabinet.



Cabinet - Wednesday, 4th May, 2016
in the Community Space, Keynsham - Market Walk, Keynsham

AGENDA

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS
EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

The Chair will draw attention to the emergency evacuation procedure as set out in the
Notes

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

At this point in the meeting declarations of interest are received from Members in any
of the agenda items under consideration at the meeting. Members are asked to
indicate:

(a) The agenda item number in which they have an interest to declare.

(b) The nature of their interest.

(c) Whether their interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest or an other interest,
(as defined in Part 2, A and B of the Code of Conduct and Rules for Registration of
Interests)

Any Member who needs to clarify any matters relating to the declaration of interests is

recommended to seek advice from the Council’s Monitoring Officer or a member of his

staff before the meeting to expedite dealing with the item during the meeting.

TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR
QUESTIONS FROM PUBLIC AND COUNCILLORS

Questions submitted before the deadline will receive a reply from an appropriate
Cabinet member or a promise to respond within 5 days of the meeting. Councillors
may ask one supplementary question for each question they submitted, up to a
maximum of two per Councillor.

STATEMENTS, DEPUTATIONS OR PETITIONS FROM PUBLIC OR COUNCILLORS

Councillors and members of the public may register their intention to make a statement
if they notify the subject matter of their statement before the deadline. Statements are
limited to 3 minutes each. The speaker may then be asked by Cabinet members to
answer factual questions arising out of their statement.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS CABINET MEETING (Pages 9 - 20)
To be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair
CONSIDERATION OF SINGLE MEMBER ITEMS REQUISITIONED TO CABINET

This is a standard agenda item, to cover any reports originally placed on the Weekly
list for single Member decision making, which have subsequently been the subject of a
Cabinet Member requisition to the full Cabinet, under the Council’s procedural rules



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

SINGLE MEMBER CABINET DECISIONS TAKEN SINCE PREVIOUS CABINET
MEETING (Pages 21 - 22)

This report lists Cabinet Single Member decisions taken and published since the last
Cabinet meeting.

MATTERS REFERRED BY POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY BODIES

This is a standing agenda item (Constitution rule 14, part 4D — Executive Procedure
Rules) for matters referred by Policy Development and Scrutiny bodies. The Chair of
the relevant PDS Panel will have the right to attend and to introduce the Panel’s
recommendations to Cabinet.

RECEIPT OF INFORMATION REQUESTED BY COUNCIL ON THE PARK &
RIDE/EAST OF BATH TRANSPORT ISSUES (Pages 23 - 354)

The Council on 12th November 2015 resolved in relation to the east of Bath Park and
Ride proposal to:

Call for the Communities, Transport and Environment Policy Development & Scrutiny
Panel to undertake an open and transparent public scrutiny, examining a wide
range of integrated transport solutions for the east of Bath; and

Ask that the cross-party Local Development Framework Steering Group review all the
options for the location of an east of Bath Park & Ride prior to Cabinet selecting a
preferred site early next year, giving due consideration to the following:

. responses received to the east of Bath Park& Ride consultation;
. feasibility and deliverability of each site option;

. costs associated with each site option;

. transport benefits of each site option; and

. visual impact of each site option.

It is recommended that Cabinet note the reports outlining the findings and conclusions
from the Communities, Transport and Environment Policy Development & Scrutiny
Panel Inquiry Day and the sites review undertaken by the LDF Steering Group; in
order to help their deliberations in determining the recommended solution to the
transport issues to the east of Bath.

YOUTH JUSTICE PLAN (Pages 355 - 396)

The Local Authority has a statutory duty, in consultation with key partner agencies,
Health Police and Probation, to produce an annual Youth Justice Plan. The Plan sets
out how youth justice services are to be composed and funded, how they will operate
and what functions they will carry out to prevent youth offending and re-offending
across Bath and North East Somerset.

PRIMARY AND SECONDARY SCHOOL ORGANISATION PLAN 2015 - 2019 (Pages
397 - 438)



The Council has a statutory duty to secure sufficient school places for every child
resident in the Local Authority who requires a place. The Primary and Secondary
School Organisation Plan 2015 — 2019 at Appendix 1 outlines the current level of
primary and secondary provision in the Authority, detailed projected pupil numbers
over the next four years up to admissions in September 2019 based on births and
resident population data and outline pupil numbers up to 2029 as a consequence of
the future planned housing development in the Authority. Estimates for the number of
school places likely to be required as a result and how and where these might be
provided are also included.

15.  97/101 WALCOT ST : GENESIS TRUST (Pages 439 - 454)

At the meeting on 9 September 2015 the Cabinet resolved (Appendix 1: E2784) to
request that a further report be brought back to Cabinet within the following 4 months
to consider and approve that the provisions in 5.7 had been satisfied.

The provisions in 5.7 are set out in full in this report and in summary the requirement is
to identify more fully the social objectives which are to be delivered from these
premises in favour of the community.

This is the first available Cabinet meeting for this report to be made.

The Committee Administrator for this meeting is Jack Latkovic who can be contacted on
01225 394452.



Protocol for Decision-making

Guidance for Members when making decisions

When making decisions, the Cabinet/Committee must ensure it has regard only to relevant
considerations and disregards those that are not material.

The Cabinet/Committee must ensure that it bears in mind the following legal duties when
making its decisions:

e Equalities considerations

¢ Risk Management considerations

e Crime and Disorder considerations

e Sustainability considerations

e Natural Environment considerations

e Planning Act 2008 considerations

¢ Human Rights Act 1998 considerations
e Children Act 2004 considerations

e Public Health & Inequalities considerations

Whilst it is the responsibility of the report author and the Council’s Monitoring Officer and Chief
Financial Officer to assess the applicability of the legal requirements, decision makers should
ensure they are satisfied that the information presented to them is consistent with and takes due
regard of them.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8

BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET These minutes are draft until
confirmed as a correct record at
CABINET the next meeting.

Wednesday, 10th February, 2016

Present:
Councillor Tim Warren Leader of the Council and Conservative Group Leader
Councillor Liz Richardson Cabinet Member for Homes and Planning

Councillor Patrick Anketell-Jones Cabinet Member for Economic Development,
Conservative Deputy Group Leader Bath

Councillor Charles Gerrish Cabinet Member for Finance and Efficiency, Conservative
Deputy Group Leader North East Somerset

Councillor Vic Pritchard Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Health

Councillor Anthony Clarke Cabinet Member for Transport

Councillor Martin Veal Cabinet Member for Community Services

Councillor Michael Evans Cabinet Member for Children's Services

72 WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.
73 EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

The Senior Democratic Services Officer drew attention to the evacuation procedure
as set out in the Agenda.

74 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies for absence.

75 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were none.

76  TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR
There was none.

77  QUESTIONS FROM PUBLIC AND COUNCILLORS

There were 18 questions from Councillors and 2 questions from members of the
public.

[Copies of the questions and responses, including supplementary questions and
responses if any, have been placed on the Minute book at Democratic Services and
are available on the Council's website.]

Page 9 1



78

79

80

81

STATEMENTS, DEPUTATIONS OR PETITIONS FROM PUBLIC OR
COUNCILLORS

David Redgewell addressed the Cabinet by expressing his concern that Keynsham
train station was not part of the MetroWest project. The project should take into
account an additional housing built in Keynsham and rise in demand for train
services. David Redgewell welcomed allocation of £70k for better bus in the area
and highlighted that it should be important to maintain evening and weekend buses.

Councillor Alison Millar addressed the Cabinet by saying that there had been a
strong and focused opposition to the Park and Ride site on Bathampton Meadows.
The petition against the Park and Ride now has over 10,000 signatures and MP
Jacob Rees-Mogg had raised this issue in the Parliament. £9.7m had been allocated
from the budget for this issue, which Councillor Millar had called it as risky decision
with no mandate. Councillor Millar concluded her statement by saying that there was
no hard evidence on the demand and take up of the Park and Ride on Bathampton
Meadows and that this would not be good legacy for the current administration.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS CABINET MEETING

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 2" December 2015
be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

CONSIDERATION OF SINGLE MEMBER ITEMS REQUISITIONED TO CABINET
There were none.
MATTERS REFERRED BY POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY BODIES

The Chair invited Councillor Sarah Bevan, as Resources PDS Chair, to address the
Cabinet.

The Chair informed the meeting that the Cabinet had received a copy of draft
minutes of the last Resources PDS meeting.

Councillor Sarah Bevan read out a statement to the Cabinet (available on the Minute
Book in Democratic Services) giving the following concerns from the Resources PDS
Panel:

e The Panel expressed major concerns that the Government settlement might
not be finalised in time for the budget to be set next Tuesday;

e The Panel voiced its awareness of heavy reliance on generating extra income
— more than £7m over 4 years;

e The Panel was concerned that there was a lack of detail about that element of
the proposal and lack of detail about modifications made since the draft
settlement and the November Panel meetings;

Page 10 2



82

83

e The Panel was concerned about the social care savings calculation, given the
increase in demand for these services, despite the 2% precept proposed;
The proposed budget involves high risk to the Council;

The proposed budget may not be balanced;

The use of reserves to fund ‘invest to save’ schemes is a risk; and

The proposed £2m savings from staff may have an adverse effect on
residents’ front line services, not to mention the staff themselves in some
cases.

In summary, the Panel would prefer less dependence on risky new initiatives and
more detailed information overall.

The Chair thanked Councillor Bevan on her statement.

SINGLE MEMBER CABINET DECISIONS TAKEN SINCE PREVIOUS CABINET
MEETING

The Cabinet agreed to note the report.

URBAN GULLS STRATEGY AND ACTION PLAN

Councillor Dine Romero gave a statement by saying that, on a face of it, the Gulls
Strategy could be a good thing but that she had had a concern that the Council
would spend £60k on measures which had not worked in the past. Councillor
Romero also said that some of the proposed measures would have limited effect, as
highlighted in the Scrutiny report not so long ago. Councillor Romero concluded her
statement by saying that she would be looking forward to hear what research would
be done on this matter and how the Council would lobby the Government on this
issue.

Councillor Martin Veal said that this was an updated and revised strategy, which was
needed for the city. Councillor Veal commended previous work undertaken by
officers and scrutiny in this area. If approved, the strategy would start immediately.
The strategy would finalise innovative and mutually beneficial research project by
gathering the evidence in a way that was not possible before. Councillor Veal also
said that he would, via local MPs, lobby central government to get this issue properly
raised and addressed. The strategy fulfils manifesto pledge to tackle issue of gulls in
the city and £86k would be allocated to tackle a serious of measures.

Councillor Martin Veal moved the recommendations.

Councillor Tim Warren seconded the motion by saying that it is important for this
issue to be tackled. £85k had been earmarked for this three-pronged approach
which would trial a series of measures to deter the gull population from settling in the
area. This innovative approach would provide an opportunity to gather evidence at a
scale that hasn’t been possible before, providing a clear steer on future intervention
work and targeting of resources.

RESOLVED (unanimously) that the Cabinet:

1) Adopt the revised urban gull strategy.

Page 11 3



84

2) Officers progress, in consultation with the Cabinet Member, the following
measures prioritised for delivery in 2015/16 and 2016/17 using the allocated
funding of £85k. These are:

a) Provision of a pilot gull treatment programme supported by a
communications campaign for areas in Abbey, Kingsmead, Widcombe,
Newbridge, Westmoreland, Twerton and Midsomer Norton. This will be
delivered through an external contractor chosen through an open and
transparent tender process.

b) An additional officer for waste education and enforcement for 6 months.

c) The delivery of a comprehensive communications campaign.

3) The Cabinet Member, in consultation with officers, will apportion the budget of
£85k to each of the above recommendations.

4) In addition the Council will enter into a collaborative partnership with the
University of the West of England and Middlesex University to map and track the
behavioural patterns of gulls and deliver a citizen science project.

METRO WEST PHASE 1 UPDATE REPORT

Councillor Neil Butters welcomed that Metro West project had been progressing and
that it should not stop with phases 1 and 2. Councillor Butters also said that the
Council should use this opportunity in extending services to Chippenham where
service connections between Swindon and Saltford, including Corsham, could be
provided. Councillor Butters concluded his statement by expressing his concern for
cuts in bus subsidies in Wiltshire which could have an impact on B&NES area.

Councillor Eleanor Jackson also welcomed the report but felt that it did not go into
detail, such as that there was no mention on development of railway between Frome
and Radstock.

Councillor Anthony Clarke said that he was aware of matters raised by Councillors
Butters and Jackson, and that he would make sure that these issues were picked up.
The Metro West Project aims to improve the local rail network which had been
under-developed compared with most other major urban areas. The aim was to
provide regular half-hourly services across the sub-region. The first stage of this
project, Metro West Phase 1, would re-open the Portishead railway and improve
frequencies on the Severn beach Line and into Bath and North East Somerset. The
project had received significant support from DfT, which had considered the proposal
to be well developed. The project would link the Bristol Enterprise Zone with the
Bath Riverside Enterprise Area. Improved rail services at Oldfield Park would support
the Bath Enterprise Area and at Keynsham would particularly support the adjacent
Somerdale and other development areas. The improved rail frequency had been
seen as particularly significant in supporting the Master Plan, as well as being a
central component of the Core Strategy, Economic Strategy, and both the Getting
Around Bath and Keynsham Transport Strategies.

Councillor Anthony Clarke moved the recommendations.
Councillor Michael Evans seconded the motion by thanking officers on the report on
progress with the MetroWest Phase 1 Rail Project. Councillor Evans also said that

he would be looking forward to receiving a further and more detailed report later in
the year.

Page 12 4



85

Councillor Charles Gerrish also welcomed the report and added that Network Rail
should consider that more and more people had been using train station in
Keynsham, hence the need for a cover over the station. Councillor Gerrish also
highlighted suitability of parking at the Keynsham train station.

RESOLVED (unanimously) that the Cabinet:

1) Noted the contents of this report and would provide continued support for the
Metro West Phase 1 Rail Project and acknowledged its links with the Getting
around Bath and Keynsham Transport Strategies.

2) Noted the possible capital cost over-run and made a commitment to revenue
support for the first three years of operation.

3) Noted the possible revenue reversion risk.

4) Made a consideration in the medium term financial plan for any of these
emerging financial pressures.

5) Noted the timetabling works required in relation to Metro West phase 1 and its
impact on the Saltford Station proposal.

HERITAGE SERVICES BUSINESS PLAN: 2016-2021 UPDATE

Councillor Rob Appleyard welcomed the report and said that we shouldn’t
underestimate the value which Heritage Services had brought to the area. Councillor
Appleyard also welcomed that the report had recognised a risk that the profit targets
for 2016-2021 might not be achieved due to sensitivity of planning assumptions and
to national and international economic factors.

Councillor Andrew Furse welcomed the investment in visitor experience for Roman
Baths though he expressed his concern that experience could be unpleasant due to
number of visitors at times.

Councillor Patrick Anketell-Jones said that overcrowding of Roman Baths, and visitor
experience, would be monitored by the management. Heritage Services’ approach
to business planning and generating income had proven to be very successful. The
business philosophy of ensuring the sustainability of unique heritage assets, the
audiences attracted and the income streams brought had stood the test of time and
had attracted the interest of other organisations, public and private, elsewhere in the
UK and overseas.

Councillor Patrick Anketell-Jones moved the recommendations.

Councillor Liz Richardson seconded the motion by saying that the Victoria Art Gallery
exhibition programme had been now included in the Combined ticket to the Roman
Baths and Fashion Museum and that this had been already driving footfall upwards
and generating a whole new income stream.

RESOLVED (unanimously) that the Cabinet:

1) Approved the Heritage Services Business Plan 2016-2021;

2) Confirmed that it wishes Heritage Services to continue to work to the business
principles agreed by the Council Executive in 2004, as amended;

3) Approved the capital investment outlined in this report and noted that the
Budget report also on the agenda for this meeting recommends:

Page 13 5



86

a) Full approval and inclusion in the Approved capital programme of the
following projects:
i) The Archway Centre project at a total cost of £5.317 Million in
2017/18 and 2018/19, including a contribution by the Council of
£1 Million, (£750k from corporate borrowing and £250k from
service-supported borrowing), as detailed in this report
i) The Roman Baths Infrastructure projects totalling £100k
planned for 2016/17
iii) The Victoria Art Gallery air conditioning project, costing £150k
in 2016/17, subject to completion of the Project Implementation
process
b) Inclusion in the provisional capital programme of the block of
Roman Baths infrastructure projects totalling £600k from 2017/18 to
2020/21
c) Inclusion of information around emerging capital programme items,
to be brought forward for inclusion in the capital programme in future
years, for the investment of £1.15 Million per annum in both 2019/20
and 2020/21 in order to begin a further major refurbishment of the
entire Roman Baths site
d) Re-phasing of £100k currently included in Approved the capital
programme to develop the second phase of the Visitor Management
System project from 2015/16 to 2017/18.

4) Noted the investment contained within the Business Plan and approved the
procurement of goods and services necessary to carry out this investment,
including new contracts for security and further digital interpretation during the
period of the Plan.

REVENUE & CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING, CASH LIMITS AND VIREMENTS
— APRIL TO DECEMBER 2015

Councillor Andrew Furse congratulated officers on bringing the budget within 0.03%
of spent though he expressed his concerns that some areas were showing
overspend.

Councillor Charles Gerrish said that the Budget Management Scheme had required
that the Cabinet consider the revenue and capital monitoring position four times per
year. For revenue budgets which were forecast to be overspent, the service
Directors were normally expected to seek compensating savings to try and bring
budgets back to balance. The report has highlighted significant areas of forecast
over and under spends in revenue budgets and outlined the Council’s current
revenue financial position for the 2015/16 financial year to the end of December
2015 by Cabinet Portfolio. The current forecast outturn position was for an
underspend of £128,000 which equates to 0.03% of gross budgeted spend
(excluding Schools). In addition, as previously reported, uncommitted New Care Act
burdens funding would be transferred to a specific Council Care Act Reserve at year
end, currently estimated to be £750,000.

Councillor Charles Gerrish moved the recommendations.

Councillor Vic Pritchard seconded the motion by saying that the Council’s financial
position, along with its financial management arrangements and controls, were
fundamental to continuing to plan and provide services in a managed way,
particularly in light of the medium term financial challenge. The revenue budget for

Page 14 6



87

88

2015/16 had included delivery of £9.7m of savings and in addition to this, a further
£1.695m of in-year rebasing had been actioned resulting in there no longer being a
requirement to use reserves to balance the 2015/16 budget.

RESOLVED (unanimously) that the Cabinet agreed that:

1) Strategic Directors should continue to work towards managing within budget
in the current year for their respective service areas, and to manage below
budget where possible by not committing unnecessary expenditure, through
tight budgetary control.

2) This year’s revenue budget position as shown in the report is noted.

3) The capital expenditure position for the Council in the financial year to the end
of December and the year-end projections detailed in the report are noted.

4) The revenue virements listed for approval in the report are agreed.

5) The changes in the capital programme listed in the report are noted.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT MONITORING REPORT TO 31ST DECEMBER 2015

Councillor Andrew Furse expressed his concern in regards of future borrowing.
Councillor Furse said that borrowing would rise from £180m this year to £300m till
2018. Councillor Furse concluded his statement by saying that this would have
revenue implications and questioned if this was the right time to increase capital
funding.

Councillor Charles Gerrish said that this report had given details of performance
against the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy and Annual Investment Plan
2015/16 for the first nine months of 2015/16. The average rate of investment return
for the first nine months of 2015/16 was 0.47%, which was 0.08% above the
benchmark rate. £10 million of annual borrowing matured during the third quarter of
2015/16. These funds were re-borrowed for a further 12 months at a more beneficial
interest rate. The Council’s total borrowing was £108.3 million as at 31st December
2015.

Councillor Charles Gerrish moved the recommendations.

Councillor Michael Evans seconded the motion by saying that investments returns
had continued to be ahead of the benchmark rate whilst reflecting the continued low
interest rate environment; that investments had remained diversified across UK
banks, building societies and very highly rated foreign banks; and that the Council
had continued to not hold any direct investments in countries within the Eurozone.

RESOLVED (unanimously) that the Cabinet agreed that:

1) The Treasury Management Report to 31st December 2015, prepared in
accordance with the CIPFA Treasury Code of Practice, is noted
2) The Treasury Management Indicators to 31st December 2015 are noted.

2016/17 TREASURY MANAGEMENT & INVESTMENT STRATEGY

Councillor Charles Gerrish said that this report fulfils the Council’s legal obligation
under the Local Government Act 2003 to have regard to both the CIPFA Code and
the CLG Guidance. This report had been scrutinised by the Corporate Audit
Committee at the 4th February 2016 meeting. Councillor Gerrish assured Councillor

Page 15 7



89

Furse that the income generated from the bulk of the borrowing would exceed the
cost of borrowing. This wouldn’t be a ‘leap in the dark’ and it would generate income
for the Council.

Councillor Patrick Anketell-Jones seconded the motion by saying that this strategy
had set out the Council’s policies for managing its investments and for giving priority
to the security and liquidity of those investments. The Council’s borrowing strategy
of using internal resources or borrowing short term would be kept under review
taking account of future interest rate forecasts.

RESOLVED (unanimously) that the Cabinet agreed to:

1) Recommend the actions proposed within the Treasury Management Strategy
Statement to February Council for approval.

2) Recommend the Investment Strategy to February Council for approval.

3) Recommend to February Council for approval that decisions to borrow from
the Local Government Association (LGA) Bond Agency are delegated to the
Chief Finance Officer in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Finance &
Efficiency.

4) Note the Treasury Management Indicators and delegate authority for updating
the indicators prior to approval at Full Council on 16th February 2016 to the
Chief Finance Officer and Cabinet Member for Finance & Efficiency, in light of
any changes to the recommended budget as set out in the Budget Report
elsewhere on the agenda for this meeting.

BUDGET AND COUNCIL TAX 2016/17 AND FINANCIAL OUTLOOK 2016/17 TO
2019/20

Councillor Dine Romero said that the Cabinet should be mindful of Council’s ability to
generate more income taking into consideration that people have less money.
Councillor Romero expressed her concern in risks, in particular that we, as a
Council, would have to pay more at later stages. Councillor Romero also expressed
her concerns in efficiency savings in Connecting Families programme and in
remodelling of the Public Mental Health, especially since many young children had
suffered from mental health issues. Councillor Romero also questioned if the £1m
spent on Schools Capital Maintenance had come straight from the Department of
Education.

Councillor Andrew Furse expressed his concern in the risk on delivery by saying that
proposed budget had had ambitious saving targets without much detail on what
those savings were. Councillor Furse also said that the Council had received £1.8m
of Transitional Funding over two years, which was much less than some other
authorities in the country received. Also, as per Councillor Furse, it would be a big
challenge in delivering service with so many redundancies expected to happen in
near future. Councillor Furse concluded his statement by expressing his concern in
reduction of recycling centres opening hours and also in Highways Maintenance
budget cut.

Councillor Robin Moss questioned how much of the Central Government grant the
Council get would over four years. Councillor Moss also questioned issue of
planning department fees and concluded that despite of an effort that officers had put
in this report, there was no enough detail for him to vote on.

Page 16 8



Councillor Joe Rayment expressed his concerns in cuts within drug and alcohol
services, sexual health and health improvement programme.

Councillor Lisa Brett commented that schools would face 4.4% increase in their pay
bill, which would be huge blow to their budgets. Councillor Brett questioned how the
Cabinet would respond to cuts in schools; whether it was responsible to protect
school improvement services on the expense of other Council services; and, what
had been done to include the Education Minister in a review of Council’s statutory
obligation to schools.

Councillor Eleanor Jackson expressed her concerns in cuts on Public Health and
also in wasting resources in projects that had not been done right at first time.

Councillor Charles Gerrish said that the Council had received the final figures from
the Central Government, and that they were unchanged from what was originally
envisaged, though the Council would still have to make some significant savings.
The Transitional Funding allocated to this Council had been on par with other
neighbouring authorities and similar Councils, which indicated that a visit from the
Leader of the Council and Councillor Gerrish to the relevant Minister in January this
year had been successful.

Councillor Charles Gerrish read out Aims and Ambitions of the budget and
highlighted these Key Priorities within the budget:
e Tackling waste and increasing efficiency
Improving transport
Delivering new homes and jobs
Investing in young people
Supporting cleaner, greener and healthier communities
Promoting choice and independence for older people.

Councillor Charles Gerrish also said that the Final Settlement for local government
had included the provision of a new “one off” Transitional Grant for the Council of
£936K in 2016/17 and £930K in 2017/18. The underlying Settlement had remained
the same and the previously indicated reductions in Revenue Support Grant had
been confirmed. That meant the Council had had the same longer term financial
challenge as before with some short term funding mainly to help manage risk and the
transition.

In light of this, Councillor Gerrish had proposed that the budget recommended to
Council is amended, and that Council is provided with a short supplementary paper,
to reflect the following use of the Transitional Grant funding in 2016/17:

1.Adjustments to Existing Budget Proposals
£25K - Widening of Gull Strategy trial and additional enforcement work
£62K - Increase transition support for Freight Consolidation from 6 to 12 months

2.New Provisions

£50K — Support and advice for B&NES Council financial planning and a submission
to government - to inform planned changes to local government finance nationally,
including a new system of needs assessment and tariffs, which will be offsetting
business rates retention proposals

3.Service Transition Support

Page 17 9



£799K — Corporately held transition funding to assist in the delivery of savings
targets and other pressures as required in year and as a contingency relating to
income growth targets in 2016/17

Councillor Charles Gerrish moved the recommendations as amended.

Councillor Tim Warren seconded the motion by saying that this was one of the most
challenging budgets ever. Councillor Warren welcomed these detailed plans to
invest in the area, as part of a balanced budget that would continue to protect
essential frontline services and focus on the priorities that matter the most to local
people. Through driving greater efficiencies, as well as looking at innovative ways to
continue delivering services, the Cabinet had been able to set aside funds for
investment in the future of Bath and North East Somerset.

The Cabinet had identified specific investment priorities, following detailed Spending
Review, as part of the commitment to delivering three core aims, to ensure the
Council:

o] Is efficient and well run;
o Invests in the future of the area; and
o Puts the interests of residents first

Councillor Tim Warren also said that this budget would help in continuing delivery of
key priorities including improving transport, creating homes and jobs, supporting
young and older people alike, and investing in cleaner, greener and healthier
communities.

The rest of the Cabinet unanimously welcomed the budget by highlighting key aims
and priorities within their portfolio, as per report.

RESOLVED (unanimously) that the Cabinet agreed to recommend:

1) That the Council approve:
a) The General Fund net revenue budget for 2016/17 of £115.729m and the
associated Council Tax increase of 1.25% plus a further 2% for Adult Social
Care, as set out in Appendix 2.
b) That no Special Expenses be charged other than Town and Parish Council
precepts for 2016/17.
c) The adequacy of reserves at Appendix 2 Table 10 with a risk-assessed
level of £10.5m.
d) The individual service cash limits for 2016/17 summarised at Appendix 2
Table 6 and detailed in Annex 1.
e) That the specific arrangements for the governance and release of reserves,
including invest to save proposals, be delegated to the Council’'s Section 151
Officer in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Finance & Efficiency and
the Chief Executive.
2) That the Council include in its Council Tax setting, the precepts set and approved
by other bodies including the local precepts of Town Councils, Parish Councils and
the Charter Trustees of the City of Bath, and those of the Fire and Police Authorities.
3) That the Council notes the Section 151 officer's report on the robustness of the
proposed budget and the adequacy of the Council's reserves (Appendix 2, Annex 2)
and approves the conditions upon which the recommendations are made as set out
throughout Appendix 2.
4) That in relation to the capital budget the Council:

Page 18 10



a) approves a capital programme of £58.063m for 2016/17 and notes items for

provisional approval in 2016/17 and the programme for 2017/18 to 2020/21 as

shown at Appendix 2, Annex 3 including the planned sources of funding .

b) delegates implementation, subject to consultation where appropriate, of the

capital programmes set out in Annex 3i to Annex 3iv to the relevant Strategic

Director in Consultation with the appropriate Cabinet Member.

c) approves all other delegations as set out in the budget report.

d) approves the Minimum Revenue Provision Policy as shown at Appendix 2,

Annex 4

e) approves the Capital Prudential Indicators as set out in Appendix 2 Table 8.
5) That the Council agree the Council’s proposed pay policy statement, including the
provision in respect of minimum pay rates in 2016/17 as set out at Appendix 5
delegating implementation arrangements to the Employment Committee where
appropriate.
6) Authorise the Council’s Section 151 Officer, in consultation with the Cabinet
Member for Finance & Efficiency, to make any necessary changes and
presentational improvements to the draft budget proposal for submission to Council.
7) The Final Settlement for local government includes the provision of a new “one
off” Transitional Grant for the Council of £936K in 2016/17 and £930K in 2017/18.
The underlying Settlement remains the same and the previously indicated reductions
in Revenue Support Grant are confirmed. That means the Council has the same
longer term financial challenge as before but has some short term funding mainly to
help manage risk and the transition.
In light of this it is proposed that the budget recommended to Council is amended,
and that Council is provided with a short supplementary paper, to reflect the following
use of the Transitional Grant funding in 2016/17:

1.Adjustments to Existing Budget Proposals

£25K - Widening of Gull Strategy trial and additional enforcement work
£62K - Increase transition support for Freight Consolidation from 6 to 12
months

2.New Provisions

£50K — Support and advice for B&NES Council financial planning and a
submission to government - to inform planned changes to local government
finance nationally, including a new system of needs assessment and tariffs,
which will be offsetting business rates retention proposals

3.Service Transition Support

£799K — Corporately held transition funding to assist in the delivery of savings
targets and other pressures as required in year and as a contingency relating
to income growth targets in 2016/17

The meeting ended at 7.50 pm

Chair

Date Confirmed and Signed

Prepared by Democratic Services

Page 19 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

Bath & North East Somerset Council

Cabinet Single-Member Decisions and Responses to
Recommendations from PDS Panels

published 5-Feb-16 to 22-Apr-16

Further details of each decision can be seen on the Council's Single-member Decision Register at
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?&dm=3

Date Decision Maker
Reference Title
01-Feb-16 Clir Martin Veal

E2818 Parks Service $S106 funded capital projects

The Cabinet Member agrees to approve capital expenditure of £300k on improvement projects
located at B&NES’ green spaces, in discharging responsibilities associated with S106
agreements.

Clirs Tim Warren and Liz
15-Feb-16 Richardson

E2833 Foxhill Regeneration Charter - draft for consultation

The Cabinet Members agreed with the consultation and the feedback is reported back to the
Cabinet.

17-Mar-16 Clir Anthony Clarke
E2815 Zebra Crossing - Copseland / Oakley junction, Bath
The Cabinet Member agrees that the scheme should be rejected.

04-Apr-16 CliIr Liz Richardson
E2848 Pre Application Advice

The Cabinet Member agrees that Development Management Service can implement a revised
pre application advice charging schedule.

12-Apr-16 Clir Anthony Clarke
E2842 Voluntary sector funding applications for community transport 2016-17
The Cabinet Member agreed with proposals as printed.

21-Apr-16 Clir Charles Gerrish
E2847 Agresso Planner Module and Supporting Systems Development

The Cabinet Member agrees that approval is given for commencement of this project and its
status within the capital programme moved from ‘provisional’ status to ‘approved’.

Page 21




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING | Cabinet
MEETING | 4t May 2016
E 2855
Receipt of information requested by Council on the Park & Ride/East
TITLE: of Bath Transport issues
WARD: Bath Avon North, Lambridge and Wards in Bath

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:
Findings and Conclusions in relation to
Annex A — Scrutiny Inquiry Day: Integrated Transport Solutions- East of Bath

Annex B- Local Development Framework Steering Group: Review of the options for the
location of a Park and Ride Site- East of Bath

1 THE ISSUE

The Council on 12th November 2015 resolved in relation to the east of Bath Park and Ride

proposal to:

1.1 Call for the Communities, Transport and Environment Policy Development & Scrutiny
Panel to undertake an open and transparent public scrutiny, examining a wide range of
integrated transport solutions for the east of Bath; and

1.2 Ask that the cross-party Local Development Framework Steering Group review all the
options for the location of an east of Bath Park & Ride prior to Cabinet selecting a
preferred site early next year, giving due consideration to the following:

e responses received to the east of Bath Park& Ride consultation;

o feasibility and deliverability of each site option;

e costs associated with each site option;

e transport benefits of each site option; and

e visual impact of each site option.

Printed on recycled paper Page 23



2 RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that Cabinet:

2.1 Note the reports outlining the findings and conclusions from the Communities,
Transport and Environment Policy Development & Scrutiny Panel Inquiry Day and the
sites review undertaken by the LDF Steering Group; in order to help their
deliberations in determining the recommended solution to the transport issues to
the east of Bath

3 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE)

3.1 The resource implications are outlined in the respective reports to be considered.

4 STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS AND BASIS FOR PROPOSALS

4.1 The Council’'s adopted Core Strategy identifies the need to create the conditions
for a more environmentally sustainable economy with increased local
employment, less overall commuting and a strong low-carbon business sector.
The economy needs to be well placed to meet the needs of the 21st century and
to be more diverse, productive and resilient facilitated by an increase in
innovative technology related jobs, indigenous business growth and inward
investment through provision of appropriate business space in the right locations.

4.2 This reflects the Council's Economic Development Strategy which seeks to
stimulate a more productive, competitive and diversified economy across the
District and promotes a higher value added economy (smart growth) where
indigenous companies are retained and able to grow, other knowledge based
sectors are attracted to the area and the industrial sector continues to contribute
to the local economy.

4.3 The Council’s Transport Strategy for Bath is one of reducing the use of cars for
travelling to and within the city, by progressing improvements to public transport
and making walking and cycling within the city the preferred option for short trips.
This will be achieved through a variety of measures including the creation of one
or more Park & Ride sites on the eastern side of the city to reduce commuter
traffic.

5 RATIONALE

5.1 The Council’'s Getting Around Bath Strategy and the adopted Core Strategy
indicate the need for and east of Bath Park and Ride as part of an integrated
transport solution.

6 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

6.1 Do nothing in terms of the transport infrastructure in relation to the economic and
housing growth associated with the District

7 CONSULTATION

Printed on recycled paper Page 24



7.1 The report has been considered by the Monitoring Officer and the Section 151
Officer.

8 RISK MANAGEMENT

8.1 A risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been
undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision making risk management

guidance.
Contact person Louise Fradd 01225 396082
Lisa Bartlett 01225 477550
Background See separate reports
papers

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an alternative
format

Printed on recycled paper Page 25




Printed on recycled paper Page 26



Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Bath and North East Somerset Council

Communities Transport and Environment Policy
Development & Scrutiny Panel

Scrutiny Inquiry Day to examine a range of integrated
transport solutions to the East of Bath

Making Bath & North East Somerset an

even better place to live, work and visit




Review Panel Members

Cllr John Bull (Chair)

Clir Brian Simmons

Clir Bob Goodman

Clir Pete Turner

Clir Alan Hale

ClIr Neil Butters

Cllr Jonathan Carr (Substitute Cllr Lin Patterson)
Cllr Dine Romero

Clir Michael Norton

Clir Les Kew

Page 28



Foreword

The Communities Transport and Environment Panel undertook
a scrutiny inquiry day on the 22" of March 2016. This was
an opportunity for the public alongside key partners, and

professionals to consider existing information and work

collaboratively in identifying alternative wider integrated

transport solutions for the east of Bath area.

The day involved a variety of guest speakers which provided the panel with an opportunity to
understand what work has already been achieved both within Bath and North East Somerset
and around the country. A workshop session was held during the afternoon where we heard
from members of the public about their ideas and thoughts on integrated transport solutions and
possible models for the East of Bath. Further public speaking slots and submitted statements

and questions also highlighted further key issues and concerns from the local community.

The collective findings from the scrutiny day have informed this report which sets out to provide
you with the background to the day and the panels key findings and recommendations for

consideration by the Cabinet.

Yours sincerely

Chair, Cllr John Bull
(Chair of the Communities, Transport & Environment PDS Panel, B&NES)

Page 29



Contents

Introduction
Background to day
Purpose & Objectives
Methodology

Panel Findings

Panel Recommendations

Next steps

Appendices

Page 30

o1 o1 01 O1

(o]

11

12

13



Introduction

Background to day’

The Council at its meeting on the 12th November 2015 received a report which outlined the
issues raised to date through the consultation process and the wider issues surrounding
proposals for a Park and Ride facility to the east of Bath.

At this meeting it was resolved to:-

1. ‘call for the Communities, Transport and Environment Policy Development & Scrutiny
Panel to undertake an open and transparent public scrutiny, examining a wide range of

integrated transport solutions for the East of Bath.’

2. In addition to the above the Council also resolved that the Local Development Framework

Steering Group meets to consider:

e the public responses received during the consultation;

e an analysis of the anticipated transport and environmental consequences
linked to the proposal;

e approximate construction costs; and

e potential visual impact

Purpose and Objectives

The PDS Panel for Communities, Transport & Environment is the lead Panel and was

nominated to undertake the scrutiny Inquiry day (SID) (open invite to all other PDS Panels).

Methodology

What we did

! Appendix 1 — Terms of Reference for SID

Page 31



e A working group was set up to help facilitate the planning and development of a scrutiny

inquiry day which included the Chair of the Panel, Scrutiny Officer and support from senior

service officers within the Council.

e On the 22" of March the CTE Panel held a scrutiny inquiry day which ran from 10:00 until
19:00 hrs.

e A room was also used on the same day to display key briefing material and was also an

opportunity for the community share their views and speak to officers.

Who did we hear from:-

1. Arange of speakers:?-

Sir Peter Hendy (CBE) - Transport Commissioner — Video Link

Peter Dawson- Group Manager, Planning Policy & Transport development
(B&NES), who set the policy context , included within this report was an update on air
quality from Rob Spalding

Andrew Lea, Fiona Meldrum, Christine Boyd -Bathampton Community Alliance
representatives who talked about the Park and Ride usage in Bath & traffic emissions to
the east of Bath

James Freeman -Managing Director (First Bus) provided his perspective

John Usher -Programme Manager, Bristol & West of England (Sustrans)

Chris Carter - Transport Service Strategy Manager (Nottingham Integrated
Transport Approach) who provided a best practice example

Nick Richardson — Technical Director (Mott MacDonald ) who provided an overview
of the consultation and forecast modelling for the East of Bath

James White - Transport & Rail Co-ordinator, Metro West (West of England LEP)
Patrick Rotheram - Transport Lead ( Federation of Bath Residents Association)
providing a perspective from one section of the community

George Riley- Chairman of the Batheaston Parish Council

Caroline Kay — Chief Executive ( Bath Preservation Trust)

Professor Graham Parkhurst - Director, Centre for Transport and Society
(University of the West of England, Bristol)

2 Appendix 2- Webcast and copies of presentation slides available on line

Page 32



2. We had approximately 154 attendees on the day, this included:-

Elected representatives and officers from:
e B&NES Councillors and officers
e Wiltshire Councillor
e Bathford Parish Council
e Whitchurch Parish Council
e Bathampton Parish Council
e Batheaston Parish Council
e Nottingham City Council
e Monkton Combe Parish Council

e Claverton Parish Council

Transport sector:
e First West of England
e Mott MacDonald
e Sustrans
e West of England LEP
e UWE, Bristol

Local community transport campaign and groups:
e Corsham Transport Group
e Bath Cycling Club
e Corsham Station Campaign
e Cycle Bath
e Bath Cycle Club
e B&NES Cycle Forum

e Railfuture Severnside

Local built environment, residents and environmental groups:
e Bath Preservation Trust
e Bathmeadows Alliance

e Transition Bath

Page 33



e Transition Larkhall

e National Trust

e Campaign for clean air

e Federation of Bath Residents Associations (FOBRA)

e Circus Area Residents Association (CARA)

Local business groups:

e Bath Chamber of Commerce and the Initiative in B&NES

Local people:
e Residents
e Batheaston Primary School
e Bath Spa University

e Bath and North East Somerset Liberal Democrats

3. We undertook a facilitated workshop session
Discussed two key questions:-
Q1. What do you consider an integrated transport solution is?

Q2. Consider & prioritise your top two alternative integrated solutions for the East of Bath
4. Opportunity for the community to speak during a dedicated speaking slot

On the day 17 speakers from a wide range of the community shared their thoughts and
ideas to the Panel.

Page 34



Panel Findings

THE PANEL NOTES:

1. The need for an integrated transport policy rather than a ‘one solution ‘approach.

2. The considerable volume of objections by the local community to the three sites for a

potential East of Bath P&R consulted on last autumn.

3. The status of the Bathampton Meadows sites in terms of landscape and recreational value,

overlooked by an area of outstanding natural beauty (AONB) and in the Green Belt.

4. That an East of Bath P&R is included in the adopted Core Strategy and Bath Transport
Strategy based on a projection of what our transport needs will be in the future. There were
strong feeling expressed for and against the concept of a P&R as well as proposals to locate

one in the meadows.

5. The case made at the SID by the Bathampton Meadows Alliance and others against the
value of P&R as a means of solving the East of Bath traffic problem, as suggested by the

following:-

e [EXxcess capacity at existing P&R sites except on a few specific occasions

e The comparatively low usage of the existing P&R sites by those travelling to work (25%
occupancy before 10 a.m.)

e Consequently the prediction by Mott McDonald that the effect of an Eastern P&R would
only be to reduce congestion on the A4 by 5% in the morning and 10% in the evening
peak periods.

e The likelihood that the existence of an Eastern P&R would encourage local vehicle

movements by residents who might have formerly used service buses.

6. There were arguments from the Transport Commissioner Sir Peter Hendy and from the
Federation of Bath Residents association in support of a P&R illustrated by:
e its need to be delivered in the near future in order to relieve traffic pressure on the

London Road

Page 35



e To meet the future needs of the economic developments in Bath.
e The likely demand for and use of a P&R in the future was also evidenced

e Recognition of the need to tackle existing traffic and air quality issues.

7. The Panel acknowledges the potential to increase the capacity of the Lansdown Park and

Ride in view of its proximity to the A46.

8. The significant concerns from local residents regarding the potential impact on Air Quality as
a consequence of any P&R on the London Road West and Batheaston High Street and the

consequent need to evaluate the validity of these concerns.

9. The need for the Council to develop a strategy to remove HGVs and other through traffic

from the London Road

10. The importance of improvements to alternative transport modes such as cycling and walking.

11. The potential value of a ‘link road’ from the A46 and A36, while recognising the damage

effect such a road might have on the environment and on local traffic.

12.The current negotiations surrounding the A350 and its potential for diverting HGV traffic from
Bath.

10
Page 36



Panel Recommendations

1. To support moves to increase the use of the Lansdown P&R together with site or sites
smaller than the original 1600 capacity discussed, to the east of Bath. This should
provide sufficient spaces for current and future need recognising the concerns of the
population around the Meadows proposals. The potential use of rail and river should
be considered as well as the advantages of low emission buses serving the Park and
Rides.

2. To improve publicity and signage for the Lansdown site and the opening of
discussions with South Gloucestershire Council on improvements to the access for

this site so as to meet the needs of visitors approaching Bath from the A46.

3. To investigate the Nottingham City integrated transport strategy and in particular its
Work Place Parking Levy scheme with the aim of raising revenue that might be used
for e.g. subsidising bus travel during periods of congestion, including travel by school

students.

4. To investigate a possible link road between the A46 and A36 while recognising the
environmental impact and limitations, which might be solved by carrying the road in a

tunnel.

5. To encourage the incorporation into the Travel Plans of the RUH and other health

facilities of measures to improve the access from the East of Bath.

6. The panel request early sight of the conclusions of the LDF Steering Group review of
possible P&R sites.

11
Page 37



Next Steps

This report will be presented at the Cabinet meeting on the 4™ May 2016, they will then have 8
weeks to consider and respond to these recommendations. The individual decision and rationale

will then be presented back to the Community Transport & Environment PDS Panel at its next

available meeting.

12
Page 38



Appendices

1. Full Terms of Reference

2. Presentation slides & supporting statements:
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=576&MId=4832&Ver=4

Page 39

13


https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=576&MId=4832&Ver=4

Appendix 1

Terms of Reference

Scrutiny Inquiry Day (SID) to examine a range of integrated transport options
for the East of Bath.

Date: 22"¢ March 2016
Time: 10:00 - 16:30
Venue: (Banqueting Room)

Background

Cabinet decision making

The Cabinet, at its meeting on 8th July, agreed to undertake a public consultation on the
options to identify a preferred location for a new Park & Ride east of Bath. This report
outlined the issues raised to date through the consultation process and the wider issues
surrounding proposals for a Park and Ride facility to the east of Bath. (Extract from
Cabinet minutes)

Council decision making

The Council at its meeting on the 12th November 2015. Received a report which outlined
the issues raised to date through the consultation process and the wider issues
surrounding proposals for a Park and Ride facility to the east of Bath. At this meeting it
was resolved to:-

‘call for the Communities, Transport and Environment Policy Development & Scrutiny
Panel to undertake an open and transparent public scrutiny, examining a wide range of
integrated transport solutions for the East of Bath.’

. In addition to the above the Council also resolved that the Local Development Framework

Steering Group meets to consider:

e the public responses received during the consultation;

e an analysis of the anticipated transport and environmental consequences
linked to the proposal;

e approximate construction costs; and
e potential visual impact

The PDS Panel for Communities, Transport & Environment are the lead Panel who have
been nominated to undertake a scrutiny Inquiry day (open invite to all other PDS Panels).

(Extract from Council minutes)

Purpose of a public scrutiny inquiry

14
Page 40



The purpose of this CTE Panel inquiry day is to ‘scrutinise’ East of Bath transport options.
This will include:

e The day will focus on understanding the historical context to the transport Policy for Bath
transport East of Bath.

e It will also be an opportunity for Members of the CTE Panel and key partners to have an
understanding of the transport strategy for Bath and the analysis undertaken on Bath
Park & Ride’s.

e Consider all key information gathered from the members briefing session which will
include the findings from the Local Development Framework report and other key reports

e Listen to best practice transport options from around the country and consider the
advantages and disadvantages of different transport solutions

e Collectively develop a range of integrated transport options and which can be presented
to the Cabinet for consideration.

Ultimately the purpose of the scrutiny inquiry day is to examine the evidence from key
information gathering, and alongside key partners, professionals, and the community collectively
consider and formulate a wide range of integrated transport solutions, prior to a final report being
presented to Cabinet.

The day will not only be reviewing whether we should be having a Park & Ride to the east of
Bath. The focus will also be on wider integrated transport solutions for this area.

Plan for the day

Scrutiny Inquiry day (purpose as above) all day event

Draft plan: The day will be in two parts:

Part one
» The first part will be context setting (i.e. key report findings, best practice examples —
integrated Transport Solutions, LDF findings etc.)

Part two

» There are a range of options as to how we run part two; this will largely depend on
attendance numbers. This may include representation from community groups, work
shop sessions, questions to a panel or flip chart exercises.

Standard practice in terms of public questions:

1. Members of the public, may have the opportunity to submit any statements in
advance of the meeting (with written submissions at least 5 days before the event
to try to avoid duplication and to ensure that everyone has the opportunity to
engage in the event). It is envisaged these statements will be supplied as part of
the briefing pack / papers on the SID day.

Considerations

15
Page 41



We will need to manage the level of interest and time, consideration may be given to
requesting a maximum of 2 representatives from each of the key community campaign
groups, who will be able to sit on each table during the facilitated workshop session.

The number of attendees may also be caped

Output

A report to CTE / Cabinet

Attendees (Draft list)

Council:

Policy Development and Scrutiny Panels: Invitations sent to all members of the CTE, PH&ED,
Full Cabinet Members: An invitation will be sent to all Cabinet members.

Town & Parish Cllrs

Open invite to the Chief Executive (Jo Farrar) and all Strategic and Divisional Directors.
Comms & Marketing

Community:

Key campaign groups,
Speakers that attended the full council meeting on the 12™ November

Potential invitees:

Invitation to a number of key professionals in the transport field to contribute to discussions:
e Sir Peter Hendy: Chair of the Bath Transport Commission

e Chief Executive of Sustrans

e First Bus Operations Manager

e Community Transport Representative

e Nick Richards: Mott McDonalds (consultant who has been undertaking the Transport
Strategy for Bath and the analysis to date on the Park and Ride options

e Heads of Transport from Wiltshire, York and Oxford ( provide best practice examples)

Enquiries
For further information, contact:

Chair ClIr: John Bull
Lead Strategic Officer: Louise Fradd
Lead Policy Development & Scrutiny Officer  Donna Vercoe

16
Page 42



Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING | Cabinet

MEETING | 4th May 2016

E 2855
TITLE: Park & Ride East of Bath - report & conclusions from the Local
' Development Framework (LDF) Steering Group
WARD: Bath Avon North, Lambridge and Wards in Bath

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:
Appendix 1: Copies of presentations made to LDF Steering Group

Appendix 2: Plans identifying key designations Green Belt, AONB, Flood Zone and
World Heritage Site Setting

Appendix 3: Meadows Community Alliance Report
Appendix 4: Table and Plan of Site Analysis

1 THEISSUE

1.1 Following the resolution at the November Council meeting the Local
Development Framework (LDF) Steering Group was asked to review all the
options for the location of an east of Bath Park and Ride prior to Cabinet
selecting a preferred site.

2 RECOMMENDATION

2.1 Cabinet notes the conclusions arising from the review undertaken by the LDF
Steering Group.

3 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE)

3.1 The costs of the LDF Steering Group works undertaken to date have been
managed within existing approved capital programme budgets.

3.2 The full cost of delivering a P&R site, including the revenue implications, will
depend on the preferred location. Full costing and business case will be required
once a decision is given around site preference.

4 BACKGROUND

4.1 The Council meeting on 12th November 2015 agreed that the LDF Steering
Group should review the options for a Park & Ride east of Bath and consider the:

o the responses received to the east of Bath Park and Ride consultation;
o feasibility and deliverability of each site option;

Printed on recycled paper Page 43



e costs associated with each site option;
e transport benefits of each site option; and
e visual impact of each site option.

4.2 The Steering Group met 4 times and visited multiple sites. Local ward members
were invited to the meetings and their input was welcomed. The meetings looked
at 21 site options for a potential Park & Ride. The meetings considered:

(1) the evidence supporting the integrated transport approach including the
need for a P&R east of Bath;

(2) areview of possible sites for the P&R;

(3) a number of additional sites suggested by both Members and the Community
and how they might work in combination ; and

(4) a shortlist of sites and reviewed them in line with the Council resolution.

The presentations associated with each of these meetings can be found in
appendix 1.

The Review:

4.3 The review process highlighted the complexities associated with identifying a
Park and Ride site to the east of Bath. The area to the east of Bath
encompasses a number of key designations that impact on a number of the sites
identified; these designations include Green Belt, Area of Outstanding Natural
Beauty, the setting of the World Heritage site and areas liable to flood. These
areas are identified on Plans 1 to 4 in appendix 2 to this report. Consequently
there are technical highway, planning and construction issues to consider, with
associated costs for each site option.

4.4 Air quality also became an area of concern and was therefore considered as part
of the review process.

4.5 The views and suggestions from the local community were also considered as
part of the site options appraisal. The Meadows Community Alliance sent a
report to the Steering Group for consideration this is attached as appendix 3.

Generic Improvements

4.6 The review highlighted the need for a number of generic improvements which
are required in addition to a proposed Park & Ride site, these are outlined below:

e Dbetter signage to the existing Park and Ride sites, it is proposed that this
should be undertaken as part of any agreed solution and should be
implemented as soon as possible;

e greater linkages considered as part of a more integrated transport solution to
the river/canal, rail, walking and cycling corridors ; and

e implement an appropriate bus lane, which would allow a dedicated link from
the A46 Batheaston Bypass into the existing eastbound bus lane on the
London Road.

Printed on recycled paper Page 44



Potential Sites for a Park and Ride

4.7 The review has looked at 21 sites (which includes a desk top analysis of a
number of new sites that were suggested) to ensure that all possibilities and
suggestions have been investigated. The table and plan in appendix 4 highlights
the sites that have been investigated and the conclusions associated with the
analysis.

4.8 In addition the Steering Group asked that greater detailed consideration be given
to three specific sites to determine their suitability against the criteria mentioned
in paragraph 4 and in comparison to sites B and F. They are sites A+, 10 and H+
the conclusions are outlined below:

4.9 Site A+: is situated to the east of the A46 roundabout and south of the London
Road. This is an area of land left after the construction of the Batheaston
Bypass which runs down to the river and is crossed by a cycle/footpath. It was
suggested that this might provide a site for a small P&R facility. The site could
accommodate only 300 spaces without being decked. While the site was clearly
located to attract many users it would need to be developed as a multi-storey car
park. This would have a significant impact on the World Heritage Site of Bath.
Due to level differences and the proximity to the River Avon, the access from A+
to A, to the east of the roundabout, is challenging even if the existing cycle path
below the bypass is considered. This adds considerably to the costs of over
£23m. There was also a concern that cars might queue back onto the A46
roundabout waiting to get into the site adding to congestion in the area and to air
pollution levels, including along the London Road West.

4.10 Site 10: is situated within the Cotswold AONB, on the border with Wiltshire, and
is just north of the A4 Box Road. It is currently undeveloped farm land with
significant mature trees on it and is within a parkland setting. The site could
accommodate significant numbers of parking spaces but its prominent position,
within the AONB, would make this very difficult to mitigate. This site is also
further from Bath than other developed sites on the A4 Box Road. As the site has
not been developed it would be very difficult to make a case to grant planning
permission having regard to advice in the National Planning Policy Framework
consequently Planning Permission on this site is not likely to be achievable.

4.11 Site H+: This site would need to be accessed via a new tunnel under the A4
Batheaston Roundabout and the GWR mainline. The site is within in the
Cotswold AONB and a P&R facility would also have to be constructed around the
Grade 2 listed farmhouse in this location. The proposal would have a significant
impact on important local views which would be difficult to mitigate. The cost of
the proposal was estimated to be over £51m due to the structures required to
access the site. This was considered to be prohibitively expensive and for these
reasons this was not taken forward.

4.12 The overall conclusion from the site analysis is outlined below.

1. Only two sites can effectively cater for a large park and ride facility (1500
spaces) when taking into account the constraints highlighted above. They are
sites B and F. It is assumed with both of these options that large scale
mitigation would take place on the majority of site F. However, it is
recognised that both these sites cause concern due to the visual impact.

Printed on recycled paper Page 45



2. Smaller sites have been identified on the A4 that could be developed as part
of an incremental approach to development. They could effectively cater for a
smaller scale provision, but would have to be combined with a future
extension to the Lansdown Park and Ride (approximately 100 spaces).

4.13 The Steering Group recognise that the site analysis has identified private land
holdings as potential options going forward. It is therefore important to note that
negotiations with the land owners would be required.

5 RATIONALE

5.1 The Council’'s Getting Around Bath Strategy and the adopted Core Strategy
indicate the need for an east of Bath Park and Ride as part of an integrated
transport solution.

6 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

6.1 The LDF Steering Group has considered all reasonable potential sites

7 CONSULTATION

7.1 The report has been considered by the Monitoring Officer and the Section 151

Officer.

8 RISK MANAGEMENT

8.1 A risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been
undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision making risk management

guidance.

Contact person

Louise Fradd 01225-395385
Lisa Bartlett 01225 477550

Green Belt impact summary matrix v3 EW B&NES
Background . East of Bath P&R - Response to Alliance Report Mott MacDonald
papers — available Final
here Draft Air Quality Assessment of East of Bath B&NES
http://WWW.t_)athneS- Consultation briefing report B&NES
qpv.uk/ services/par Bathampton Station layouts site B Mott MacDonald
king-and- Bathampton Report -Final.pdf (1589752763) Mott MacDonald
travel/transport- Bath Park and Ride_Preliminary Environmental Mott MacDonald
plans-and- Appraisal
policies/east-bath- Bath Forecasting Technical Note RevA Mott MacDonald
park-ride-proposals Bath Forecasting Report Charmy Down Box Bridge | Mott MacDonald
Bath Forecasting Report A4 Eastern Mott MacDonald
Bath East Access PT LMVR Mott MacDonald
Bath East Access Highway LMVR Mott MacDonald
Bath East Access - Visual Baseline Appraisal with Mott MacDonald
A4 Appendices
Access into Site B from A4 Mott MacDonald

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an alternative

format

Printed on recycled paper

Page 46



http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/services/parking-and-travel/transport-plans-and-policies/east-bath-park-ride-proposals
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/services/parking-and-travel/transport-plans-and-policies/east-bath-park-ride-proposals
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/services/parking-and-travel/transport-plans-and-policies/east-bath-park-ride-proposals
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/services/parking-and-travel/transport-plans-and-policies/east-bath-park-ride-proposals
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/services/parking-and-travel/transport-plans-and-policies/east-bath-park-ride-proposals
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/services/parking-and-travel/transport-plans-and-policies/east-bath-park-ride-proposals
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/services/parking-and-travel/transport-plans-and-policies/east-bath-park-ride-proposals

ook set Coundl East of Bath
Park & Rlde

) abed

LDF Steering Group
18th January 2016

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




8t abed

«neconc History of P&R East of Bath

® The first Park and Ride site was opened
at Newbridge in 1986

® A Park and Ride to the east of Bath has
been a long established policy. The
Local Plan (2007) states:

“The Council is keen to expand its
provision of Park and Ride facilities with its
Lambridge proposal on the north-eastern
edge of the city. This will provide nearly
800 more spaces and intercept traffic from
the A4 and A46.”

Bath & North Eas
Somerse L Council

Bath & North
East Somerset
Local Plan

including minerals and
waste policies

Adopted October 2007

Planning Services

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




61 abed

Bath & North East

somerse: Concil HIStOry Oof P&R East of Bath

® Location related to London Road traffic congestion
and pollution problems

® Lambridge Planning application 2005

® Full Council agree Bath Transport Package including
P&R east of Bath 2006

® Bathampton Permission granted 2009 (site F)

® Getting Around Bath Transport Strategy adopted in
2014 continued the policy for a P&R east of Bath

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



0G abed

somersec conci PAFK & Ride

Why is there a
transport problem?

Why Park & Ride?

What are the
consequences?

What’s the solution?

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




TS abed

Bath & North East
Somerset Council

1. Why is there a
transport problem?

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

® 62,000 people travel
to work in Bath or
work elsewhere

~ ® Over the whole day,

-~ 12% of traffic entering
the city centre on the
strategic network is
through traffic. The
rest, 88%, will stop in
Bath.

2S abed

Source:
2011 Census
BTS Supporting Document

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



et~ Where do the 22,000 people who drive
2omerse Cound to work in Bath come from?

L
5 o o /Q = 80
o o (o]
02 9‘3“0
, © 0 40
b o
o o
o 90
o S
7 Mg o
o
5 ©
«Q
D ] @
o o O
g vl © e o
>
b o
° o
“o
Source:
X 2011 Census
Somerset
Levels and ;. =
Moors
g
oy
o o
&

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Bath & North East Where do people come from
Somerset Council WhO use our Park & Ride?

G abed

Source:
B&NES
2015P &R
Surveys

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




GG abed

Bath & North East Where do people come from
Somerset Council who use our Pal‘k & Ride?

N . e
ik
KEY : ¥ on [DlStevenag
Park and Ride Usage . Tl

[@] 21-Newbridge
[[@7] 3t-Lansdown
IE 41 - Ddd Down

[] eanesBoundary

Aok
\ﬁwb‘ndge AT
Liantwit ~— A
Major ~ ConilNepas
B'WSTOJZ Cx
4#}..-51

/
Burnham- |
on-Sesy Mendip
Minehead  Bridgwater Bay @) ; Aagy

\%, Farnham i)

. R T T Source:
y lo ) Hayli Linlehampmn Newh B&NES
’{-Ll X ST /R > : ¢

: A = BﬂIG-‘C};‘NOL HOVE
'!‘- q’, i Numbered unitary areas: 201 5 P & R

11 POOLE
Poole Bay 21 BOURNEMOUTM

24 CITY OF SOUTHAMPTON SU rveyS
Swanage Isle of 38 CITY OF PORTSMOUTH

Wight ISLE OF WIGHT 26 READING

2T WOKINGHAM
S Aldbedm’s or St Cagherine’s |5LE OF W]GHT 28 BRACKNELL FOREST

St Afban's Head Point 29 WINDSOR AND MAIDENHEAD
3 SLOUGH

A5z
Abbotsbu Tl asa Wool ‘g
L 3z Corfe Castle Q 4,

Lyme Bay ot
MRTMOOR Tracey S ] Chickerel ™\ weymouth

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




9G abed

Percentage of Respondents

Bath & North East

somerset Council - Pjstance Travelled by Commuters to

70% ~

60% -

50% -

40% -

30% -

20% -

10% -

0%

Park and Ride

m Park and Ride

m Car Parks

Source:
B&NES
2009 Parking
Surveys

<1 1-3 3-6 6-12 12 - 31 31-62 62-124 124+
Distance (miles)

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




)G abed

Bath & North East

Somerset Council JOurney PurpOse — Park and Ride

50% ~

45% -

40% -

35% -

30% -

Percentage

15% -

10% -

5% -

0% -

25% -

20% -

m Weekday

m Saturday
Source:
B&NES
2009 Parking
Surveys

Commuter Social/ Tourism Shopping Education Health Business Other
Leisure Purpose

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




gG abed

soznon e (Gan public transport meet this
challenge?

® How many of the 20,000 motorists can
be persuaded to use public transport?

® Are bus services available for these
journeys?

® Are train services available for these
journeys?

® Journeys into Bath will grow in the future

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



Bath & North East
Somerset Council

2. Why Park & Ride?

65 abed

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




09 abed

Bath & North East

Somerset Council Park & Rides Work

® Over a 12 month period

©® Newbridge Park and
Ride has been full 72
Times

® Odd Down Park and
Ride has been full 8
Times

® Lansdown Park and
Ride has been full 23
times

® In total there are 2,777
park and ride spaces

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




T9 abed

Total Weekly Passengers

90,000
—e—2012/13
80.000 —a—2013/14
+—2014/15 ,\
Bath Half
—a—2015/16
70.000 e Marathon L
Februa
60,000 halfterg

50,000

40,000

30,000

20,000

AhLL School T
Holidays Heavy Snow

—NO=TOLOMNMNDOOAO—~NMOTVLON~NOD

e e e g g — g——

20




Bath & North East Park & Ride use

Somerset Council

1,000,000
900,000
800,000 -
700,000 -
600,000

= 2009/10
2010/11
500,000 - m2011/12
400,000 2012/13
300.000 m2013/14
2014/15
200,000
100,000
O [ | |

Newbridge Lansdown Odd Down

2008/09

29 abed
| | | |

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




9 abed

Bath & North East

Somerset Council City Centre Parking

® The total incoming traffic is estimated to be
around 40,000 daily, mostly to shop or
work

® Peak times challenges are:
® University Open Days
® Christmas
® Events such as Festivals and Rugby

(source Bath Transport Strategy Supporting Document p47 —
Inner Cordon 2013).

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




9 abed

snereccons 2015 Christmas Case Study

Saturday 5" December 2015
By 10:30 car parks in Bath and the Park and Ride sites were 85% full
(their practical capacity). The car parks were 85% full or over until 17:00

120%

€ >

100%

Source:
B&NES VMS
80% Parking Data

Includes:

60% Avon Street
Charlotte Street
Southgate

40% - Kingsmead
Sports Centre

Newbridge P&R
Lansdown P&R

20% 0Odd Down P&R

%> +———FFF"——"""""—T"T"T—"T—7T T T T T "7 T T T T T

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




G9 abed

Bath & North East

Somerset Council FUture Demand for Parking

Future housing and job growth, planned in
the Core Strategy, will need an estimated
5,700 parking spaces. This assumes a
significant modal shift

With city centre redevelopment, and car
parks running at 90% usage, there is a net
shortfall of approximately 1,600 spaces

This growth in demand for parking will result
in greater use of Park & Ride

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




99 abed

Bath & North East RO Utes

Somerset Council

Where are people driving from and to via which routes?

® A4 London Road : Approx. 23,000 vehicles in both
directions per day

©® A4 Lower Bristol Road: 11,500
® A36 Warminster Road: 8,000
® Upper Bristol Road: 15,500

® Wellsway A367: 17,500

® Brassknocker Hill: 10,000

® B3110 Midford Road: 10,000
® Kelston Road: 6,500

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




)9 abed

oo Enterprise Area modelling - Park
Somerset Council .
and Ride

® The modelling report concludes:

“The existing network within Bath is congested now in the
weekday peak periods, and whilst some ‘committed’ or
‘currently under construction’ highway schemes are included in
the EA tests none of these will radically alter the network
capacity. As the EA is expected to take up a large proportion of
the expected rail patronage change projected, it is clear that
enhanced park and ride around the city will be an
absolutely essential requirement which the Transport
Strateqy will need to deliver.”

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




g9 abed

Bath & North East
Somerset Council

3. What are the
consequences?

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



2015 Park and Ride Survey

If no park and ride were available, how else would you
have made your journey today?

1.0%_ _0.6%

m BICYCLE
mBUS
m CAR
m NO JOURNEY UNDERTAKEN
B NO ANSWER
B MOTORCYCLE
M OTHER P&R
m TAXI
TRAIN
m WALK

69 abed

Survey of nearly 2,200 P&R users



0/ abed

e GONsequences of no Park

Somerset Council

| and Ride to the East

® Loss of trade to other urban
centres

® More difficult to deliver
Enterprise Area

® Pollution

® Congestion

® Impact on World Heritage
Site

©® Reputational damage

® Unpredictable journey times

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




T/ abed

Bath & North East
Somerset Council

4. What’s the solution?

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Z/) abed

Bath & North East PO I icy Fra mewo rk

Somerset Council

Policy GABP8: Getting Around Bath Transport
Strategy

® Establish the need for increased Park and Ride capacity as
part of a wider parking strategy and to undertake a detailed
assessment of sites to the East of the City, with an initial
bus based facility if needed while a railway site is
developed.

Placemaking Plan Policy ST6: Park & Ride

® Covers environmental assets, impact on road network,
mobility needs and Green Belt issues

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




¢/ abed

=osnones (Getting Around Bath
Transport Strategy

® A package of integrated measures

® Focus on making Bath the most walkable
city in the UK

® Improved cycling facilities

® More Park & Ride spaces

® More and improved car free routes

® Improved local and regional rail sevices
© Better public transport

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




¥/ abed

smesecconcl - LE@AKNING from Best Practise

® The East of Bath Park and
Ride is part of an integrated
package of measures within
Getting Around Bath

® Other locations have
successfully introduced long
term transport strategies
which can be replicated in
Bath.

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




G/ abed

Bath & North East
Somerset Council

B&NES Achievements

Awarded best
performing authority in
the country by the
National Highways and
Transport Network for
Good Park and Ride
schemes in 2013 and
2015!

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




9/ abed

Bath & North East

Somerset Council Case StUd ies

Nottingham

® Nottingham City Council and Nottinghamshire
County Council working together.

: E; X" Nottingham g\ Nottinghamshire
&= City Council
® Comprehensive programme of

improvements, to support the economy and
improve the environment

® 4,000 P&R spaces on 9 sites

County Council

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




) ) abed

Bath & North East

—mescone AN INtegrated Strategy

® Linking land use and transport planning to
deliver sustainable housing and
employment growth

® Reducing carbon emissions
® Supporting healthier lifestyles

® Addressing inequality and improving
access to opportunities
® Working with stakeholders and the public

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




g/ abed

ssmerec concl NOttingham Achievements
® P&R capacity increased to 4,000 spaces on 9 sites located
around the city
® Rall station developed as a transport hub
® Recently extended world class NET tram network

© Smart ticketing that allows users unlimited use of bus and
tram services for £5 per day

©® Buses operated by two award-winning operators

® Workplace Parking Levy (the UK’s only such scheme, used
to help fund improvements such as NET)

® Improvements for cycling

® Improvements for walking

© Better traffic management and road safety initiatives
® Travel planning and smarter travel

® Consistent and comprehensive marketing

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




6/ abed

SO Winchester
Challenges

© Relatively compact city with
45,000 population

® Constrained historic core

® High in-commuting

© Traffic problems at peak times
or if M3 diversions in place

® Mixed use city centre
redevelopment planned but yet
to be delivered successftully

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




anseats Winchester Park and
Ride

® First P&R sites well used.
Extensive landscaping means
that the car parks are not
Intrusive

® Second P&R site shares the
cross-city dedicated bus service
with the other P&R sites

©® Additional P&R site with 200
spaces to open in early 2016

08 abed

® Central area parking prices raised and quantity
reduced with some reallocation from long stay to short
sta

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




18 abed

Bath & North East

Somerset Council Wi n C heSter Ac h ievements

® P&R capacity increased will have 1,850
spaces on 4 sites

® More cycling facilities provided

® Winchester Walking Strategy
developed

® Bus services improved with more
frequent services, new vehicles and
now commercial evening services

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Bath & North E
Sgawerse:)gouﬁcs:;cl Su m m a ry

In this meeting we have discussed:

1. Why is there a transport problem?
2. Why Park & Ride?

3. What are the consequences?

4. What's the solution?

28 abed

Next meeting (22" February) we plan to discuss:
1. High level review of the sites including LDF comments/requests
from meeting 1.
2. Forecast demand
3. Benefits and disadvantages of potential sites to include:-
deliverability/cost/environmental and transport issues
4. Officer summary and possible next steps.

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Comorset Coundl East of Bath
Park & Ride
| " W\

eg abed

LDF Steering Group
oth February 2016

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Bath & North East

Somerset Council I n t r O d u Ctl O n

In this meeting we plan to discuss:

2. The high level review of the sites

2. Benefits and disadvantages of potential sites to
Include deliverabillity/cost/environmental and
transport issues

3. Officer summary and possible next steps

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Bath & NorthEase . Headline comments from consultation on
Somerset Council )
3 possible P&R East of Bath

® P&R not required

@ Support for P&R

®@ Potential to have Rall link

® visual Impact

Impact on AONB/Green Belt

® Impact on WHS and setting (both negative
and positive)

@ impact on river/flooding/ecology

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit






pac&North East \AJork carried out since Full Council

» 8 previous sites and 5 new sites proposed for
consideration

* Transport performance
Landscape assessment
Ecological assessment
Archaeological assessment
Heritage impact assessment
» Green Belt assessment

* Deliverabillity

LqPbed g

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Bath & North East

Somerset Council LOCaI Communlty Ben eflt

@Contributes to Strategic Green Infrastructure
networks (e.g. River Corridor linear park)

®Provides opportunities for walking and
¢ cycling (into Bath and into wider countryside,

0o

" links to circular walk)
@Tourism/Leisure opportunities
@Opportunity to improve local transport
@Deliver a biodiversity positive site

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



ottt 10w

g
Brockham Eng
Q
@)
@D
[00]
©
P
et 4
Wed

s frn

ety
rase e

Possible east of Bath P&R sites

- - - -
g bedt e
[oarps 8
Lo
Harrwed
Tadwick
3 x ] Y vy
“ —//-\,
4 . 5 1 c My (e
R i - - g
Upper Lavgydge % — |

Lang dge Aboman e <

-

>

=

\
°
-
B A )
Woakey
e
FNADAY s e
Lareudoren + 441 o (o
G . Uppes
e BT
X
.
- 4 Mg Bet Do S 3 \
e o X \
| L “~
-t ’ ™
Crariconmtoe < - \
Lower Shprgd
1
§
Prirscowe 18 3
Lanidown
Wrston Park Son na

)

1 v

e
P

g P

Lttle Sanbauy e

e

RS-

At

e~ —

Cntap

i
St Carheniea
Ladge Faer %
e i
e b ¢
J
!
e
Pu——— -
[
i
| .- . 4
The time
Neoryrwed
4
2 .
s 3
)
ey
3

— Rnthiarg

PN

Wt bt ot

Meomze




List of 15 sites to be considered

Site A Land east of A4/A46

Site A+ Land west of A4/A46

Site B & B+ Land west of Mill lane

Site C Charmy Down

Site E Bathford

Site F & F+ Land east of Mill lane

S%e G Lansdown P&R

Site H Bathampton Junction

Site H + Bathampton Junction

Site | Box Bridge

Site 2 Land at Broadlands farm

Site 4 Land north of Box Road

Site 5 Land off A46 between Swainswick & Bailbrook
Site 6 Bath Race course

Site 7 Land at Lambridge Sports Ground






somerset comcl S1t€@ A Transport

® Close to the city

@ Site has sufficient capacity about 1,100 spaces
® Poor access onto London Road West

@ Financially deliverable

® Potential delays at the A46/A4 roundabout

® Congestion impacts due to location of site and
Its associated access

® Site not owned by the Councill

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



T Site A Landscape, Ecology, Heritage

Somerset Council & ArChaEOIOglcal |mp||Cat|0nS
® Landscape

® Risk of a high negative impact on WHS & WHS setting and
AONB setting. Not in AONB

® Flooding
® Site prone to flooding
® Ecology

g © River Avon SNCI, minor negative impact
“® Limited opportunity for on-site mitigation

® Heritage & Archaeological implications
® Presence of Roman archaeology

® Risk of a high negative impact on settings of WHS, CA and
Listed Buildings

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



ahdeas Site A Green Belt

® Purpose 1 - moderate/high impact as would contribute to
growth/sprawl! of Bath (but restricted by roads/development)

©® Purpose 4 — high impact as it would harm setting/special
character of Bath

Purposes 2 & 3 and local purpose — lower impact as does

“not cause merger with another town and urban fringe
nature/location

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit







somerset comcl S1t€@ A+ Transport

@ Close to the city

® Low capacity without decking without
decking

£ Potential Congestion impacts due to
" location of site and its associated access
and exit points

® Potential delays at the A46/A4 roundabout
® Site not owned by the Councll

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



sath&North East SIt€@ A+ Landscape, Ecology, Heritage

Somerset Council . . . ]
& Archaeological implications
® Landscape

® High negative impact overall. Not in AONB
© Difficult to mitigate if decked

® Ecology
® River Avon SNCI, minor negative impact
® Limited opportunity for on-site mitigation

@iﬂi—leritage & Archaeological implications

©® Presence of Roman archaeology

® Risk of high negative impact on WHS, CA and Listed
Buildings

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




B W EF i
B . ‘aJ' \ I ¥y ) T
s F
Sports Field B | Ay
. Y

..;':«. * v Q&" 3 "
BHortioultural ™ 77
Field 7




Bath & North East

Somerset Council Slte B Transport

® Site has sufficient capacity about 1,400
®@ Potential for a future Park & Rall service

® Ease of access and abillity to intercept from
key traffic routes

@ New access is required onto A4

® Access issues to be discussed further with
Highways England

® Site not owned by the Councll

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



=nanomes Olt€ B Landscape, Ecology, Heritage
emeretton? & Archaeological implications

® Landscape

® Risk of high negative impact on WHS setting and AONB
setting although not located in AONB

® Ecology

® Limited opportunity for on-site mitigation (Site B+
significant opportunity for mitigation)

® Heritage & Archaeological implications

® Presence of Prehistoric, Roman and Medieval
archaeology

® High negative impact on settings of WHS and CA

o
jab}
Q
D
=
o
o

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Bath & North East

Somerset Council Slte B Green Belt

® Purpose 1 - moderate/high impact as would
contribute to growth/sprawl of Bath (but restricted
by roads/development)

® Purpose 4 — high impact as it would harm
setting/special character of Bath

Ciz Local purpose — moderate/high impact as it would
- affect the setting of Batheaston and Bathampton

® Purposes 2 & 3 — lower impact as does not cause
merger with another town and urban fringe
nature/location

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



SN -~ y ’ i A L < :
P.v o * g !9 < B -
¥ A : €777 7thampton
Sports Fiald _ >

/
f
,I
: : _ Fam | /8
- o / k !

3
éa
s
I3%
&
\)
\
A
-:h‘:
-
& |
ag

’ 7 ,,
: /’ : ,'
A Fvufq ety & :: % e \ :
R L o 2 \ /
. . e : N "
Flf- i 2% .::: : : P‘M Ju"a‘o \ﬁﬁ‘
SRS . A : * i =1
/.’ o -_- 1'\'l :E El'- / ) $ \ \ '
o ey %2 = . 3 5 X
s " o Glen B\ i
- ¥ .

: \
Pavilion />J\ )\;\ /< Vs
\ \\ \/ o

- e (0 @R\ &
4 . = - AT e A '
// - \ Thmber "ABSks
-/’/ - fii

% A%

b \‘\ O A V2

Paviiion a0 ; e\
3 4 ®

\

N






Bath & North East

Somerset Council Slte C Transport

@ Capacity to accommodate proposed Park & Ride

up to 1,000 spaces
@ Further from Bath so possible higher costs

Possibly reduced demand due to additional

journey times for buses

Remote from A4 and A363 corridors

Difficult access due to safety concerns and
substantial engineering costs to provide a
suitable access

® Land stabllity issues on the A46

® Site not owned by the Councill

@ T

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



c——— Site C Landscape, Ecology, Heritage

somerset Council - & Archaeological implications
©® Landscape

® Risk of high negative impact on WHS setting and
AONB, introduces urban style development in highly
rural area designated for its nationally important natural
landscape beauty

©® Water protection area
Ecology

® Adjacent to Charmy Down SNCI, negative effect
unlikely

©® Heritage & Archaeological implications

® Presence of Prehistoric, Roman and Medieval
archaeology

® High negative impact on setting of WHS

GOT abed D)

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



eh&North Bt Gita C Green Belt

® Purposes 1 & 2 — limited impact as would not lead to
sprawl of Bath or merging of towns

® Purpose 4 — moderate impact as it would cause some
harm to setting/special character of Bath

® Purpose 3 — high impact as would cause encroachment
due to open nature of the site

® Local purpose — low impact as would not cause merging
of villages or affect setting

90T abed

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit







Bath & North East

Somerset Council Slte E Transport

® Conveniently sited for A4 and A363

@ If delivered in conjunction with another site on the A4 there
would be a need for a pedestrian crossing on the A4

Financially deliverable due to no exceptional engineering
costs

Site is too small less than 300 spaces, if delivered on its
own to accommodate assessed demand for Park & Ride.
However if built in conjunction with another site there could
be sufficient capacity

Site not owned by the Councll

Poor access resulting in limited visibility and road safety
ISsues

@ abed @

Q@ Q@

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




. Slte E Landscape, Ecology, Heritage

Somerset Council & ArChanlOg|Ca| |mp||Cat|OnS
@ Landscape

® Risk of high negative impact on WHS setting and
AONB setting. Not within AONB

@ Site Is prone to flooding

® Ecology

® Adjacent to By Brook SNCI and risk of impact on bats
® No opportunity for on-site mitigation due to size of site
Heritage & Archaeological implications

® Presence of Medieval and Industrial archaeology

® Medium/high negative impact on settings of WHS,
Bathford CA and Listed Buildings

0
8
@D
5
=

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Bath & North East

Somerset Council S'te E Green Belt

=)

D

@ °OFy

Purposes 1 & 2 — limited impact as would not lead to sprawl of
Bath or merging of towns as adjoins Batheaston

Purpose 4 — moderate/high impact as it would cause some
harm to setting/special character of Bath

Purpose 3 — low impact due to urban fringe nature/location

Local purpose — high/moderate impact as would harm the
setting & identity of Bathford and Batheaston

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




' Bathampton Bridge
2\ (Toll)

"B athampton
'3 5
‘Farm




Bath & North East

Somerset Council SI te F Tr an S p O rt

® Capacity to accommodate proposed Park & Ride up
to 1,400 spaces

©® Safe site access readily achievable directly onto the
A4 which has been approved by Highways England

EESite has previous planning consent and has gone
through a previous Judicial Review

® Provides good connectivity to A46, A4 and A363
® Site owned by the Councll
® No future rail based option available

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



=nanomes Olt€ F Landscape, Ecology, Heritage
emeretton? & Archaeological implications

® Landscape
® Risk of high negative impact on WHS setting and

AONB setting. Not within AONB
® Ecology

® Adjacent to River Avon SNCI, no negative effect
© Significant opportunity for on-site mitigation and
enhancement if whole site used (F+)

® Heritage & Archaeological implications

© No recorded archaeology
©® Medium/high negative impact on settings of WHS, CA

and Listed Buildings

TT abed

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




mh&NorBast - Gite F Green Belt

® Purpose 1 - moderate/high impact as it would contribute to
sprawl of Bath (albeit with small gap to city edge) and is only
restricted to south by A4

® Purpose 4 — high impact as it would harm setting/special
character of Bath

Local purpose — moderate/high impact as it would affect the
setting of Batheaston and to a lesser extent Bathampton

Purposes 2 & 3 — lower impact as would not cause merger with
another town and urban fringe nature/location

<1015
o VIIgd

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




"% sthampton
[} Farm




Bh&NorBast - Gite F+ Green Belt

® P&R development impact against Green Belt
purposes would be less than site F

® Purpose 1 — impact against this purpose reduced to
moderate as land surrounding site F would serve to
restrict growth of Bath (use and ownership)

Purpose 4 — opportunities to reduce the impact on
setting of Bath to moderate

® NPPF — should plan positively for beneficial use of
land in Green Belts, including enhancing biodiversity

9596&1

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




ParkéEnd

Arlkx\/n X




Bath & North East

Somerset Council Slte G Transport
@ P&R successfully established in this location

@ Potential to use existing priority junctions

@ Options exist for further expansion of the existing site
with 400+ spaces

£ Remote from A4 and A363 corridors resulting in
= increased congestion in Bath and the A420

@ Poor access from the M4 along Freezing Hill Lane

@ Future expansion of this site may be required above
and beyond a new east of Bath P&R

@ Land owned by the Council

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




mnanones Olte G Landscape, Ecology, Heritage

—mee it & Archaeological implications
© Landscape

® Risk of high negative impact on WHS setting and
AONB
® Ecology

® Near Charlecombe & Lansdown SNCI, no negative
effect

® Limited opportunity for on-site mitigation

Heritage & Archaeological implications

® Presence of Prehistoric, Roman Medieval and
Industrial archaeology

® Medium/high negative impact on settings of WHSHCA
and Listed Building

TT abed

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




somere ol Site G Green Belt

=)

0 B @

Purposes 3 & 4 — moderate/high impact as it would lead to
encroachment due to location/open character and would
harm setting/special character of Bath

Local purpose — moderate impact as it would affect the setting
of Charlcombe, Swainswick & Woolley

Purpose 1 - moderate/low impact due to location

Purpose 2 — low impact as would not cause merger with
another town

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




. =N
\e 7] Satwampton| /
 § ) <

\ eF l:j Faft //ofs'

LA ’
‘ -

PR

- ; Pavilion

Playing Field




Bath & North East

Somerset Council Slte H Transport

® Major road and rail construction required including the
realignment of the Westbury rail line

® Prohibitively expensive — road and rall infrastructure costs
estimated at £60+m

Scheme as originally proposed cannot be delivered due to
® Lack of partner support

® Network Rail infrastructure

® Development of houses

Not supported by the rail industry

Capacity issues up to 3,000 spaces

Site is not owned by the Councll

Impact on neighbouring properties

Lack of flexibility to increase provision during busy periods

221 abeq @

Q@ 0O 00 9

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




s Norh e Site H & H+ Landscape, Ecology,
Heritage& Archaeological implications

® Landscape

® Risk of high negative impact on WHS setting and
AONB

® Flooding
@ Near to A363

£ Ecology
> @ Hampton Rocks SSSI, high negative impact

® Heritage & Archaeological implications
» Presence of Roman and Industrial archaeology

» High negative impact on settings of WHS, CA and
Listed Buildings

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



el Site H & H+ Green Belt

=)

ZA) ged
D)

Purposes 3 & 4 — moderate/high impact as it would lead to
encroachment due to open/undeveloped site and would harm
setting/special character of Bath

Local purpose — moderate/high impact as it would affect the
setting, character & identity of Bathampton

Purposes 1 & 2 - low impact as development would not result
In sprawl of Bath or merger of towns

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




&




Bath & North East

Somerset Council Slte H+ Transport

® Major road construction required including an
access road under the A4

® Prohibitively expensive due to engineering costs
associated with

® Providing a decked structure
©® Demolition of an existing farm

©® Capacity issues
® Site is not owned by the Councill
® Impact on neighbouring properties

92T abed

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




ey

O \\




Bath & North East

Somerset Council Slte I TranSpOrt

Q0 0 0 WO O O O

(1)

Convenient for A4 corridor

Remote from A46 and A363 corridors

Distance from Bath resulting in higher running costs
Additional journey times for P&R buses

Lack of capacity — site is smaller unlikely to accommodate
demand for Park & Ride between 300 — 4007

Elongated shape hinders efficient operation
Site not owned by the Councill
Expensive to deliver the site

Poor access resulting in limited visibility and road safety
ISsues

Site is located in Wiltshire

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




EnaNorhEast  Site | Landscape, Ecology, Heritage
& Archaeological implications

® Landscape

® Risk of high negative impact on WHS setting and
AONB

® No opportunity for on-site mitigation due to size of site
® Ecology

® Adjacent to By Brook SNCI, no negative effect
predicted
® Heritage & Archaeological implications

® Archaeology will need to be assessed by Wiltshire HER

® High negative impact on settings of WHS, CA and
Listed Buildings

62T abed

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Bath & North East

Somerset Council Slte I Green Belt

® Purpose 3 — moderate/high impact as it would lead to
encroachment of open/undeveloped site

Purpose 4 - would moderately harm setting/special character
of Bath

Purposes 1 & 2 - low impact as would not result in sprawl of
Bath or merger of towns

Local purpose — low impact as it would not affect the setting,
character & identity of villages

D

(0T eﬁe@

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Subwaynt“
;L“.. ._




somerset comel - Slt@ 2 Transport

® A safe access onto the A4 Is necessary.

©® Convenient for A4 corridor

® Remote from A46 and less convenient for A363

@ Further from Bath resulting in high running costs

@Addltlonal journey times for P&R buses

© Site not owned by the Councill

® Sloping site restricting capacity decking would
be required

® Small site capacity of only 200 — 3007

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



e snotiei Site 2 Landscape, Ecology, Heritage
& Archaeological implications

® Landscape
® Risk of medium to high and negative on WHS &

Cotswold AONB but potential mitigation over time with

landscape
® Impact on residential properties

T obed

® Heritage & Archaeological implications

® No recorded archaeology
® Low impact on WHS setting unless decked structure

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Bath & North East

Somerset Council Slte 2 Green Belt

» Purpose 1: Low impact. Not adjacent to
Bath

» Purpose 2: Low impact: Distance to
neighbouring towns not significantly
reduced.

» Purpose 3: Low impact. Urban fringe
ocation and close to railway.

» Purpose 4:Low impact. Limited contribution
to the setting of the WHS

» Purpose 6. High/moderate impact. Prevents
Bathford & Batheaston merging

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



st

Box Road
Gagdens




Bath & North East

Somerset Council Slte 4 Transport
® Convenient for A4 corridor

® Topographical problems limiting capacity
® Elongated shape hinders efficient operation
@ A safe access onto the A4 Is necessary.
Remote from A46 and A363 corridors

® Further from Bath potential for high running
Costs

® Site not owned by the Councll
® Capacity 300 — 400

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



Bath & North East Site 4 Landscape, Ecology, Heritage

& Archaeological implications
® Landscape

® High and negative overall given separation from

settlement, rural setting in AONB & WHS setting. Could
be worth more detailed assessment to see if an
appropriate design can be found

Heritage & Archaeological implications
® No recorded archaeology
® Low impact on WHS setting

/€T abe

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



somerses concl— Sit€ 4 Green Belt
» Purpose 1: Low impact. Site not adjacent to
Bath

» Purpose 2: Low impact. Distance to
neighbouring towns not significantly
reduced.

Purpose 3: Moderate impact. Part of
countryside, just outside fringe area

» Purpose 4. High/moderate impact.
mportant part of the WHS setting.

» Purpose 6: Low impact. Distance between
Batheaston & Ashley (Wilts) not sig reduced

NET abed

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



_{.‘ [}
N O
40D el

126m

» B 1
e ‘-'!nnsul‘l Q \




Bath & North East

Somerset Council SI te 5 Tr an S p O rt

® Suitable site not found In this area
® Remote from A4 and A363 corridors
®© Land stabllity issues on the A46
C%Site IS not owned by the Council

® Engineering costs to provide a suitable
access to the site

® Capacity issues unless more land taken

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



pch&NorthBast - Gite 5 Landscape, Ecology, Heritage
& Archaeological implications

® Landscape

® Risk of high negative impact on AONB, WHS
Setting, Little Solsbury Hill setting. Highly rural and
attractive landscape on steep slopes
® Heritage & Archaeological implications
© Presence of Prehistoric and Medieval archaeology

©® Medium/high negative impact on settings of WHS, CA
and Listed Buildings

T1T abed

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Bath & North East

Somerset Council Slte 5 Green Belt

» Purpose 1: Low impact. Site not adjacent to
Bath

» Purpose 2. Low impact. Distance to
neighbouring towns not significantly reduced.

® Purpose 3: High impact. Part of countryside,
s distant from urban area

» Purpose 4: High/moderate impact. Important
part of the WHS setting.

» Purpose 6: Low impact. Exact location
unknown. Could reduce gap between
Swainswick and Upper or Lower Swainswick

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




o Meond

Teach

.= T -

ttle Down
Sort

Nlow Mionndife

v

N

e

.

-

.“,
g

W,




Bath & North East

Somerset Council Slte 6 Transport

©® Capacity to accommodate proposed Park & Ride but
only when available i.e. no horse racing

® Remote from A4 and A363 corridors resulting in
Increased congestion in Bath and the A420

iﬁ) Poor access from the M4 along Freezing Hill Lane.
® Site not owned by the Councill

® Site will require hardstanding which will need to be
agreed both with Bath Racecourse and the golf club

® Previous discussions with Bath Racecourse to use
their site for a temporary Park and Ride site were
unsuccessful

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




camsoantet  Site 6 Landscape, Ecology, Heritage
& Archaeological implications

® Landscape

©® Hard to assess without information of periods of usage.

© Possible opportunity for additional (plateau appropriate)
tree planting to improve overall site appearance

@ Heritage & Archaeological implications

® Presence of Prehistoric, Roman and Medieval
archaeology

® Low/medium negative impact on WHS setting

GiT abed

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




e Site 6 Green Belt

»

@17[ abed

»

»

Purpose 1: Low impact. Site not adjacent to
Bath

Purpose 2: Low impact. Distance to
neighbouring towns not significantly
reduced.

Purpose 3: High impact. Part of
countryside, distant from urban area

Purpose 4: Moderate impact. Part of the
WHS setting.

Purpose 6: Low impact. Distance between
nearest villages not sig reduced

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



\ ..l

(A
4

\_House
D, o

’

/”{:'l\ \3-\‘>) /,r‘ P

-/ \
A Vs
» "\
m

Lambridge "

< > K
o
»

E N

O



Bath & North East

Somerset Council SI te 7 Tr an S p O rt

@ U 0 O D

@ 9

Permission granted in the past for Park & Ride — but limited
capacity about 700

Close to the city

Poor access onto London Road West requiring improvement
Financially deliverable due to no exceptional engineering costs
Potential delays at the A46/A4 roundabout

Congestion impacts due to location of site and its associated
access

Site is not owned by the Councill

Previous attempts to use this site as a Park and Ride site were
unsuccessful

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Bath & North East Site 7 Landscape, Ecology, Heritage
& Archaeological implications

® Landscape

® Risk of medium to high and negative impact reducing
to medium or even low and neutral with maturity of
landscaping

® Ecology
© Adjacent to River Avon SNCI

® Heritage & Archaeological implications

© Presence of Roman and Medieval archaeology

® Low impact on settings of WHS, CA and Listed
Buildings

v T abed

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Transport, Environment, Cost & Deliverability

Transport
Land east of A4/A46
Site A Red
Land west of A4/A46
Site A+ Red
S
Larrg west of Mill Lane
= Site B & B+ Green
o
Land east of Mill Lane
Site F & F+ Green
Charmy Down
Site C Red
Bathford
Site E Red
Lansdown Park and
Ride Red
Site G
Bath t ti
athampton Junction Red

Site H

Environment

Red

Red

Red

Red

Red

Red

Opportunity to

mitigate

Red

Green

Red

Red

Green Belt

Red

Green

Red

Red

Red

Red

Deliverability

Red

Red

Green

Red

Red

Red



Bath & North East . . ‘-
Somerset Council  Transport, Environment, Cost & Deliverability

Opportunity to

Transport Environment o Green Belt Deliverability
mitigate
Bathampton Junction
e Red Red Red Red
Site | Box Bridge Red Red Red Red
Land at Broadlands Farm
Site 2 Red Red
Lan§J North of Box Road
S Site 4 Red
=
o1
[EEN
Land off A46 between
Swainswick & Bailbrook Red Red Red Red Red
Site 5
Land at Bath Race course
Site 6 Red Red
Land at Lambridge Sports
Ground Red Green Red

Site 7

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Possible east of Bath P&R sites

ey
f o b

e - . - r 23 propre— T
Froeaing bedt - T
[oarps 8
Lo
Harrwed
- - Ay e
Comm et 10w .
nowery -~
nase b
[Eerpe
Tadwick
e
- N ovews fom " Ads
Hagng % ¥
¥
\ —//-\, St Carhericn
A - e 1 c P | g
Ladge Faer %
Brocham Eng \/
‘o 7
iY) et i - S ,
~ —
QD Uppet Langrudge % el ]
(@] Langrdge Mbeoman e < F )
- Mcomie
® '
*
3 apo
- \. Catlamges
[é)] ) Gt
-
Lo
- Bt
L L e
. 7% Catraye
by a4 ™
~ . ] .- .
i The Iwme
Wooley et Neorthwed
e { < By o
s o N 3 SADCHOrwch
Pyt s
Laroatoen 451 3 g /
v { :
G \ Uppee ; : e a4
4 WSRO - :
o Lttle Sonbury e . v
: - e ¥
3 3
“ %\ \ & s
. 4 s e dm 3 \ g
\ o K \ —
" - g 2 A
g ls st - e
Crarcomte K ! A\ Daiteoo :
Lowes Sy
T F+
R | — Rathang
Wed
1
o
4 .
- =
\ :
Prirscowe 18 3
Lanidown 5
J b,
! . Ashampecn / Wt et v . borng o
~ / J -
- /
o Son na /
Virston Park warminiteren, /
| S



Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



Bath & North East
Somerset Council

: Questions and next steps for
meeting 22"9 February

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



Where do people come from who use our Park & Ride
and what are they doing?

21 - Newbridge - Business
21 - Newbridge - Commuter

21 - Newbridge - Haalth

21 - Newbridge - Shopping

21 - Newbridge - SocialiLeisure
21 Newbridge « Other

31 - Lansdown - Business

31 - Lansdown - Commuter

31 - Lansdown - Health

31 - Lansdown - Shopping

31 - Lansdown - SociallLeisure
31 - Lansdown - Other
41-0dd Down - Business

[ A | 41-0ddDown . Commutar

« Odd Down - Health




WVHETE.

Somerset Council

d0 people come from who use our Park & Ride

and what are they doing?

WY X J ¥ R B\ VA O Dk S 7P A - A L~
KEY : b G le&m o> P ngtan ~ L.» lnmi‘nm; ostertl L\/ i ’(M‘ Southyin & i o ha
) [ L S/GOUNTY O Aot i~ 7
A e P R Brovfyand e e N¢ AMPTIVU) Oy
PR Survey Trip Purpose v 20 oy ‘-.._,‘;rr.;". 3 il o :?n":gu i 5\\ ' 'R jremand Wy
(k¢ an-md 2 D Y YET e i -\h X ) Sverstone
[[@] 21-Newbriage - Business a7 Wis wN ey, v M G
) et |
[[@] 21-Newbridge - Commuter Jandoyery £ ) ! l.zm:f“"‘ o
m 21 - Newbridge - Health Nl;! p oo Brecon '3 o ! Q’ A fﬁ’ : . ekinghanm an
24 3 A\ o o) M ) e the-Wold ) Wslow Lo
- Newbridge - Shopping \ ALY PenyFon 3B ) -on \ Itenham 3
: ( "wc:ms Fii g O | 3R PSS ~
III 21 - Newbridge - Social/Leisure G N S 5 Glo ,’ /)
[[@7] 21-Newbridge - Other ol A dedorig
r5a
[Il 31 - Lansdown - Business ‘*" e h
A BB TN BN
EUM « Lansdown - Commuter \ ’&2-""’ u:; V JM
Egm Lansdown - Health 1 oo an ¢
[(@ P 31 - Lansdown - Shopping ;‘J'v)"t’iv;j e s -
[ EM - Lansdown - SociallL eisure o g & ) Sre
AR
[® P31 - Lansdown - Other N\ nd? k) "~ CARDIFF : R
R S Tiyas o ;
[CA”] #1-0dd Down - Business \nm g *" 2 Soerarts, ,:&.
[I] 41 - Odd Down - Commuter ‘w“"‘"‘ s Bany A Ert
[[A7] # -0dd Down - Healtn BRIST O, : ¢
""M,El -/ lb-v-t-'\ ! 4 &ﬂ
[CA7] #1-0dd Down - Shopping AaLU-me 2 SULREY R
[[A] #1-0dd bown - SocialiLeisure il Sl k) :
[CA"] 41-0dd Down - Other A
[] eanesBoundary
m( H0s
Msmﬁwweoom

.3

B Crowherpde W \ sz Sty Fordisgh g |
By - ) L, \ Hewton = f
e €. M ; ( 2 by s
N4 o
FE_ mishter I8 Forum — -
7 Aary)idnter Covseds RSET’,,- Littiehampton
Cormwall 7 \dgon) Nakben dctbetowr >
Mlﬂ_l; g5 §'“-"1j: f* mnl 3 Ady =
Tintagel ' i u :L_/-/' ly'"e TING 2 A
L ’9"@ s o, Seaton Ragin S = 1‘“ am £ ,)Q nemouth
/ 2o X " Weol Foole By L
,rl.m Devan Abbotsbie 2 A
':\.“v / N» !"""‘ “"r M > cn"'(‘mh“l A i .Mi" ' Y‘. l‘;::“l:":‘nh
/ o ~ gm‘l Swanege fale o \N TN
[Padsow ° ekl Weymouth Wight Neee®’ SLE OF WIGHT a

. e sominer |SLE OF WIGHT B SRACORELL FOREDS

outh Formneawall N ) frirme i 5
n_:;'\:.'.m_. Aoy 2 ¥ Portland B el ): vﬁ\gxlnln ARD MRTIENHE

Y ]
TORBAY
R P gpe— - R AL VXTITEEW




200%

180%

160%

140%

120%

Bath & NARRUal Daily Maximum Percentage Capacity (excluding
Somerset Council Sundays)
Pre and Post Expansion of Park and Ride Sites

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Annual Average Daily Maximum
Capacity 2015

® Pre Expansion of Park and Ride Sites
@ 84%

®92% (excluding Sundays)

8GT abed

@ Post Expansion of Park and Ride Sites
@57%
®63% (excluding Sundays)

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



ook set Coundl East of Bath
Park & Rlde

6GT abed

LDF Steering Group
22"d February 2016

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Bath & North East

Somerset Council OUtIine Of presentation

\ ‘\ ‘§
\g, ‘f ~ ©® Consideration of each of the
| potential site locations
A ,-~-'cl\ﬂ 1,5 deter.mined by the previous
meeting

® Demand forecasts
® Engineering feasibility
3 ® Environmental impacts
.. " ® Air quality impacts

© Site combinations

09T abed

= . uaé

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




T9T abed

Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Key Considerations

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




2971 abed

Bath & North East

somerse: conci - K@Y Considerations for P&R

® Accords with Community Alliance views regarding need
to address transport problems

©® Location — sites need to be attractive to potential users
©® Sites need to have clear access from key corridors

® Capacity — sites need to be large enough to be viable
® Land acquisition — negotiation or CPO

® A Business Case will be needed for any scheme to
justify public spending

@ Costs include excavation/earthworks, construction,
drainage, lighting, access to the highway, amenities

building, mitigation measures, landscaping, fees plus
risks, contingencies etc..

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




€97 abed

Bath & North East

sonesecConcl - (GOMbiNing P&R sites

® Some combinations of sites may be necessary

® To provide adequate capacity
® Use of same P&R bus service

® Informing users of car park occupancy with variable
message signing

©® Revenue support needed if sites are further away
and need more buses

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




¥9T1 abed

Bath & North East

somerse: Concil - EVIl@nce of P&R demand

® To develop P&R schemes, robust evidence is

required with the use of a transport model

® Prescribed approach to multi-modal modelling (DfT Transport
Analysis Guidance — WebTAGQG)

® Extensive data collection — origin and destination surveys (road
side interviews), household interview surveys, rail and bus user
interview surveys, etc.)

® Used to build base case with validation against observed data
® Forecasting for future scenarios

©® Demand forecasts
® A4 Batheaston Bypass P&R sites with/without RUH service
©® Box Bridge site
® Charmy Down/A46 site

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




G9T abed

Bath & North East

Somerset Council EVidence

@ Sites A/B/F

® Indicative demand forecast 850 to 970 spaces per
day

@ Additional service to RUH additional demand 370 to
430 spaces per day

® Charmy Down site demand forecast 500 to 570 spaces
per day

© Box Bridge demand forecast 390 to 450 spaces per day

® Air quality dispersion model used to indicate air quality
Impacts

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Site Locations

99T abed

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Bath & North East

Somerset Council Areas Of IntereSt

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Bath & North E -
Sgtmerse'?gouﬁzﬁ Slte A+

89T abed

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




69T abed

Bath & North East

Somerset Council Site A+ indicative IayOUt

I- -‘--
-. '--.
5 L
L, __h-.. "
B! _'-|"-_ B
.\-'-.. a.--'-
L) .,
[ =
"-._. o
) 4
& %
r "\-.__-
LN o "-..
£ . y
e

-

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




0.7 abed

Bath & North East

Somerset Council Site A+

©® Decking on four storeys but capacity limited — up to 300
spaces per level, potential up to 1,200

® Car access from A4/A46 roundabout or London Road but
congestion impacts likely - Highways England approval
needed

©® Bus stop on London Road adjacent to site
©® Extensive earthworks and construction

® Visual impacts may be softened with appropriate design
and complementary measures

® Some water, hydrology and drainage risks; partly within
Flood Zones 2 and 3

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




T/T abed

Bath & North East

Somerset Council Site A+

® Within WHS

® Land acquisition difficult due to current ownership
arrangements

© Risks to protected species and nature conservation would
be minimised with appropriate mitigation measures

® Noise and vibration risks could be minimised with
appropriate mitigation measures

® Air quality impacts are likely to be substantially adverse —
queuing traffic, proximity of site to houses/recreation
spaces

©® Forecast weekday demand 1,472 vehicles/day — includes
some demand that would otherwise use Lansdown R&R

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




2.1 abed

Bath & North East =
Somerset Council Slte A+
©® Estimated 10 min bus journey time, 3 P&R buses

© Estimated indicative construction cost (current prices)
£XXX million

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




€)1 abed

Bath & North East

Somerset Council Site H+

Site H+: Bathampton Junction

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Site H+ indicative layout

(open)

Page 174

[ 1 | B B b B

ki

1L

P rh= ppor

5=
A
>
©
C
©
h
S
o
=
)
=
O
e
O,
&)
©
Q.
IS
I~
_
e
o
(90
S
o
S
o
0p)
e
N
qv)
LL
L
T
O
Z
©
C
©
L
)
(0
m




G/ T abed

Site H+ indicative layout
(structure)

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



Bath & North East

Somerset Council Site H+ access arrangements

9/ 1 abed

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




1/ T abed

Bath & North East

Somerset Council Site H +

©® Multi-storey structure capacity up to 650 spaces per level
©® Open car park capacity approximately 1,040 spaces

©® New access from A4 Batheaston Bypass — may encroach
into Site F — need form Highways England approval

® New structure under A4 Bypass

® Structure(s) under Great Western Main Line - need for
Network Rail approval

® Extensive earthworks and construction

©® Some water, hydrology and drainage risks; within Flood
Zones 2 and 3

®© Likely to be considerable visual impact

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




8/ 1 abed

Bath & North East

Somerset Council Site H +

® Within Cotswolds AONB

©® Above ground heritage assets and potential high quality
buried archaeological remains but mitigation measures
possible

© Risks to protected species and nature conservation would
be minimised with appropriate mitigation measures

® Noise and vibration risks could be minimised with
appropriate mitigation measures

® Air quality impacts are likely to be insignificant —
Intercepting traffic, roundabout congestion alleviated,
housing not nearby; no further exceedances of national
air quality objectives

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




6.1 abed

Bath & North East

Somerset Council Site H+

©® Forecast weekly demand 1,245 vehicles/day
©® Estimated 14 min bus journey time, 4 P&R buses

© Estimated indicative construction cost (current prices)
£XXX million for multi-storey structure or £XXX million for
conventional layout with tunnelling beneath railway, slip
roads, earthworks, etc.

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




08T abed

Bath & North East

Somerset Council Sites On A4

s

y

4 —land north of Box Road

Site

Y

w
-~ e

N~ 1 =
L] N .
y AN P
e ol 4

oy "It: : F

& N

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




TQT abed

Bath & North East

Somerset Council Sites On A4

® All proposed sites similar in transport terms
® Addresses demand from A4 corridor only

@ Extensive excavation into hillside to construct multi-
storey structure

® May need space for buses
® New traffic signal junctions

® All sites are within Cotswolds AONB

® Limited water, hydrology and drainage risks

©® Site 10 is partly within Flood Zone 3

© Sites 4 and 8 may require the acquisition of private
property

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




28T abed

Bath & North East

Somerset Council Sites on A4

©® Above ground heritage assets and potential high quality
buried archaeological remains for Sites 4, 8 and 10 but
mitigation measures possible

© Risks to protected species and nature conservation would
be minimised with appropriate mitigation measures

® Noise and vibration risks could be minimised with
appropriate mitigation measures

® Air quality impacts are likely to be less than A+ but more
than H+ due to lower demand, number of P&R buses and
bus type, no additional traffic through Batheaston; no
further exceedances of national air quality objective

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




€8T abed

Bath & North East

Somerset Council Sites On A4

©® Estimated 18 min bus journey time, 4 P&R buses
(c.£540,000 per year)

©® Site 8 estimated indicative construction cost (current
prices) £XXX million for decked structure, access etc.

® Site 10 estimated indicative construction cost (current
prices) £XXX million

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




¥8T1 abed

Bath & North E -
Sgtmerse'?gouﬁzﬁ Slte 4

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




GgT abed

Bath & North E -
Sgtmerse'?gouﬁzﬁ Slte 8

® Capacity approx. 300 cars per layer on 3 laye

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Site 10

Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Page 186

1,360 cars on open site

® Capacity approx

5=
2
>
O
C
©
X
p -
o
=
)
=
O
]
)
&)
©
o
2
I~
_
-
o
wn
S
o
&
o
0p)
-
N
©
LLl
L
T
o
Z
©
-
©
i
—
(4v)
m




/8T abed

Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Combinations of Sites

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




88T abed

scnaNorh Bt yamand for site combinations

Scenario

Site A+

Site H+

Forecast Weekday Demand
(vehicles/day)

1,472 Includes some that would
otherwise use Lansdown P&R

1,245

Site 3 or Site 4 or Site 9 or Site 10 815

Sites 4 and 8 together

Site A+ with Site 4 and Site 8

923

1,626 A+ is not used by traffic from east
in AM Peak (may be due to delays at
A4/A46 roundabout); site is used by traffic
from south via A363; attracts demand
from Lansdown P&R

Site G+ (Lansdown extension) with 923 Modelling indicates that Lansdown

Site 4 and Site 8

occupancy is not higher than current
capacity so no expansion required



68T abed

Bath & North East

Somerset Council NeXt Ste ps

® You asked us to look at the sites discussed today
with further information

® Please advise officers which sites(s) need to be
iInvestigated further

® Agree a further meeting to discuss the findings

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




This page is intentionally left blank



ook set Coundl East of Bath
Park & Rlde

T6T abed

LDF Steering Group
21st March 2016

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Bath & North East

Somerset Council OUtIine Of presentation

® Consideration of each of the
potential site locations in light
of Council resolution.

® feasibility and deliverability
of each site option;

® costs associated with each
site option;

® The transport benefits of
each site option;

® The visual impact of each
site option.

26T abed

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




€6T abed

Bath & North East

Somerset Council CounCiI reSOIUtion:

® that the cross-party Local Development Framework
Steering Group review all the options for the location of
an East of Bath Park & Ride prior to Cabinet selecting a
preferred site early next year,

® Site A+
® Site H+
©® Site 10
©® Site B
©® Site F
® Site F+

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




v6T abed

Bath & North East

Somerset Council COSts

® Excludes land costs. Development costs are indicative
estimates at 2016 prices. Further analysis will be
required to refine the cost estimates

©® The repayment costs of borrowing £23m would be
between £920,000 and £1.6m per annum depending on
the repayment period (50 or 20 years respectively). The
existing P&R contract provides a contribution of
£500,000/annum

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Bath & North E -
Sgtmerse'?gouﬁzﬁ Slte A+

G6T abed

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




96T abed

Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Site A+ Land to the
west of the A4/A46
Junction

The feasibility and The costs associated
deliverability of each  with each site option;
site option;

Highway England EXXXm (minimum)
approval required. AQ  (excludes land
impacts —ve purchase)

Land ownership mostly
DfT would appear to
own the land
Additional congestion
on A4/A46 roundabout

Site A+

The transport The visual impact of
benefits of each site each site option.
option;

Well placed to attract High negative impact
users from both A4 and overall.

A46 corridors. Forecast High negative impact
demand 1,472 vehicles on WHS

per weekday.

Capacity up to 1,200

on four decks

Other environmental factors
to consider

Negative impact on air quality
Difficult to mitigate if decked
Not in AONB but located in
WHS

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




/6T abed

Bath & North East

Somerset Council Site A+ indicative IayOUt

I- -‘--
-. '--.
5 L
L, __h-.. "
B! _'-|"-_ B
.\-'-.. a.--'-
L) .,
[ =
"-._. o
) 4
& %
r "\-.__-
LN o "-..
£ . y
e

-

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




86T abed

Park & Ride Opfions

Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Sketch view

LOCOTion ¢35howsaeneralonec--onoumcnw-ew

Site A+ Land west of A4 / A46

Photograph

Please note that these diagrams are for illustrative purposes only & are not to scale.







Bath & North East
Somerset Council

- Bathampton Junction

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Site H+ indicative layout

(open)

Page 201

[ 1 | B B b B

ki

1L

P rh= ppor

5=
A
>
©
C
©
h
S
o
=
)
=
O
e
O,
&)
©
Q.
IS
I~
_
e
o
(90
S
o
S
o
0p)
e
N
qv)
LL
L
T
O
Z
©
C
©
L
)
(0
m




20z abed

Site H+ indicative layout
(structure)

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



Bath & North East

Somerset Council Site H+ access arrangements

€0z abed

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




¥0¢ abed

Park & Ride Opftions

Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Solsbury Hill

¥

i W sc

uh
‘l
\ o,
S
g

I |i g ,'l:.'l [

Obligue derial view extracted from Google Earth (t]'snom.genemn direction af sketeh view

Photograph Locahon

-
9
——

Q

-

=
=,

-

Q
e

Q

=

O
<
-

O
eh
+
- =
E
7

Please note that these diograms are for illustrative purposes only & are not to scale.




G0z abed

Bath & North East

Somerset Council S ite H +

Site H+
Bathampton
Junction bus
based

The feasibility The costs The transport The visual impact Other environmental
and deliverability associated with benefits of each  of each site factors to consider
of each site each site option; site option; option.
option;
Highway England & £XXXm(minimum) Site of adequate High negative Flood risk
and Network Rail - £51.4m capacity for either  impact overall. Located in AONB
approval required.  (minimum decked) surface (1,040 Hard to mitigate and very
Flooding (excludes land spaces) or multi- difficult if decked
Impact on Grade Il  purchase) storey (650 spaces
LB. Land per level) car park.
acquisition Forecast demand
required. 1,245 vehicles per

weekday.

Does not preclude
future option of
being accessed
additionally by rail.

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Site 10

Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Page 206

1,360 cars on open site

® Capacity approx

5=
2
>
O
C
©
X
p -
o
=
)
=
O
]
)
&)
©
o
2
I~
_
-
o
wn
S
o
&
o
0p)
-
N
©
LLl
L
T
o
Z
©
-
©
i
—
(4v)
m




10z abed

Park & Ride O

Bath & North East
Somerset Council

¥

IONS

Solsbury Hill e
) P N\
L] ; A Y
'S P
'h’ - / A £ A S
" 2, / )
5 /! \
Q 5z / /4 N , I
Ad -' J'\ The site e
,d
" 7
b /
N /
\\ 7/
\ "
ey i
\ .
\’

Sketch view

hsrmwa. general direction of sketch viaw

Photographs Location

Site 10 Land west of Box Lodge

Please note that these diaograms are for illustrative purposes only & are net to scale.




80¢ abed

Bath & North East
Somerset Council

The feasibility The costs The transport
and associated with benefits of
deliverability of each site each site
each site option; option;
option;
Site 10 Land No approvals £XXXm Only serves A4
west of Lower required from (excludes land  corridor but
Lodge, Box third parties to purchase) could be
Road gain access. considered in
Site privately conjunction with
owned. another site for
A363 & A46
traffic.
Forecast
demand 500
vehicles per
weekday.

Capacity of up to
1,360 spaces.

Site 10

The visual
impact of each
site option.

High and
negative overall
given separation
from settlement,
rural setting in
AONB & WHS
setting

Other
environmental
factors to consider

Hard to mitigate
Located in AONB

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




A\

oy
-\.

Site B: land West.of M

= Al
o ¥

L]




0T¢ abed

Park & Ride Opﬂ_ons

Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Oblique aerial view extracted from Google Earth

Photograph Location

Fleose note that thase diograms are for illustrative purposes only & are nol to scale,

cUShuws general direction of sketch view

Site B Land west of Mill Lane




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Site B A4

TTZ abed

The feasibility The costs The transport  The visual Other
and associated with benefits of impact of each environmental
deliverability of each site each site site option. factors to consider
each site option; option;
option;
Site B A4 Highways £XXXm Forecast High negative Limited opportunity to
Batheaston England (excludesland  demand 850to  impactoverall.  mitigate
Bypass: land approval purchase) 970 vehicles per Not in AONB
west of Mill required. Land weekday plus
Lane acquisition 370 to 430
required. vehicles per

weekday with an
additional RUH
service (total
1,220 to 1,400
spaces).
Capacity of up to
1,400 spaces.

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




I'"

H /
Fe

-

Il Lane"

=
T
O
njd
)
©
LLl
o
ez
©
el

te F:

-

Page 212




€Tz abed

Park & Ride Qpﬁqns

Bath & North East
Somerset Council

‘ . . -

Sketch view

L IP
i

©
=
o
—d
2
©
p—
W)
o
®
ge;
=
o
-—
[N
=
1% ]

s0

Oblique oerial view extracted from Google Earth

Photograph Loccinn ﬁshuwsgemraldim::inn ol thkeleh view

Please note that these diograms are for illustrative purposes only & are not to scale.



yT¢ abed

Park & Ride Options

Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Batheaston

(o)
"S5/

Site F Land east of Mill Lane

Proposals

Please note that these diagrams are for illustrative purposes only & are not to scale.




GTz abed

Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Site F A4
Batheaston
Bypass: land
east of Mill
Lane

The feasibility
and
deliverability
of each site
option;
Highways
England
approval
required. Site
owned by
Council

The costs
associated
with each
site option;

£XXXm

Site F

The transport The visual
benefits of each  impact of each
site option; site option.

Forecastdemand High negative
850 to 970 vehicles impact overall.
per weekday plus

370 to 430 vehicles

per weekday with

an additional RUH

service (total 1,220

to 1,400 spaces).

Capacity of up to

1,400 spaces.

Other
environmental
factors to consider

Not in AONB

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




3 o - ek
'\3 e __..-'r ‘l.-,-_.n W

.-‘;‘-n - . “'.‘_

% u-'\l

< iBite F+ Ba’ﬁnémp Gl
Slgnnicant Oppor unity for Ecologlcal
enhancement 4

v




/T2 abed

Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Obligue aerial view extracted from Google Earth

c:}:rg\“ gararsl gmeton of sketch view

Location

Pleasa note that these diaograms are for illustrative purposes cnly & are not to scale.

Site F+ Land east of Mill Lane



8T¢ abed

Park & Ride Options

Bath & North East
Somerset Council

)
o
O
-
b
©
——
W
O
)
Q0
c
O
-
+
TH
=
72 ]

Please note that these diagrams are for illustrative purposes only & are not to scale,

Proposals




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

6T¢ abed

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




0z abed

Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Site F+ A4
Batheaston
Bypass: land
east of Mill
Lane

The
feasibility
and
deliverability
of each site
option;
Highways
England
approval
required. Site
owned by
Council

Site F+

The transport The visual

The costs

associated benefits of
with each site each site
option; option;
EXXXm As above

impact of
each site
option.

High negative
impact
reduced with
mitigation

Other
environmental
factors to
consider

Not in AONB
Ecological and
landscape
mitigation would
reduce Green Belt
and landscape
impact and deliver
biodiversity gain

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




T2z abed

sach&North Bast - Eyjronment and Heritage scores

Somerset Council

r m m = (2]
2 L z z 7 z 2 59 gy
® 3 =} = o o 3 3 =
(7} o (=] [ o c =] - O o =
o Q Q ] S @ = 5 2
! = ® B = g 2 5 23
-8 = < =3 T = o ®
= =
)
T
(1)
=
-
o
«Q
5]
Site A+: Land
west of A4/A46

Site B: Land west
of Mill Lane

Site F: Land east
of Mill Lane

Site F+: Land
east of Mill Lane

Site H+:
Bathampton
Junction

Site 10: land
west of Lower
Lodge, Box Road

HH HH o

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Zze abed

Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Chart of Relative Landscape & Visual Harm on Completion (yr 0)

Severe harm

High harm

Moderate harm

Lower harm

7

6 -

5 -

4 -

Site B Site F Site F+ Site H+ Site A+ Site 10

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit

@Landscape
Character

Local Views

@Medium Distance
Views

@Landmark Views




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Chart of Relative Landscape & Visual Harm for Early Years (5-15)

Severe harm

7
High harm 6 _
Moderate harm ¢ — BLandscape Character
o
S Local Views
o Lower harm 4
N
N
w BMedium Distance
Views
3
@Landmark Vlews
2
1
0

Site B Site F Site F+ Site H+ Site A+ Site 10

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Bath & North East Chart of Relative Landscape & Visual Harm for Later Years (15 -

Somerset Council Matu rity)
7
Severe harm
High harm 6
Moderate harm g5
Lower harm
4
- B@Landscape Character
c% Local Views
N BMedium Distance Views
N
g 3 @Landmark Views
2
1
0

Site B Site F Site F+ Site H+ Site A+ Site 10

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

The air quality issue...

Gee abed

...relates primarily to NITROGEN DIOXIDE (NO,) because it exceeds the
annual average national objective level of 40 micrograms per cubic metre
in specific parts of Bath and North East Somerset.

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




9zz abed

Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Monitoring network:

Automatic monitors in enclosures:

- London Road (Snow Hill)
NITROGEN DIOXIDE (NO,), PM,,, PM, »

- London Road (Antiques shop)
NITROGEN DIOXIDE (NO,)

- Guildhall
NITROGEN DIOXIDE (NO,)

- Lower Bristol Road
NITROGEN DIOXIDE (NO,), PM.,,

NO, diffusion tubes:
Moveable automatic monitors: - 60+ locations
- Bathwick Street - changed monthly for monthly

average values

- Larkhall schools (planned)
NITROGEN DIOXIDE (NO,), PM,,, PM,,

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




/zz abed

ssmersec conc AUItOMatic monitoring

Bath Air Quality Management Area 2013 Bty & Noh Eost Sommmset Cownc
NO2 Annual Mean and 1-hour Objectives Mf';ﬁ

Teol 01225 477000

Compiled by N Courthold on 22 January 2013

PM, 5

armlnste.;_ Road: 5;_: :
Sgopeny’ ~ |~ Lgfs T

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



8z¢ abed

Monitoring Sites
Batheaston

Author:M Courthold
Drate: 16032016
Scale: 1:6000

Bath & Morch East
Sonersel Coundl

Current monitoring
(commenced January)

.

b T . 2 . ‘.‘
\ DTS " Z
S London Road Wedl 57

ooooo

A@Batheaston - Hig

TN

et Bathston-Hiuh §t-.._” 5

......

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Bath & North East

Somerset Council BatheaSton monitoring

100

2007
90
E===2008
50 Current monitoring L
Current monitoring 2009
70 (recommenced January)

\ /_ = 2010

\ / o
V

/
]

/
%/

NO2 concentrations (ug/m3).

;JU 2012
® 30
§ 2013
20
10 2014
0 : : == Provisional
7] © © ™ §e) = 2015
) o o c o T
= c c o c = = Linear
2 3 3 3@ 2 S5 3 (Objective)
iT C c o D c O o)
e o= o= Pt G = m
— — "(_U' | +—
N o o] o n
o Al < =
- AN D
I

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




0gz abed

Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Thank you for listening
Any Questions?

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Potential Park and Ride Sites
Sites shown against Green Belt
Compiled by MRL on 14 April 2016

Scale 1:40000 s

N

-

Bath & North East Somerset Council
Lewis House

Manvers Street

Bath BA1 1JG

Tel 01225 477000

Lower

Hamswell

Beach

Upper

Langtidge

il
QD
«Q
(9]
N s
7 G

Upper Weston
Kelgto

Weston

Legend

Primrose Hill

“langridge

Woolley

Chatikkombe

Lansdown

Alcombe

Bailbrook

Lower Swainswick
Larkhal|

Fairfield Park

5. Lambridge

a0
\/
i i A Beacon Hill T Lo
Sites considered (Halcrow) % 7 <0 S i
Walcot / Grosvenar = 2
> % . x Wacminstermg, | 3
: Sites Considered (community suggestions) } # . v 3
7 s 1 - F
Westan Park :{ f %
\ 1]
Green Belt T s
[ \ Farleigh
Lower \
Weston | e
%, 1 .
B&NES Boundal % wePt! st - \ E
I:I v %, BATH _ i
| A2604] = SR 8
{East Twerton 1 \
Reproduced fromthe Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution orcivil proceedings

License number 100023334



This page is intentionally left blank



Potential Park and Ride Sites N Bath & North East Somerset Council

Lewis House

: i W E Manvers Street
Sites shown against Cotswold AONB ! Bk BT 1o
Compiled by MRL on 14 April 2016 Scale 1:40000 & Tel 01225 477000

Langriage k3

Alcombe
:,
\
Y
‘l
, -
g ‘.\" p 7 <
Q i ‘ «f‘; o
o v
D s //@,-,
w ¢
w G 4

atheas!
{Waricomire

Kingsdown

Larkhal|

Weston Fairfield Park
Lansdown

Lodge Farm

i Hil Beacon Hill A o

Bathford Mil 7% Fanioigh.

Sites considered (Halcrow) i

Monkton
Farleigh

Cotswold AONB gyl )

Legend
D Sites Considered (community suggestions)

o0y BATH

B&NES Boundary

Huhmead

Kingsmead_ "% e

Reproduced fromthe Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings License number 100023334




This page is intentionally left blank



Potential Park and Ride Sites N SR BTSSR

i - W E Manvers Street
Sites shown against EA Flood zones Btk BT L5
Scale 1:40000 s Tel 01225 477000

Compiled by MRL on 14 April 2016

o i
St
i P
The Coch Tadwick
Hanging HIB g
g
Hangng Hj ‘.
St Catherine
g Chae C
oitoge
oy ™ - -
e Uppar angridge el
Langridge ‘Houna <
%
4
QA
Rasiicomae
n e
Q warer e BT
Woolley Works e Northend
(Q('D o W Shockerwick
Lodge farm —tr
Q,:mm ! rowe
w G
\
Pouery Fum Y
Kelaton

Round Hil

Charlcombe ' e \L} T Bailbrook
Upper Weston Lower Swaif |(z By AR L Kingsdown
g Larkhall
Legend e J Faieiold Bark u
: Sites considered (Halcrow) i FoW ;
Lote
. . . . Sion Hill Beacon Hill 3 L
Sites Considered (community suggestions) ; Bathampton Bathford il
Wailcat
wrmingiorap )
Floodzone 3
Monkton
Farleigh
Floodzone 2 arlelg
BethampionDOw" . Bathampton Down e
B&NES Boundary s
% b
°o

Reproduced fromthe Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office @ Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings License number 100023334



This page is intentionally left blank



Potential Park and Ride Sites N AR RBIAECS R = IE

Sites shown against world Heritage site and WHS Setting WG~
Compiled by MRL on 15 April 2016 Scale 1:40000 s

Manvers Street
Bath BA1 1JG
Tel 01225 477000

Aytord Faem

c 1 Catharines k
Coppertieid Farm
- End Howss ot

i Faren

The Costi Tadwick

Hangng Hi
St Catherine

abed

Legend
: Sites considered (Halcrow)

D Sites Considered (community suggestions)

Qleathiod bl

World Heritage Site

World Heritage Site Setting
[ ] sanes Boundary

Alcombe

Kingsdawn

Monktan
Farleigh

ushrmead

Reproduced fromthe Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings

License number 100023334




This page is intentionally left blank



6c¢ abed

The Alliance

We are Bath and want a solution too!

[

. Introductions
. Background and Objectives

N

a. Objectives : to allow the non B&NES political/professional community to
present its views and evidence to Tim Warren as leader of B&NES on the
recent Bath proposals to develop a Park and Ride to the east of Bath.

b. Allow for a dialogue between the community and the transport
professionals on the options for “the East of Bath”

3. Setting the scene — Including the background to the lead up to this meeting
(meetings of the 5™ and 12" and the resulting LDF and Scrutiny processes)
Louise Fradd

“An Evening with Tim”

4. What do we know about the traffic problems in Bath? Fiona Meldrum Monday 1st Februa ry

5. Bath P&R Usage analysis Andrew Lea 2016 Time: 4PM - 7PM
6. Air Quality Dr Nick Davey BailbrOOk House HOte|
7. A summary Discussion

BREAK (Tea and Coffee)

8. What now for Batheaston — The Legal Context Annie Kilvington
9. A Way Forward — A Community proposal Christine Boyd
10. Alternative Strategies Mark Millar

11. Next Steps and wrap up



Otz abed

The Alliance

A Community Report
In Response to B&NES’ desire to build a Park and Ride on the Bathampton The Meadows
1* February 2016

Alliance Community Report 1% February 2016




el s East of Bath
Park & Rlde

' L\
“avs *

S ... B i

=1 .
' _ab oo AR

‘ ‘“ u\h

-

b

Ttz abed

' \_ -\m
Jﬁ\j\\%

The Process

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Purpose of Meeting?

» Listening to the Community’s
y concerns and proposals

» Ensuring that comments raised are
linked into the right process Scrutiny
and/or LDF

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Council Resolution

On 12" November Council resolved two key
points:

1.To call for the Communities, Transport and
Fnvironment Policy Development & Scrutiny
Panel to undertake an open and transparent
public scrutiny, examining a wide range of

integrated transport solutions for the East of
Bath’

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Council Resolution

2. To ask that the cross-party Local Development
Framework Steering Group review all the options for
the location of an East of Bath Park & Ride prior to

Cabinet selecting a preferred site early next year,
Yiving due consideration to the following:

» Responses received to the consultation

» Feasibility and deliverability of each site option
» Costs associated with each site option

» Transport benefits of each site option

Visual impact of each site option

'

S

)

S

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Scrutiny Update

Public Scrutiny Day 22" March, Guild Hall
10.00am to 4.30pm, focussing on:-

» Understanding the implications of the Bath
Transport Strategy with regard to transport
from the East of Bath

» Having a clear understanding of the current

transport strategy and analysis undertaken
on Baths Park & Rides.

o
QD
«Q
(0]
N
~
ol

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Scrutiny Update

» Listen to best practice examples and
consider the advantages and disadvantages

of different options

9tz abed

» Collectively develop a range of integrated
transport options, prior to a report being
presented to Cabinet for consideration

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



Bath & North East
Somerset Council

LDF Update

» Purpose and membership of meeting
agreed(December)

» Local Ward Member involvement

‘i) Tour of sites (January)

» Setting the context meeting (January)
» Site analysis meetings (February)

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit



Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Next Steps

Ensure your proposals and concerns
are fed into the LDF Steering Group and
the Public Scrutiny Day, by providing us
with your alternative site proposals and
your integrated transport solutions

Bath and North East Somerset — The place to live, work and visit




The Alliance

\\/
>

2016 Community proposal for transport
solutions East of Bath

Section 4: What do we know about the traffic problems in Bath?
Fiona Meldrum




The Alliance
\/
~~The UK has a dependency on the car and we are
seeing y-0-y growth in the car travel once again

Passenger transport TSGB0101-0102 ;(ear-fg‘;;ée(ir growth in motor vehicle traffic in Great Britain,
Passenger kilometres by mode: Great Britain 1952 to 2014 rom
800 m Other " Buses & coaches MRail mCars, vans and taxis
18 Suez crisis
16 Strong
economic "
14 OPEC oil growth ';;i' L i
o 1 n
o 0 < 12 R Early recent
g ig'? e 1990s economic
Q E = 10 recession downtumn
N = ? 8 Fuel
8 1850400 S 6 protests
g >
=
4
g 2 ,
[ =4
S200 9 y
o 0 1
2195{3 1955 1960 1965 197}[;.) 1p75 1980 1985 1990 1995 2000 2005 -
h'd
L ST -4 High growth in car ownership
1954 1958 1962 1966 1970 1974 1978 1982 1986 1990 1994 1998 2002 2006 2010 2014
Dept for Transport Statistics Guide GB 2014 Dept for Transport strategic-road-network-statistics autumn review 2015
2 p g

Mode share of trips by main mode for different trip lengths: England, 2014 [NTS0308] L.
Usual method of travel to work: Great Britain

wcert mic [ A Carlvan Walk Rail Bus Other
Walk 68% 0% 9% 7% 5%

Dept for Transport Statistics Guide GB 2014

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Denpt for Transport National Travel Survey GB 2014



ore locally, where is the accurate picture of traffic

The Alliance

patterns in Bath and the surrounding villages?

Through traffic

Social trip
Shopping trip

School run plus
trip to town
School run plus
commute

School run

TG abed

Long distance
commute

Local commute
LGVs

HGVs

Busses

12% -

=

—

\ = Effective solutions

el in and out
know
otal,

3.5% il

How can w behaviours



The Alliance

~— Residents remain rightly unhappy about the
consequences of congestion and air pollution

2c7 abed
[ ]
o

National Highways and Transport
Network survey for Banes 2015*

45

29

Banes National Average

Satisfaction level % with traffic levels and
congestion

30000
28000
26000
24000
22000
20000
18000
16000
14000
12000
10000

Dept for Transport Annual Average Daily Flows at
East Bath count points 2010 and 2014
[ ]

—
— ——
I I
—
L Road GovesnorL Road Govesnor A36 Cleveland ~ A36 Cleveland A4 into City 2000 A4 into City 2014

Place 2000 Place 2014 Place 2000 Place 2014 G7772) GT772)
(26126) (26126) (17920) (17920)

® CarsTaxis ™ LightGoodsVehicles ® AIIHGVs BusesCoaches ™ DMotorcycles W PedalCycles

~

\J

“Ut seemed a moral obligation to do
something to improve the air quality in this

part of East Bath and indeed the whole
¢zty” Fiona Williams Latkhall-based clean

air camﬁ'ﬁer

*Source: Briefing pack for Councillors 12/11/2015

Figure 2.4 Trends in Annual Mean Nitrogen Dioxide Concentration Measured at
Diffusion Tube Monitoring Sites — Sites within the London Road AQMA

NOZ concenirations (Lgim3)
¥ 8 & B B 3 B B

00




The Alliance

——And residents to the East aren't happy either -
they deserve their own focus

Dept for Transport Annual Average Daily Flows at East Bath Figure 2.7 Trends in Annual Mean Nitrogen Dioxide Concentration Measured at
count points 2010 and 2014 Diffusion Tube Monitoring Sites — Sites outside Bath
25000 100
— 20
20000 . L o
= B =
. 2
15000 g p—
g 50 =22010
2011
4 ==2012
10000 § . =2013
< 22014
: II o
5000
10
0

0

DT32
Whitchurch

Charmy Down 2000 (56503) Charmy Down 2014 (56503) A4 Bypass Batheaston 2000 A4 Bypass Batheaston 2014
(99383) (99383)

DT29
M.S.N High St

DT30
M.S.N Westieki
D127
Road
DT57
Batheaston 3

£G¢ abed

DT56
High St/ Brow Hill

B CarsTaxis ¥ LightGoodsVehicles M AIIHGVs BusesCoaches M Motorcycles M PedalCycles

DT58
240 London Rd West

Air Quality Monitoring Results for Batheaston 2010 - 2014
Annual Mean Concentration (ug/m?) - Adjusted for Bias

, . _ Within 2000 (Bias - 2001 (Bias —— 50.) piag 2013 (Bias 2014 (Bias
Site ID Site Name Site Type Adjustment  Adjustment . . Adjustment
AQMA? _ _ Adjustment Adjustment _
Factor = Factor = Factor = 0.95) Factor = 1.01) Factor =
0.90) 0.89) ‘ ' 1.07)
Batheaston —
DT58 240 London Roadside N 33 35 34 34 38
Road West
DTsg ~ Latheaston - Roadside N 34 33 34 32 35
Brow Hill
pDrs7  Datheaston - Roadside N 24 28 26 25 26

High St 3



—

The Alliance

Let’s layer this all up on a map....

DA%
C

: a % 2010: 33 pg/m3 |Ee
2010: 20, 201 ] o | Bailbro t 15% ; 2014: 38 “g/mB qyrr

Wil
2014:21815 10 = ‘. gy Wil

: Ly Sy ' .r\ J’I' 4__. a
v.r'y = =i r, z\ WEIF ,- —

??frél ‘afkhﬂ'g / Ef%‘m ( '}‘

CF @
< a RS _,,—""P(' 99383

}&m 26126 "N ' S t—

2010: 24.006 4 4% 7 e 2010: 21,935
2014:20696 5 " oot é} 2014: 24,311
: o . ,J g

4 2010: 60 |Jg/m3
2014: 57 pg/m3 ;

Eu

i .u"
;L%?E#’

Is the disproportionate increase in Batheaston the High St. traffic, which would worsen under

Meadms P&R?

Source: Dept for Transport Annual Average Daily Flows (AADFs) and Banes Air Quality Monitoring 2015 Screening Assessment




The Alliance

iven the increase in traffic, AQMA maps suggest it
IS only a matter of time before this spreads East

Alr Quality Management Area el & rorin v nmersel o)
W2 &nnual Mean 2004 Em“;m
Cravpiled by M Courthedd on 17 Ortsser X4 Ecale | 2000 Ta 01 735 4TTO00

A L AT

Amended Air Quality Managemen

&2 Annual Mean

okl by N Couthaldl e 26 Oetabin 3006 Eeale 1 Bath Alr Quality Management drea 2013 B o
HOZ Arrasl Msen ard 1-hour Oz cie ] -.“'

W T iy H ool o 21 Jnsmyry TN o |- 2 0 1 3 sl T

Amendments ta 4

HGZ Arneal Wean
[pmpdid by H_ Fomsiradd oa X 1y

= >
T b b g 1 Omiramd, Tarvey aER
Lkt el g b g Lorem o




The Alliance

/

There is seemingly no plan to bring congestion
down to EU limits

Transport Strategy

Table 4.1 Targets

-

QD Target Comment

Walking 8% Increase by 2020 from

s 2015 baseline

g_}/cling 22% increase by 2020 from Using annualised index
2015 baseline (B&NES wide)

Bus passengers 2.5 % increase by 2020 from | Growth in patronage
2015 baseline (B&NES wide)

Rail passengers

16% increase by 2020 from
2015 baseline

ORR data for Bath Spa and

Oldfield Park Station usage |

These seem more like aims than targets

From what base will they be measured?

‘“+2.5% bus passengers’ in a climate of falling

tare-paying passengers. Is this at all challenging?

Where is a target to reduce car travel (by type of
journey and by location)?

What are the factors that will actually change

behaviour?

These are at best unquantified aims

Air Quality Management Plan

Not focused on congestion
16 actions

5 targets that it is stated would reduce
emissions in the AQMA

1 assessed in 2015 as having had a
quantifiable impact on the AQMA during the

plan’s duration

Next plan due to be in effect 2016-2020 —
not published yet

Meant to reduce NO2 and PM emissions by
5% pa



The Alliance
.\//

-
Park and rides do not solve the traffic issues they

are meant to - here’s why...

Impact of a new P&R (indicative)

(o))

oLSZ 9bed .

Decrease into  New trips Detours Abstraction Veterans Net change

City

]
]

And the L.ondon Road
undoubtedly has

supressed demand on

‘Just because you put in park and cycle you :
don’t know what behaviour this will change. We top, negating the decrease

love our cars. I'll get in my car to drive to the car into the City
park then cycle on the flat, rather than just cycle”
Batheaston resident




The Alliance

_ Don't just take my word for it. this comes from

academics and other cities

Academic comments on city-fringe
type park and rides

Cambridge
Coventry
Norwich
Plymouth
Reading
Shrewsbury
average

Brighton
York

*  TFewer than one out of every two P&R users

g 35
is a target group user who would have g g
. . . . 2 -
otherwise driven into the City (Zijlstra, Vanouttrive % ? Enet
a@d Verhetsel 2015) E
@ g
. \S’)g?here a new P&R is provided, up to one £
third of the total users can be P+R veterans, §
ie they have switched from another P&R site 3
(Zijlstra, Vanouttrive and Verhetsel 2015) 2
* It is concluded that the main effect of the Fig. 1. Changes in Traffic Arising from P&R Implementations for Eight UK
. . . o I b o iy . 5 2 a, ' 1
schemes is trafﬁc redlstﬂbuﬂon, and that Cities. Source: Data from Parkhurst (2000a, Table &)
their role within traffic restraint policies is *  Take setious note of the growing list of cities,
unlikely to be directly one of traffic including Oxford, York, and Sheffield who have
reduction (Zijlstra, Vanouttrive and Verhetsel 2015 on reported a move away from park and rides as a
Parkhurst (2000, p. 159 .
HRAEHEL G S solution. Poole, Portsmouth and Worcester have
* City fringe type facilities therefore lead to an closed sites due to lack of economic viability

increase in Vehicle Km Travelled. The results

range from about 1 to 4 additional kilometres

per P+R user. (Zijlstra, Vanouttrive and Verhetsel 2015) Ap 2 /)} Zﬂg these 6]7@6‘2‘.5‘ 10 East Bath wonld take O”é/ 1,000 cars Oﬁ[

the ru, 000




The Alliance

And who would actually use this park and ride
anyway?

‘Around half of those

who use park ar,ld rides I Where are these
are commuters’ — how 4,000 commuters
does this 2009 study o to the East who
compare with bus usage locwon  Conatwmrds | Therestor it is inferred
profiles? need to park?
e =] ]
houses
0.80 ergkireEy 1.03
Number of I 2,700 | | 4120 |
| e -
Live outside Bath
No. of = = work in Bath
L = e
16.3%| Car mode ™ nes
‘sham o cortre
e o™ [ | e
B0 Travel 0 work on Bl B0%
average ey
Nerw car rips
— ser= ] [ =]
"~ The Hill report is S -
: l parking demard o zan
a volume st
forecast, entirely

unqualified to

comment on
how best to solve
the problem




The Alliance

Summary

Problems with congestion and emissions
*Heavy UK reliance on the car, but dissatisfaction in Bath with traffic congestion

*We need data to break down who travels where, when and for what purpose across the City and the
surrounding villages

®There is no reason to suspect that these rising traffic trends won’t continue to the East of Bath:
=y ) ) ) ..
*k would seem inevitable that the AQMA zone will expand East — this is no place to put a P&R

(‘D o . . . o o
*’Phere is no robust plan or targets to tackle congestion and therefore emissions in either the Transport
StFategy or the Air Quality Action Plan

Park and Ride as a solution to these problems
®Park and Rides on the periphery do not help tackle congestion locally, in fact they create it

*In Bath we will also inevitably see suppressed demand replacing any positive effects into town because
the London Road is such a pinch point

® Academic thinking across Europe concludes that only 46%-48% of people parking at one would have
driven into the city by car and everyone drives an extra 1-4km to reach one

®Other cities in the UK are moving away from park and rides as a strategy and even closing them

®The Council’s conclusions as to who would use an East park and ride do not match commuter parking
demand data from the Transport Strategy



Let’s find out from Andrew who
actually uses the existing Bath
park and rides....

Thank You



The Alliance

\\/
__—a

Bath Park & Rides Usage Analysis
Andrew Lea 01/02/2016

T
jab)
Q
(0]
N
(@]
N




“90% Capacity”
R

“Always
full”

“80% capacity’

v

£9¢ abed

“Our Park Rides are a
true success story”

e

The Alliance




P&R Capacity levels 2015

e

=

BATH:
HACKED

BANES Historic Car Park Occupancy

10
11

12

Home

i iii 8¢ ﬁPQd

ID 0 =

02987b26f333deaf 21/10/2014 05:29:23 AM

LastUpdate

7664e6263200ebfé 21/10/2014 10:20:00 AM
dc64a203f2efee77: 18/10/2014 06:02:14 AM
7ebcad4f0775c934 19/10/2014 02:10:00 PM
39add8376d35247 19/10/2014 03:40:00 AM
907eeddafb798cS 21/10/2014 04:30:00 AM
61a558c2cff090d2t 21/10/2014 09:10:00 AM
21eda82a39a9ce8¢ 18/10/2014 05:44:59 AM
fefefdb6378be22bi 22/10/2014 04:43:34 PM
02188c92d3695cet 23/10/2014 06:13:33 AM
7f1bcf6e5d01f08d: 19/10/2014 07:04:22 PM
0cdc910721f26737 23/10/2014 12:55:01 AM
2fd21fdd4e1588f31 22/10/2014 09:19:22 AM

Catalog Terms of Service

Privacy Policy

|
N data updated every

i

The Alliance

:= Name
Lansdown P+R
Avon Street CP
SouthGate Rail CP
Charlotte Street CP
Charlotte Street CP
Avon Street CP
Avon Street CP
Avon Street CP
SouthGate General CP
SouthGate Rail CP
Lansdown P+R
Avon Street CP
Lansdown P+R

Accessibility Contact Us

—m--
et
Visu

0=

Lansdown P+R / Lansdown Road / P+R / L&

Description

Avon Street CP / A367 Green Park Road / C
SouthGate Rail CP / A367 St James Parade
Charlotte Street CP / A4 Charlotte Street/ |
Charlotte Street CP / A4 Charlotte Street / |
Avon Street CP / A367 Green Park Road / C
Avon Street CP / A367 Green Park Road / C
Avon Street CP / A367 Green Park Road / C
SouthGate General CP / A367 St James Par
SouthGate Rail CP / A367 St James Parade
Lansdown P+R / Lansdown Road / P+R / Le
Avon Street CP / A367 Green Park Road / C

Lansdown P+R / Lansdown Road / P+R / L&

Capacity



P&R Capacity levels 2015 The Alliance

G9z abed

e

What is Bath Hack?

» BANES Historic Car Park Occupancy Levels across all main car parks in Bath

» Data is collected by sensors on the entry and exit barriers for the car parks

» The data provides the occupancy level of the car parks

» The data also provides the status of the car parks whether they are filling or
emptying

» The data is collected every 5 minutes and recorded

» Currently the historic data goes back to October 2014 and is updated daily



The Alliance

Data issues Data solutions

Volume of data . Focus on 8am to 7pm each day
Duplication . Removed duplication where the timestamp are the

Over 100% capacity same
recordings . Any capacity measures over 100% are classed as

Upgrading works 100%
Zero and low . Wide variations in readings are removed

recordings . Newbridge P&R underwent upgrading during the

analysis period. Any anomalies in the data have been
removed

All recordings below 50 have been removed to avoid
any skewing of the results to the low side.




January




e e T

DATA TRUTH 1

Usable data is available to understand P&R usage over a full year

89¢ abed



P&R Capacity levels 2015 The Alliance

» Newbridge underwent expansion earlier this year and as such needs to be noted
when viewing this data, however the variation on occupancy levels varies only

slightly.

Lansdown 02/01/15 02/01/15
- 0Odd Down 02/01/15 02/01/15 1,252
QD
«Q
> Newbridge 02/01/15 16/03/15 450
O

Newbridge 17/03/15 03/08/15 600

Newbridge 04/08/15 02/01/15 698



The Alliance

Apede) o

>
8] c ¢ 9
© z 2 g
3 S
kS 39 s
c © 2
5 8382
(@] I N |
=
>
Q0
()]
()
O
(a4
o]
Y4
| -
o)
o
~
4
[40]
o
£
e
=
=
©
(O]
)
-}
>
=
O
©
(@]
O
Q
U
(@)
()
(@) |
(0]
-
C
(O]
O
| -
[O)
o
T T T 1
X X X X X X S X X S X
o o o o o o o o o o o
S o @ ~ ) LN < ™ ~ —

9to10 10toll 11tol2 12tol3 13tol4 14tol5 15tol6 16tol7 17tol8 18tol9

Average 8to9

Hour of Day

Page 270




T/ 2 abed

The Alliance

Number of Park & Ride Spaces

Total number of vehicles within Bath Park & Rides by hour of day

2,750

2,500

B Newbridge used =

B Odd Down used

2,250

B | ansdown used

N
o
o
o

1,750

1,500

1,250

1,000

750

500

250

Average 8to9 9to10 10toll 11tol2 12tol3 13tol4 14tol5 15tol6 16tol7 17tol8 18tol9
Hour of Day




2/ ¢ abed

Number of Park & Ride Spaces

The Alliance

2,750
2,500
2,250
2,000
1,750
1,500
1,250
1,000

750

500

250

Total number of vehicles within all Bath Park & Rides by hour of day

B Used Space -

Average 8to9 9tol0 10toll 11tol2 12tol3 13tol4 14tol5 15tol6 16tol7 17tol8 18tol9
Hour of day




£/¢ dbed
Number of Park & Ride Spaces

2,750
2,500

2,250

»
o
o
o

1,750
1,500
1,250
1,000
750
500

250

Total number of vehicles within all Bath Park & Rides by hour of day

==2015

690

\ 440

8to9

9to10

10tol1l 11tol2 12tol3 13tol4 14tol5 15tol6 16tol7 17tol8 18tol9

Hour of Day




DATA TRUTH 2

Across 2015 the trend shows P&R usage is at its lowest
_when congestion is at its highest and used mostly in the
& middle of the day (non-commuters, shoppers).

/¢ ob



G/ ¢ abed

Figura 9.2: 2011 City Centre and PAR Occupancy

S000

4500

4000
3500
3000

2500

AN
1500
1000

Number of Vehicles

SN

Source:  Car park surveys November 2011

Time

\Combine P&R

J 8 9 10 11 12 12 14 1%t 16

17 18



9/ ¢ abed

2,750

2,500

2,250

2,000

1,750

1,500

1,250

1,000

Number of Park & Ride Spaces

750

500

250

Total number of vehicles within all Bath Park & Rides by hour of day

e=O=Nov 2011

|1,550| |1,550|

794

440
||
400
250
8t09 9010  10to11  11to12  12to13  13to14  14to15 15t016  16t017  17to18  18to19

Hour of Day




e e T

DATA TRUTH 3

When compared to previous years P&R occupancy levels
follow a similar usage trend through the day.

112 abed



P&R Capacity levels 2015 The Alliance

g

. All Bath Park & Ride space utilisation by hour of day 2015

2,750 . . .
oo [ " Frce Spaces |-
“hreeShaces | I

11110 B I
2,000 I

1,750 I I I

1,500

8/ ¢ abed

Number of Park & Ride Spaces

1,250
1,000
750
500

250

Average 8to9 9tol0 10toll 11tol2 12tol3 13tol4 14tol5 15tol6 16tol7 17tol8 18tol9
Hour of day




P&R Capacity Ievels 2015 The Alliance

(
100% . . .
90% Free Saces
I I I I B Free Space
80% m Used Space
70%
.@60%
(@]
©
§50%
g
o 40%
N
\l
© 30%
20%
10%
0%
Average 8to9 9to10 10toll 11tol2 12tol3 13tol4 14tol5 15tol6 16tol7 17tol8 18tol9
Hour of day
\.




P&R Capacity levels 2015 The Alliance

. All Bath Park & Ride space utilisation by hour of day 2015 h
2,750 -
193 I 205 246
297 301 -
...
2,250 - 597 603
A== 1 17 120
1 1 00 1
Q
O
o & 1,750 - 347
g & = =l B
N = 1,500 -
2 B
% 1,250
)
o
© 1,000 -
(O]
Q
€ 750 -
Z B Newbridge Free Space
500 - B Odd Down Free Space
® Lansdown Free Space
250 - B Total used
0 -
Average 8to9 9tol0 10toll 11tol2 12tol3 13tol4 14tol5 15tol6 16tol7 17tol8 18tol9
Hour of day
. J




T8¢ abed

DATA TRUTH 4

There is excessive spare capacity at the current P&R across the
day of between 1,173 and 2,804 spaces.

Based on current usage levels:

A new Park and Ride with 1,400 spaces will on average have 57% spaces free
across the day or in real terms 798 UNUSED spaces.

Specifically with regards to the rush hour period (8am-9am) an East Park
and Ride will only take 350 cars off the London road during this hour.



The Alliance

4 )
| |
(@)
a
c ¢ 9
£ 3 3

c © 0O §

= 23 % :

o 8 o =z =

= E E =

> )

¥a 3

Q

O

o 2
(O]

[} 0

Y4

| -

% (o)}
>
<

-

)

©

o >

- =

O

©

e Q

c S

h m

=

= -

d ©

O =

0

u —

2] g

O

©

p He

©

O s

U

(@)

Q

(@) | %

© L

-

c

S
C

| -

) =

[a

= & = =
o o o o
o (@) [00] N
—
Ajede) o
\_ J

Page 282




P&R Capacity levels 2015

The Alliance

. Capacity used within each Bath Park & Ride by month
2,500
1,392
2,000
1,438 1,428 1,710 B Free space
B Newbridge
oy B Odd Down
§1,500 ® Lansdown
§]
o
)
Q
o
N 1,000
09
W
500
0
Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec
Hour of day
.




8¢ abed

The Alliance

% number of times capacity thresholds exceeded 2015

B | ansdown
B Odd Down
B Newbridge

>10% >20% >30% >40% >50% >60% >70% >80% >90% >100%
Capacity Threshold




The Alliance

( % capacity used by Xmas market and holidays 2015

100%
B |ansdown

B Odd Down —
B Newbridge

90%

80%

70%

60%

% Capacity
ul
o
X

40%

Ggez abed

30%

20%

10%

0%

Average Xmas market Easter Summer Xmas Other hols
Holiday Type )




The Alliance

98¢ abed

% capacity used by market and holidays 2015

2,500

2,000

B Free space
® Newbridge
B Odd Down
B Lansdown

Capa'_glty
U
o
o

1,000

500

Average Xmas market Easter Summer Xmas Other hols




The Alliance

% number of times capacity thresholds exceeded during xmas market 2015

100%

90% | ansdown
B Odd Down

B Newbridge

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

/8¢ abed

30%

20%

10%

0%

>10% >20% >30% >40% >50% >60% >70% >80% >90% >100%
Capacity Threshold




8gz abed

The Alliance

ey Influences on Park & Ride Capacity — Days when 100% capacity reached

Work at Newbridge

Work at Newbridge

Work at Newbridge

Bath Half Marathon

Work at Newbridge

Work at Newbridge

Work at Newbridge

Bath University Open Day

P&R 100% capacity Lansdown Odd Down

Monday 09/02/15 11:24am-3:33pm
Tuesday 10/02/15] 11:29am-3:19pm
Wednesday 11/02/15) 12:19pm-2:54pm
Sunday 1/3/ 15

Thursday 05/03/15 10:29am-11:14am
Thursday 12/03/15] 10:59am-12:59pm
Friday 13/03/15) 1:04pm
Thursday BV Tpm=3:20pm

Saturday PIETAE 12:53pm-1:34pm

Saturday 14/11/15) 10:59am-5:35pm
Sunday 15/11/15) 10:19am-6:59pm
Monday 16/11/15) 8:04am-6:59pm
Tuesday 17/11/15) 8:04am-6:59pm
Wednesday 18/11/15) 8:04am-6:59pm
Thursday 19/11/15) 8:04am-9:24pm
Saturday pAVARVAR 1:30pm-3:10pm

Thursday 26/11/15 11:09am-2:35pm
Friday pYJENVEE 11:59am-2:04pm 11:54am-1:20pm
Saturday pL:IaRVAE 10:54am-3:19pm 11:44am-2:44pm
Monday Rl JARNAR 12:09pm-1:24pm

Tuesday [UWAPIAE 12:19pm-1:34pm 11:35am-1:20pm
Wednesday [P ThPYA 11:34am-2:24pm 11:55am-1:55pm
Friday [E¥APYARE 11:39am-2:54pm 11:55am-1:05pm
Saturday [SYAPIAE 10:44am-4:04pm 1:05pm-3:29pm 11:30am-3:39pm
Monday [ ZhPYh 11:13am-2:19pm 11:15am-1:40pm
Wednesday [LVAPYAE 11:39am-2:24pm 12:24pm-1:10pm
Saturday P TaWIkE 11:49am-3:19pm 12:55pm-1:50pm

14 1 22(11)

Irish race day, University open day

Rugby

xmas market

xmas market

xmas market

xmas market

xmas market

xmas market

xmas market

Rugby, xmas market

xmas market

xmas market

xmas market

3 participation events
1 rRugby
11 Xmas market



68¢ abed

DATA TRUTH 5

Capacity levels are breached due to actual and predictable events.

“"With the historical data, predictive analytics could potentially show at what point a car
park is expected to be full. This can be from a mix of the historical data, and current fill

rate for areas such as rugby matches and the Xmas market.” Source Bath Hack



The Alliance

Review

#1 Usable data is available to understand P&R usage

o #2 Across 2015 the trend shows P&R usage is at its lowest when

‘i congestion is at its highest

- #3 When compared to previous years P&R trend usage through
the day has not varied significantly

#4 A new Park and Ride with 1,400 spaces will on average have
57% spaces free across the day or in real terms 798 UNUSED
spaces.

#5 Specifically with regards to London Road and the rush hour
(8am-9am) an East Park and Ride will only take 350 cars off this
road over this hour.

#6 Capacity levels are breached due to actual and predictable events.



s e T

“Thinking is the hardest work there is”

Henry Ford

T6¢ abed



Z6¢ abe

BﬁEh ILDark & Rides Usage Analysis

01/02/2016



100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

ansdown o m— Newbri
_ . -
IEEEEE i T < IO
INEENN 0% EENEEE i NN
I NN NN gl HE N i NN N NN
IEEEEE zin NN i EEEE NN
iEEE NN = HEN < T
] 1 ] BN NN
] HEE oy A e
] T 5% | T IEET 2 i
T = = T
B 0% - 0% -
© ® o o ®
LTI YT T TS T
N
(e}
w
Summary:

1.If commuters are using P&R then they should not be emptying so early in the day
2.Hypothesising It appears that the P&Rs are being used for visits to the town for short trips half a days or less.
3.But there is no research on who uses them on an average day, when they use them and why.



v6¢ abed

6 Air Quality

The Alliance

Air Quality Sensitivity Assessment

Dr Nick Davey
Entran Ltd



G6¢ abed

The Alliance
\\//

Section 6 AIR QUALITY - DR Nick Davey

Overview of Air Quality in Bath & Batheaston
Air quality standards and objectives

Health impacts of nitrogen dioxide

Air quality sensitivity analysis

Conclusions




The Alliance

Overview of Air Quality in Bath & Batheaston

= AQMA’s have been designates for Bath’s major road network (incl. A4 London
Rd), Keynsham High Street and A4 Saltford;

-
Q
@ = Fxceedences of nitrogen dioxide objective;
N
&
Bath Air Quality Management Area 2013 ot s s o
NO2 Annual Mean and 1-hour Objectives N;nl;e;?::g
Compiled by N Courthold on 22 January 2013 Scale 113000 Tel 01225 477000

AR

(7 Hor g mety's ey OF1w 8 Ern Capyfph. Urandbertoad rsradacon frrgges Crian oo right and iy las 10 prosscudion o el rocesegs Ueirsi i 10002553




The Alliance

Overview of Air Quality in Bath & Batheaston

162 abed

e
5

M =" | ondon Road :_°

-

" S
= Ly -
. ": o

L




/V ;7

Overview of Air Quality in Bath & Batheaston

London Road
Annual Mean (ug/m?) 60 57 56 57 57
Number of hourly means > 200 pg/m? 6 2 2 4 10

86¢ abed

Batheaston-

240 London Roadside ?l:;;g‘é:; Tm 33 35 34 34 38

Road (58)

Batheaston-

Brow Hill Roadside 877779, 05m 34 33 34 32 35
167453

(56)

Batheaston -

High Street Roadside 377628, 2m 24 28 26 25 26

3 (57) 167369

= Nitrogen dioxide concentrations not reducing, despite improvements in vehicle
technology;

= 38 ug/m3 in Batheaston compared to air quality standard of 40 ug/m?
= Set for the protection of human health



66¢ abed

The Alliance

Air Quality Legislation and Policy

UK Government’s policy on air quality is set out within the Air Quality Strategy
(AQS);

The AQS sets the framework to achieve international commitments;

AQS sets standards for 10 main air pollutants;

Standards are set based on medical and scientific evidence reviewed by EPAQS
and WHO.

At alocal level, Part IV of the Environment Act 1995 requires Local Authorities
to periodically review and assess air quality within their administrative area.
Where air quality objective not met then AQMAs must be designated and an
AQAP drawn up to deliver improvements in pursuit of air quality objectives.
NPPF requirement for planning to:

“contribute to conserving and enbhancing the natural environment and reducing pollution” and
further goes on to state “prevent both new and existing developments from contributing to

or being put at unacceptable risk or being adversely affected by unacceptable levels of air




00g abed

The Alliance

Health Impacts from Nitrogen Dioxide

NO, has been shown to have an adverse impact on health;
Impacts upon the respiratory system;

Younger children and asthmatics being the groups most at risk;
Breathing difficulties at high concentrations;

NO, may also cause eye, nose and throat irritation.




The Alliance

RS

Air Quality Sensitivity Analysis

*  Detailed dispersion modelling assessment in-line with DEFRA guidance.
*  Sensitivity scenarios assessed through Batheaston (additional vehicles).

Bailbrook é‘:ﬁé‘
Farm The Vine
House
PW

Bailbruo ‘ 10

&
&> PH
LB
0 Bathampton Bridge
Toll
Bailbrook 49’ : | (Toll)
Pas /
Sports Field
" Horticultural
: %
Station

"
athamptony
pIE ~.q @




20¢g abed

The Alliance |

‘_\\/

Air Quality Sensitivity Analysis - Findings

1

38.0 40.4 42.6 43.2
2 38.0 41.5 44.8 45.4
38.0 42.5 46.6 47.7
4 38.0 41.6 44.8 45.5

*  Exceedence of nitrogen dioxide objective for all scenarios;

* Would result in the need to extend the London Road AQMA into Batheaston;

*  Classified as ‘moderate’ to ‘substantial’ adverse impacts which would contradict
policy and the Council’s actions to improve air quality;

* Introduces new exposure to pollutant concentrations above the objective and
therefore would impact upon health of residents.



£0¢g abed

The Alliance

Conclusions

The Batheaston area is very sensitive in terms of air quality;
Nitrogen Dioxide levels are already very close to the annual mean
standard of 40 ug/m>;

Even an increase of <1,000 vehicles per day would result in
exceedance of the air quality standard and therefore the need for
the London Road AQMA to be extended beyond the A46 into
Batheaston;

This would clearly result in health impacts, be contrary to policy
and work against the Council’s efforts to improve air quality in
Bath.

It 1s therefore concluded that an alternative location should be
considered that does not result in such impacts on air quality and

health.



The Alliance

P
Section 7 New Evidence - B&RNES



/

Section 7 A Summary

EXxisting evidence does not support a
P&R on the meadows



/

It doesn’t matter how ‘green’
sthe car park is - its very
*existence will bring 1,000 new

cars to the area each day (or

2,000 trips each way)



The Alliance

The logic behind the Meadows does not stack
up from a usage perspective

Council data

® 2,000 cars will be taken off the road in each

direction each day (based on 1.5x usage of each
of 1400 spaces)

® 45% of these will be commuters (based on
2009 surveys at existing park and rides)

® Therefore 900 commuters might park and
égide each day and 1,100 are other users

%{[‘his doesn’t take into account that:
~ 2
® There are detours and new trips etc.

® The transport strategy Fig 9.2 shows a daily
profile from November that doesn’t match —
these aren’t commuters

® You likely hold bus user profile data
(concessionary vs non) — this must tell you a

broad age profile

® The Transport Strategy tells us that total
commuter parking demand for the whole city

from outside Bath is 2,590 (Fig.9.5)

Community data based on same 2,000 cars

® Of these 2,000 cars, c.50% are new trips,
detours or abstraction from public transport*

® So only 1,000 cars are likely to come off the
London Road

® Of which only 25% are commuters**

® Therefore 250 existing commuters might
park and ride each day and 750 existing shoppers

® Council parking data matches this from
existing Park and Rides

® The 1,000 cars from the LLondon Road would
then be filled by supressed demand

® Plus an extra 1,000 trips will happen in the
area that wouldn’t have otherwise, worsening
already poor congestion and pollution locally

® This is not the solution to the London Road
or the location to place any new car park

*Source: Zijlstra, Vanouttrive and Verhetsel 2015

** Source: Andrew Lea



The Alliance

rom a congestion and emission Ive - you have

to tackle the London Road bottleneck first

London Rd traffic A4 Bypass traffic A46 AADF traffic
counts 2000-2014 counts 2000-2014 counts 2000-2014
25000 25000 25000
20000 20000 20000
Y
15008 15000 15000
@D
1000& 10000 10000
oo

R 5000

5000

(0]

O & X o D © 0 N O & X o P © 9 X
) O O O L L & o o O O O O SaEe)
S O S S S S B S S S S S
m Cars mLGVs m Cars WmLGVs m Cars mLGVs

| Y A Y 4

® Declining cats but increasing ® Increasing cars and LGVs (higher pollutants) on roads encircling
LGVs (hlgher pollutants) proposed sites

® Remains an illegal pollution ® No reason to suspect that this trend will change
level exacerbated by standing ® Any measures that increase traffic volumes here will drive up
trafﬁc? at Lambridge and pollution in Batheaston and may even do so on the London Road
crawling traffic thereafter




The Alliance

_ Andthe proposed link road‘vVﬂTﬁk@Frnﬁlﬁvalley

even more polluted - we cannot take it all on here

-
)
Q
o
8 O
© g patndMmpion
) Bathampton, Bath and | / A
?E" T Morth East Somerset | ¢ 7
o™ [a36) 7
X v ! /
'p"-ﬁ.""""rl C'la'd #
&
o
035 e
Sydrey
Farderns
o N |

* Increased traffic as cars bypass A36/London Road loop
* Relocation of pollution from the City to the valley

* Increased traffic and emissions in the area around Bathampton, Bathford and Batheaston
*  More HGVs likely to divert, reversing the declining trend locally

Fe



The Alliance

Section 8 What Now for Batheaston?

The Legal Context — Annie Kilvington




TTE abed

The Alliance

What Now for Batheaston?
- Introduction

2014 Nox readings at Batheaston mean Council must carry out Detailed
Assessment under Part IV of the EA Act 1995.

New AQMA for Batheaston, or extension of existing to cover area to east
of A46 Roundabout, is inevitable.

BANES has statutory duty to reverse Batheaston’s current poor air
quality. So obligations upon BANES re:

emissions monitoring and reporting; and
Planning and development



The Alliance
Updating &
Screening )
Assessment

The Route to | Mayaos
an AQMA

fO r Batheaston annual mean
- concentration NO2
& Batheaston 2014 - 38ug/m3
S . .
Are air quality
objectives
being, or likely
to be
Y exceeded? N
s (0]
S Continue to review.
Prepare detailed
Prepare Detailed assessment at any point
Assessment by 30 if required

April 2016



£T¢ abed

The Alliance

The Environment Act 1995
and Detailed Assessments (1)

Section 83 EA Act 1995 obliges LAs to designate AQMA
where air quality objectives are unlikely to be, or are not
being, met.

AQMA must encompass all known and predicted areas

of exceedance where there is relevant exposure (Defra
Local Air Quality Management Policy Guidance (PGog))

Statutory obligation to be confident all locations where air
quality objectives are or will be exceeded in relevant year
and beyond are identified.



v TE abed

The Alliance

The Environment Act 1995
and Detailed Assessments (2)

Detailed monitoring, analysis, & traffic modelling
required (Defra Technical Guidance LAQM.TG(09))

Failure to designate an area which is or is likely to
exceed the national and EU limit values for NO2 is a

breach of statutory duty.



The Alliance

Continuing Obligations

Council has continuing obligation to meet objectives -
year on year.

o
QD
Q

e Council cannot wait until next Updating & Screening
"Assessment (USA) to carry out Detailed Assessment where
risk identified that an air quality objective will be exceeded.



e

Action Plan & Progress Reporting for Batheaston

91¢ abed




LTg abed

The Alliance

What does this mean for Planning &
Development in Batheaston?

UK is in ongoing breach of the limit values of the Air
Quality Directive 2008/50/EC

Planning Authorities must therefore use their powers to
achieve compliance.

Planning authorities must seek to prevent or reduce extent
of breaches of EU law including the Air Quality Directive.



81¢ abed

The Alliance

What the National Planning Policy
Framework Says

Core principle of the NPPF is that planning should:

“contribute to preserving and enhancing the natural environment and reducing
pollution”



The Alliance

What the National Planning Practice
Guidance Says (1)

The PPG 2015 states:

“Whether or not air quality is relevant to a planning decision
will depend on the proposed development and its location.
&Concerns could arise if the development is likely to generate
aiir quality impact in an area where air quality is known to be
poor. They could also arise where the development is likely to
adversely impact upon the implementation of air quality
strategies and action plans, and/or in particular lead to a
breach of EU legislation (including that applicable to wildlife)



The Alliance

What the National Planning Practice
Guidance says (2)

Considerations could include whether the development would:

0zg abed

-“Significantly affect traffic in the immediate vicinity of the proposed
development site or further afield. This could be by generating or
increasing traffic congestion; significantly changing traffic volumes,
vehicle speed or both; or significantly altering the traffic composition
on local roads. Other matters to consider include whether the proposal
...adds to turnover of a large car park;

-Affect biodiversity. In particular is it likely to result in deposition or
concentration of pollutants that significantly affect a European
designated wildlife site...or does it otherwise affect biodiversity,
particularly designated wildlife sites.”



TZg abed

The Alliance

Know your Limits & Targets

EU Law on Air Quality imposes more than one type of qualitative
standard.

For some pollutants, eg Sulphur Dioxide & Carbon Monoxide it sets
“targets”

For others, including NOz2 it sets “limit” values — which “may not be
exceeded’.

These are obligations of result —

“no excuses”, no matter how difficult.



zzs abed

The Alliance

Where am | going with this?

Here!

A planning authority cannot grant permission for a development
which would lead to a breach of the limit values in the area of
development —because this would be taking, rather than refraining
from taking a measure which jeopardises the fulfilment of the UK’s
obligations under the Directive.

YOU CAN'T DO IT.



The Alliance

LET ME PUT IT ANOTHER WAY

gze abed

Planning Authorities have a duty in their decision making to achieve
compliance with the EU Air Quality Directive 2008

Where a development would cause a breach in the locality of the
development they must refuse permission

Where a development would in the locality either make significantly
worse an existing breach, or significantly delay achievement with
compliance with limit values it must be refused



/ . .
-~ Reminder of the Evidence

Given that existing baseline concentrations are already close to the objective
on London Road West/ High Street Batheaston, it can be seen that all
scenarios assessed would result in exceedance of the annual mean objective for
n%rogen dioxide. Based on the magnitude of impacts predicted by the
sénsitivity analysis, these would be classified as a moderate to substantial
adverse effect.

38.0 40.4 42.6 43.2
2 38.0 41.5 44.8 45.4

3 38.0 42.5 46.6 41.7

4 38.0 41.6 44.8 45.5

Source: Bathampton Meadows Park and Ride AirQuality Sensitivity Assessment — Entran Limited 27t January 2016



The Alliance

=

/

What Air Quality will do to Planning

Additional Info
Development needed to assess
likely to give existing air quality &
concerns Yes Environmental Ve pre.dlct .future.
. about Air Statenlale. 1. 17 b.aselme air quality
8 Quality with and without the
& development
Will development lead to
I i unacceptable risk from air
p P anning b Yes pollution, or prevent
LSS0 Ve sustained compliance with
REFUSED

EU Limit Values or
national objectives for
pollutants?



The Alliance

\\/
> —

/ 2016 Community proposal for transport
solutions East of Bath

Why not the Meadows?

o
&)

Q
(4]
w
N
(o))




The Alliance

Summary

/2€ abed

You have heard evidence based reasons why:

the Council should not build a P&R on the Meadows because of
the high level of emissions in the area;

a park and ride on the Meadows would not solve Bath’s traffic
problems; and

there is unutilised capacity in the existing park and rides.

You also need to consider issues included in an Appendix to our
report:

1. Legal and planning constraints and impact on the
environment

2. Loss of community amenity

3. Impact on our World Heritage City
4. Visual impact (LDF criteria)

5. Level of objection(LDF criteria)



The Alliance

\\/
P

2016 Community proposal for transport
solutions East of Bath

Section9. A Way Forward - A Community Proposal
Christine Boyd

T
jab)
Q
(4]
w
N
(0]




The Alliance

/’

A Phased Approach

We all agree that Bath
has a problem with
congestion and
emissions. The people
im the city and the
éommunity in the

w
Bast are unhappy
about this situation.

We all want to find a
solution.




The Alliance

/

—

A Phased Approach

B&NES has proposed
that a Park & Ride on
Bathampton Meadow is
th& answer to our
problems, but the
evidence does not
support this.

(In fact there is very
little evidence at all.)




The Alliance

A phased approach

What we do now know, based upon the yearly trend
of actual usage, is that there is spare capacity in our
existing Park and Ride sites.

2 This allows B&NES time to step back and take a
phased approach.

Meeting the short-term needs, while gathering the
appropriate evidence to solve the long-term
problems.




1.

zsele\ﬁ)ecj

O I >0

The Alliance

Our Community Proposal

Build a P&R on A4 beyond the Bathampton Basin
(if you must)

. Utilise spare capacity at Lansdown P&R through

better signage and road improvements
Utilise spare capacity at all P&R sites by better
communication and signage

. Address seasonal demand fluctuations
. Work with the Alliance to develop sustainable

transport solutions for the east of Bath that create
true modal shift.



The Alliance
\/’

1 Build a Park and Ride
- on A4 beyond the Meadows Basin (if you must)

Individual members of the Alliance are submitting
suggestions for alternative sites to the LDF that could be
considered

gee abed

This does not mean we support Park & Ride !



The Alliance
\/
/

| Any P&R must be outside the Meadows Basin

¢ P&R, on the east of the city
must be outside the Meadows
Basin, otherwise emissions will

ycg abed

breach legal limits.

® The council can only consider
sites that are far enough along
the A4 or the A46 not to create
further problems

But we preter link and ridel



The Alliance
\\//

/7
] 2. Use the spare capacity at Lansdown P&R by creating better
signage and improving access roads

Existing P&R sites have an average
occupancy of less than 50%.

If a new P&R is built ‘P&R

veterans’ will transfer from
existing P&R sites further

reducing occupancy.

Ggee abed

Instead of embarking on a costly new Park & Ride, we suggest using
the spare capacity in our existing sites

Overcome poor signage and poor access to Lansdown P&R



The Alliance

3. Use spare capacity at P&R sites by improving
information and signage

* The top Google hit when searching ‘parking in Bath’ is the Visit Bath website.
http://visitbath.co.uk/travel-and-maps/parking-in-bath

Lists 13 city centre car parks but P&R 1s not on the list.

-
D

BB&NES parking webpage.

glttp: [ /swww.bathnes.gov.uk/services/parking-and-travel /car-parking /parking-bath

This shows all car parks including Park and Ride on an interactive map. It also lists car parks and their
tariffs, but this excludes Park and Ride sites.

2 Hours 3 Hours 4 Hours 6 Hours 8 Hours 10 Hours 12 Hours

Avon Street

(BA1 1UF) £3.10 £430 £540 £740 £990 x £1250
Charlotte Street
(BA1 2NE) X x £540 £640 x x £8.50

Manvers Street
(BA1 1J2Z) £310 £430 £540 £740 £990 x £1250



Bath Car Parks
Easy Check. Easy Park.

3. Use spare capacity at P&R sites by

LEE S%id

improving information and signage RER Ariie
Newbridge P+R W
Charlotte Street Car Park N4
http:/ /www.bathcarparks.co.uk
This shows all currently available parking spaces in SouthGate General Car Park N
Bath including the Park & Rides. But as there is
usually spare capacity in the city centre car parks, it il e o
oes not offer an incentive to use the Park & Rides.
Lansdown P+R %
The community believes that better signage and Southiiate el Cor Fark o
online information, plus ‘live’ information boards at
o . 0dd Down P+R N
strategic entrances to the city, would encourage more
visitors to use the existing Park & Rides and increase R B o

the usage figures. Work place and school travel plans
should reinforce this message.

Powered and Designed by d O d I Fy

Data provided by Bath: Hacked



The Alliance

4. Address seasonal
demand fluctuations

The Alliance has shown, in its
analyms of the actual yearly data
for I%rk & Ride usage in Bath, that
arouﬁﬁd 75% of P&R users are
likely to be shoppers and day-
trippers.

Some visitors use city centre car
parks, and they are likely to leave
the city around the same time as

commuters, compounding traffic
problems in the evening rush hour.



The Alliance

}“j dress seasonal demand HM

The P&R sites are busiest on
Saturdays and at certain times of
year such as during the
Christmas Market.

The busiest day last year was the
5th of December, when the
Christmas Market and a Bath
Rugby game combined meant
tk%t parking capacity was
exgeeded at all three Park and
Riles.

These are predictable events and the problems they create can be avoided by proper demand management
measures, such as providing overflow parking, and programmes to shift the time that visitors leave the city to
beyond the rush hour.



The Alliance

~—deas to manage peak demand

* Bath Racecouse can be used as a seasonal overflow P&R site. Its close proximity to Lansdown means
that it could be served by a short extension to the P&R bus service for this site

It is possible that this solution could also be offered for Bath rugby home games and other events as
required.

* There are likely to be other potential seasonal sites next to the other Park & Ride sites at Odd Down
éz;gmd Newbridge. For example, Newton Park campus or Wessex Water car park which are not used at
Zoweekends

S Bath Tourist office, working in partnership with shops, restaurants, and visitor attractions, could do
more to encourage longer stays in the city and so avoid an exodus of visitors during the rush hour.

A good model for this is Cambridge, where the tourist office organises events and street performances
around 5pm. Museums, galleries and shops also stay open until 7 or 8pm, and restaurants, bars and
attractions offer ‘happy hour’ prices at this time, to encourage people to stay in the centre longer.




The Alliance

5. Work with the Alliance to develop sustainableﬁﬁfsport

solutions for the east of Bath that create true modal shift.

We are a car-loving nation and Bath
is no different from the rest of the
UK in this respect. Unless positive
measures are employed to change
behaviour and get people out of their
cars our traffic problems will remain

Tv€ abed

It is clear that neither the council nor the community have all the answers. But the Alliance has
shown that local people are capable of working productively with the council and should be
considered part of the solution not part of the problem

Part of the work of the Alliance has been to develop our own ideas for creating modal shift,
these ideas are set out in our own alternative transport strategy attached at appendix X

We are now calling upon B&NES to join with the Alliance to develop our ideas by establishing a
high-level working group, involving the council, transport professionals and the community, to
build a strategy that targets modal shift to the east of Bath



The Alliance

\\/
> —

/ 2016 Community proposal for transport
solutions East of Bath

10 : Alternative strategies — Mark Millar

o
&)

Q
(4]
w
SN
N




The Alliance

Alternative strategies that work

cie abed

Making it cheaper to travel by public transport
Congestion charging

Improving local rail services such as MetroWest
Investing in safe walking and cycling routes

Measures to ensure the protection of bus services to the
villages east of Bath

Cautious support to the introduction of a Low Emission
Zone, provided it does not export emissions from the centre
to outlying villages.



The Alliance

Getting Around Bath Transport Strategy

Many positive transport measures set out in the Getting
Around Bath transport Strategy.

Concern is that this policy as yet has:
no implementation plan,
no set targets for bringing down congestion or improving
air quality, and
no system for monitoring components of the plan as they
are rolled out.

T
QD

«Q
(0]
(0%)
o
o

We urge B&NES to address this.



The Alliance

Getting Around Bath Transport Strategy (ctd)

Council’'s commitment to delivering ‘soft” measures — low-cost

Gie abed

high value-for-money initiatives with the community
including:

Car clubs

Travel plans

Car sharing
iCollective Mobility

Walking for Health initiatives Decommissioning older taxis
and buses

Providing the infrastructure



The Alliance

Two areas we believe should be targeted by B&ANES

The Workplace: encouraging employers (hospitals, schools, etc) to
promote car sharing; to put in washing facilities (showers,
etc) and lockers for cyclists or runners; provide safe storage
areas for bicycles; remove free parking as a perk.

EU survey showed such measures reduced car use by 4-18%.

o€ abed

Schools: school-related traffic accounts for significant traffic flows;

Reduce school bus fares: It costs £3 a day for a return ticket for
a child travelling from Batheaston to Ralph Allen School -
multiplied for more than one child

Work with schools to produce individual school travel plans:
promote walking and, for older pupils, cycling and car-sharing.



The Alliance

Alternative strategies: Conclusion

/1€ abed

Soft measures alone are not likely to solve Bath’s congestion
problems.

However such techniques and highly focused marketing techniques
have been shown to have a measurable effect on influencing
consumer choice - and the cost, in real terms is negligible.

According to Department of Transport figures, introducing a range
of behaviour-changing measures concurrently across the city can
result in car driver trips down by 9%, cycle trips up by 26-30%,
walking trips up by 10-13% and carbon reduction per head of
population by 50kgs.

We have a highly articulate, educated and motivated community
here in Bath who believe in our city and want to make it one of the
best places to live in the country.

Let’s work together to achieve this.



Section 11
Next Steps and Wrap Up



Appendix 4

Site

feasibility and deliverability of
each site option;

costs associated with each
site option;

transport benefits of each
site option; and

visual impact of each site
option.

Site A: Land east
of A4/A46

Access onto London Road West
is difficult/costly due to gradient.
Likely detrimental effect on Air
Quality at the roundabout &
London Road East. Part of site in
flood plain.

Cost of car park in the region
of £3-4m with additional cost of
a new/improved access
(£1+m) and flood mitigation.

Well located to capture demand
but likely to increase congestion
on A46 roundabout

Not in AONB

High negative impact on AONB
setting

Within WHS, high negative
landscape impact

Partially in Greenbelt

Site A+: Land east
& west of A4/A46

May increase congestion on A46
roundabout. Likely detrimental
effect on Air Quality at the
roundabout & London Road.
Highways England (HE) approval
required

Significant costs as decking
needed to provide capacity.
£20+m depending on number
of decks

Well located to capture demand
but access problematic

Not in AONB

High negative impact on AONB
setting

Within WHS, high negative
landscape impact

Not within Greenbelt

Site B: Land west
of_I\EIJIiII lane

61€ abe

Access from A4 would need HE
approval and may be difficult to
provide without using Site F

No structures if access direct
from A4 but significant earth
works needed given level
differences. £8m — £12m

Well located to capture demand
and would allow link to Metro
West rail option

Not in AONB

High and negative impact on
WHS setting and AONB setting
Located in the Greenbelt
Comprehensive approach and
landscape mitigation would
reduce landscape impact

Site C: Charmy
Down

Access from A46 difficult due to
safety because of poor visibility
and speed of traffic, land

unstable, HE approval required

Significant costs to gaining
safe access from A46 £20+m

Well located for A46 traffic from
the north but not for east of Bath

Within AONB, high negative
impact on AONB and WHS
setting. Located within an area of
water source protection.

Located in the Greenbelt

Site E: Bathford

Site too small, negative impact on
adjoining streets and dwellings
and would require pedestrian
crossing of A4 if promoted in
combination with other sites.

No significant structure
required. £4m

Well located to capture demand

Not in AONB. High negative
impact on WHS setting and
AONB setting

Located in the Greenbelt




Appendix 4

Site

feasibility and deliverability of
each site option;

costs associated with each
site option;

transport benefits of each
site option; and

visual impact of each site
option.

Site F: Land east of
Mill lane

Previous Planning Permission
shows deliverability

£7.3m-£11m

Well located to capture demand

Not in AONB

High and negative impact on
WHS setting and AONB setting
Located in the Greenbelt
Comprehensive approach and
landscape mitigation would
reduce landscape impact

Site F+: Land east
of Mill lane with
mitigation

)

Previous Planning Permission
shows deliverability

£7.3m—-£11m

Well located to capture demand

Not in AONB

High and negative impact on
WHS setting and AONB setting
Located in the Greenbelt
Ecological and landscape
mitigation would reduce
landscape impact and deliver
biodiversity gain

v
Site G: Lansdown

P&R

Existing P&R site which could be
expanded

No significant structure
required. £1-2m depending on
spaces required.

Well located to capture demand
from the north but not from east,
access is poor and by minor
roads in South Gloucestershire

Within AONB, negative
landscape impact
Comprehensive approach and
landscape mitigation could reduce
landscape impact

Located in the Greenbelt

Site H: Bathampton
Junction

Network Rail (NR) not supportive,
no business case and very
difficult access under A4 &
railway, 10+ years to deliver.
Approval required from HE & NR

Significant costs associated
with a tunnel under the A4 &
railway, a decked car park and
moving the railway line. Over
£60m

Well located to capture demand

Located within AONB, high
negative impact on AONB, WHS
setting, existing listed building
Located in the Greenbelt

Site H+:
Bathampton
Junction - bus
based

Unlikely to have a positive
business case, difficult access
under A4 & railway. Approval
required from HE & NR

Significant costs associated
with a tunnel under the A4 &
railway & a decked car park.
Over £50m

Well located to capture demand

Located within AONB, high
negative impact on AONB, WHS
setting, existing listed building,
significant impact due to height of
decked structure

Located in the Greenbelt




Appendix 4

Site

feasibility and deliverability of
each site option;

costs associated with each
site option;

transport benefits of each
site option; and

visual impact of each site
option.

Site I: Box Bridge

Road safety concerns regarding
access due to limited visibility and
vehicle speeds. Site long and thin
so difficult to serve. Bus terminal
would be difficult to fit onto the
site. Site is in Wiltshire who
would be the planning authority
for any planning application.

Access under rail bridge would
need enlarging to
accommodate traffic.
Approximately £10m

Site some distance from Bath
and only attractive to A4 traffic

Located within AONB, high
negative impact on AONB, WHS
setting

Outside of B&NES

Site 1: Land adj. to
Meadow Farm

Access difficult and expensive
due to river and flood plain.

Significant structures required
to access site £30+m

Well located to capture demand

Not in AONB

High negative impact on WHS
and AONB setting

Located in the Greenbelt

Site 2: Land at
Broadlands farm

bed

Small site, impact on nearby
dwellings

No significant structures
required £3m

Site some distance from Bath
and only attractive to A4 traffic

Within AONB. Undeveloped site
detrimental impact on AONB and
WHS setting

Located in the Greenbelt

Sitg 3: Land north
of Box Bridge

Site may flood, access from A4
difficult due to limited visibility

No significant structures but a
former tip so unknown costs

Site some distance from Bath
and only attractive to A4 traffic

Within AONB, undeveloped site
detrimental impact on AONB
Located in the Greenbelt

Site 4: Land north
of Box Road

Site could accommodate some of
the demand from A4, access
difficult due to visibility

£2.0 - £3.5m

Site some distance from Bath
and only attractive to A4 traffic

Within AONB but has
development on it.

High and negative impact on
WHS setting and AONB .

Located in the Greenbelt
Comprehensive approach and
landscape mitigation could reduce
landscape impact

Site 5:Land off A46
at Swainswick &
Bailbrook

No site identified, land stability
issues

N/K

N/K

N/K
Located in the Greenbelt
Within AONB and WHS setting




Appendix 4

Site

feasibility and deliverability of
each site option;

costs associated with each
site option;

transport benefits of each
site option; and

visual impact of each site
option.

Site 6: Bath Race
course

Not available for regular use,
impact on golf club, potential
clashes with race days

No significant structures £2m

Well located for A46 traffic but
not for east of Bath

Within AONB, negative
landscape impact
Located in the Greenbelt

Site 7: Land at
Lambridge

Air Quality and congestion issues,
limited capacity

Need to compensate for loss
of flood capacity

Well located to capture traffic

Within WHS high negative impact

Site 8 Land off A4

Site large enough to support
forecast demand.

No significant structures £2.9 -
£4.2m

Site some distance from Bath
and only attractive to A4 traffic

Within AONB but has
development on it.

High and negative impact on
WHS setting and AONB .

Located in the Greenbelt
Comprehensive approach and
landscape mitigation could reduce
landscape impact

Sitg 9: Land east of
B@k Road Gardens
)

Small site

No significant structures £2.3m
-£3.3m

Site some distance from Bath
and only attractive to A4 traffic

Within AONB, undeveloped site
detrimental impact on AONB
Located in the Greenbelt

Sif® 10: Lane west
oflbower Lodge,
Box

Site could accommodate forecast

No significant structures £2.3m
-£3.3m

Site some distance from Bath
and only attractive to A4 traffic

Within AONB, undeveloped site
detrimental impact on AONB
Located in the Greenbelt




Appendix 4

Page 353



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 13

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING | Cabinet

EXECUTIVE FORWARD

MEETING 04 May 2016 PLAN REFERENCE:

DATE:

E 2857

TITLE:

Youth Justice Plan 2016-17

WARD:

All

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:
Youth Justice Plan 2016-17

1 THE ISSUE

1.1

The Local Authority has a statutory duty, in consultation with key partner agencies,
Health Police and Probation, to produce an annual Youth Justice Plan. The Plan sets
out how youth justice services are to be composed and funded, how they will operate
and what functions they will carry out to prevent youth offending and re-offending
across Bath and North East Somerset.

2 RECOMMENDATION

2.1

2.2

The Cabinet recommends adoption of the Youth Justice Plan as part of the Council’s
Policy and Budget Framework and notes this can be accommodated within the Council
budget.

Cabinet recommends the Youth Justice Plan to Council as fulfilling the requirements of
the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and agrees it can be submitted to the Youth Justice
Board for England and Wales.

3 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE)

3.1

3.2

The Council is the lead partner in the multi-agency arrangements to prevent youth
offending, working closely with Police, Probation and Health Services. All partners
have statutory responsibilities to participate in the resourcing of the Youth Offending
Service. Following national consultation, the National Probation Service staffing
contribution is reducing and they are contributing £5,000 into the pooled budget, after
a number of years of making no contribution. The Council makes a significant
contribution in terms of staff, cash and additional support, including provision of office
accommodation and financial and human resources support services. In 2016-17, the
Council is contributing £440,700, most of which pays for staff salaries.

The work of the Service also depends on a national grant from the Ministry of Justice,
via the Youth Justice Board. It has received notification of a 11.2% reduction and the
Youth Offending Service Management Board has arrangements in place to review the
implications of this settlement and to support the Youth Offending Service to deliver

Printed on recycled paper Page 355




services in accordance with this Plan for 2016-17. Submission of a Youth Justice Plan
is a condition for receipt of the national grant.

4 STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS AND BASIS FOR PROPOSAL
4.1 Preparation of an annual Youth Justice Plan is required under Section 40 of the

Crime and Disorder Act 1998. The national Youth Justice Board for England and
Wales has published guidelines for its completion and requires it to be submitted by
July 2016.

5 THE REPORT

5.1The principal, statutory aim of the youth justice system is to prevent youth
offending by 10-17 year olds. The Youth Justice Plan reviews the positive progress
made last year in work with young people at risk of offending and re-offending and
with their parents/carers and victims and sets out how services are to be resourced
and delivered in 2016-17.

5.2 Actions in the work plan will contribute to making Bath and North East Somerset
a safer place and to helping young people work towards more positive, crime-free
outcomes.

6 RATIONALE

6.1 The Council has a statutory obligation to publish a Youth Justice Plan
7 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

7.1 None
8 CONSULTATION

8.1 This Plan draws on learning from a recent HMIP Inspection, feedback from
service users and consultation with the Youth Offending Service and its Management
Board.

8.2 A copy has been sent to the Trade Unions.

8.3 This Plan has been drawn to the attention of the Council’s Monitoring Officer
(Divisional Director — Legal and Democratic Services) and the Section 151 Officer
(Divisional Director — Finance)

9 RISK MANAGEMENT

9.1 A risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been undertaken, in
compliance with the Council’s decision making risk management guidance.

Contact person Sally Churchyard: 01225 396966

Background papers Youth Justice Plan 2015-16

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an alternative
format

Printed on recycled paper Page 356




Printed on recycled paper Page 357



This page is intentionally left blank



65¢ abed

Bath and North East Somerset

Youth Justice Plan
2016 — 2017

Working in partnership to prevent youth offending

National e " NHS|
Prgg?&:gg -: Bath and North East Somerset
Clinical Commissioning Group

Working together for health & well-being

1



e obey o

©

cooTo 2

Contents
Introduction

Local Priorities

Core Areas of Work for the Youth Offending Service
Multi-disciplinary Work

Performance

Learning from Feedback

Short Quality Screening Inspection

The changing Context for Youth Justice

Work Plan 2016 — 2017

Governance, Leadership and Partnership Arrangements
Budget Summary

Partner Agency Commitment

Appendices:

Review of Work Plan 2015 — 2016

Youth Offending Service values

Youth Offending Service Organisational Chart

Youth Offending Service Staff by Gender and Ethnicity
Glossary of Terms

Page 3

Page 3 -4
Page 5-9
Page 9 - 11
Page 12 - 17
Page 17 - 20
Page 20
Page 20
Page 21 - 23
Page 24 - 25

Page 26
Page 27

Page 28 — 32
Page 33
Page 34
Page 35
Page 36 - 37



1. Introduction

Youth Offending Services were established under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to prevent youth offending. This Plan is written in
accordance with the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and guidance from the Youth Justice Board and sets out how this work will be taken forward
in the year ahead. It summarises the achievements of the Youth Offending Service and its partners in 2015-2016 and, drawing on feedback from
service users, a review of local performance data and learning from a very recent Inspection, sets out a work plan for 2016-2017. The Plan has
been consulted with members of the Youth Offending Service, its Management Board and the two sub-groups, the Youth Crime Prevention
Board and the Custody Review Panel.

The Youth Offending Service is very well established within the Authority and makes a substantial contribution to the work of a range of other
partnerships and work streams. It regards these as opportunities to learn and share good practice and to influence other strategies to ensure
they take account of the interests of young people at risk of offending and re-offending, their parents/carers and victims.

At the time of compiling this Plan, the youth justice system is subject to a national review which will report in July 2016. The year ahead is likely
to prove a significant time in shaping future delivery of services for young people who offend. Time has been set aside for the Management
Board to consider the implications of the review and direction of travel for the Service.

]o)

%. Local Priorities
w

[*))
The Children and Young People’s Plan 2014-2017 sets out an agreed vision for supporting children and young people to achieve the best
possible outcomes:-

We want all children and young people to enjoy childhood and to be well prepared for adult life

This applies equally to young people at risk of offending or re-offending and as part of the wider children’s workforce, the Youth Offending
Service is committed to the three priority outcomes:-

1. Children and young people are safe
2. Children and young people are healthy
3. Children and young people have equal life chances

The Service has also adopted the local ambition for parenting:-
Parents take responsibility for understanding and meeting their children’s needs, enjoying their
childhood with them and preparing them for adult life



The lead partner for the Youth Offending Service is Bath and North East Somerset Council whose corporate priorities up until 2020 are shown in
the table below, together with the in-year priorities for the Service within which the Youth Offending Service is directly managed:-

Corporate Priorities Linked Children, Young People and Family Service Priorities

A strong economy and growth Narrow the gaps in education and employment outcomes for vulnerable groups of
children and young people.

A focus on prevention Prevent and reduce significant harm and the need for children to grow up in care —
achieve sustainable improved outcomes at the lowest level of intervention.

A new relationship with customers and Keep children and young people at the heart of everything we do - listening to children

communities and young people, parents, carers, victims of crime at team, service & divisional level.

An efficient business Support staff to work effectively with children, young people and families through
workforce development, streamlining systems and processes and focusing our
resources.

S

®he Youth Offending Service reviews its performance in relation to the following nationally reported outcomes;

w

R 1. Reduction in the rate of first time entrants

2. Reduction in the rate of re-offending

3. Reduction in the rate of custody

4. Suitable accommodation

5. Suitable education, training and employment

These local priorities and national outcomes are incorporated into the Work Plan on page 20.



3. Core areas of work for the Youth Offending Service

3.1 Staff from a wide range of backgrounds including Police, Health, Social Care, Education and the National Probation Service, participate in
the multi-agency Youth Offending Service. They work in an integrated way alongside other specialists and have key statutory functions, including
the supervision of young people on Out-of-Court Disposals and Court Orders, giving victims a voice, enabling young people who have offended
to make amends for the harm they have caused and strengthening parenting skills. The statutory work is supplemented by a prevention service,
Compass, which works on a voluntary basis with children aged 8-17 years who are at high risk of offending, and with their families. The Youth
Offending Service is responsible for safeguarding young people and supporting them to make positive lifestyle choices and achieve better
outcomes. The main areas of work are set out below:-

3.2 Prevention

The Youth Offending service has been actively involved in the introduction of an Early Help strategy and a refreshed Parenting Strategy and has
aligned its own prevention work with these developments. Compass is a long-standing service has been designed to work with young people
aged 8-17 who are assessed as being at high risk of offending, and with their parents/carers. The service aims to reduce the risk of individual
young people offending and entering the youth justice system and supports them to improve their social and emotional well-being, to fully
participate in education, training and employment and to strengthen parenting skills. Compass is now part of the local ‘early help’ offer, a wider
ginge of support and services for children and young people to help them before the issues they face become more serious. The Local Authority
&)so commissions an independent sector service, Mentoring Plus, to work with 12-21 years olds at risk of offending and a young person’s
smbstance misuse service. The Youth Offending Service is fully involved in the commissioning processes for both services. Additionally,
compass also undertakes Return Home Interviews with young people who have returned home after going missing. This supports identification
of those who would benefit from early help, including in prevention of child sexual exploitation or offending.

3.3 Diversion

A Cannabis diversion initiative has been piloted this year, in partnership with Police and DHI's Project 28, the local young people’s substance
misuse service. Young people who may have previously been issued with an immediate Youth Caution by the Police are now offered an
opportunity to attend an awareness raising workshop with Project 28. If they take this offer up, they can be dealt with by an informal community
resolution and will not be recorded as formally entering the youth justice system. Those who want it then have an opportunity to continue to work
with Project 28. Between January 2015 and March 2016, thirty one young people attended the Cannabis diversion scheme. Twenty five of these
young people had no previous criminal record. Youth Offending Service and Avon and Somerset Constabulary records indicate that only three
of those twenty five young people have gone on to receive a Youth Caution or higher criminal sanction. As such the scheme has successfully
diverted twenty three young people away from becoming first time entrants to the criminal justice system.



3.3 Pre-Court Disposals

Under the Legal Aid, Sentencing and Punishment of Offenders Act 2012, young people who have admitted a minor offence can be dealt with
outside of the Courts through a Youth Caution or a Youth Conditional Caution. The Youth Offending Service support this process by assessing
young people, shared decision making at fortnightly ‘Out of Court Disposals Panels’ and delivery of short-term interventions to young people and
parents/carers to reduce the risk of re-offending.

3.4 Arrest and Court work

« Appropriate Adult services for young people to safeguard their interests when they are being formally interviewed by the Police.
This service is commissioned from Bristol Youth Offending Service.

+« Bail Support and Supervision — The Youth Offending Service supports and supervises young people who are conditionally bailed by the
Courts to maintain contact with the Youth Offending Service.

+ Remand to the Care of the Local Authority - The Youth Offending Service supports young people who are remanded to the Care of the
Local Authority and become Looked After children. They also have an allocated Social Worker and are entitled to the same level of
support as other Looked After young people.

+ Report Writing - preparation of written reports to inform key decision making about young people who have offended, such as supporting
contract requirements for Referral Order Panels, and analysis of the offence and proposal of sentencing options to the Courts via Pre-
Sentence Reports.

+« Court Duty — providing information and advice to the fortnightly sitting of the local Youth Court and occasionally attending Bristol Crown
Court and other Courts when young people from Bath and North East Somerset are being sentenced. The Service also supports young
people to understand the sentences passed, makes assessments of those who have been remanded or sentenced to custody and makes
follow-up arrangements for working with young people subject to Court Orders.

¥79¢ abed

3.5 Supervision of young people in the community

Young people who are sentenced in the Courts are usually supervised by the Youth Offending Service in the community — that is, they remain
living with their parents or foster carers; occasionally, they may be living in a residential setting. The Youth Offending Service works with young
people to assess their needs and vulnerability and their likelihood of re-offending and where relevant, of causing serious harm to others. They
then work with young people, their parents/carers and other agencies to agree plans to address these concerns. The level of contact with the
Youth Offending Service is determined by the assessed level of risk and the interventions delivered include specific offence-focussed work,
raising victim awareness, encouraging positive activities and supporting engagement in education training or employment. The Youth Offending
Service is responsible for managing young people subject to Intensive Supervision and Surveillance requirements made by the Court as an
alternative to custody. Such an Order requires the young person to engage with a 25 hour per week programme of education, training and
employment, supervision and activities and an electronically monitored curfew. The Service also supervises young people subject to Unpaid
Work Orders.



3.6 Work with young people in custody

A minority of young people are remanded or sentenced to custody, usually because of the seriousness of their offending, but sometimes
because of repeated failure to co-operate with the requirements of Court Orders. The Youth Offending Service provides risk assessments to the
Youth Justice Board to ensure the young person is safely placed in the most appropriate establishment and plans supervision of young people
when they return to the community. The most common youth custodial sentence is the Detention and Training Order, lasting for up to two years.
Longer sentences apply for more serious offences. Bath and North East Somerset is part of a sub-regional Resettlement Consortium which
collaborates in areas of delivery and promotes sharing of best practice.

3.7 Restorative Justice and Work with Victims

Restorative justice approaches are an important part of the Youth Offending Service’s work. The Service aspires to be a restorative service and
encourages staff to raise and address internal issues restoratively wherever possible; there have been some positive experiences of this taking
place in the last year. The Service has also been working towards achievement of the Restorative Justice Quality Mark.

All known victims are visited and work is tailored to their individual needs. During 2015, the network of trained restorative justice facilitators was
increased and the Service began to work in partnership with other agencies including Lighthouse (who offer victim support), the Young Victims’
Service and the North East Restorative Approaches Partnership. The Youth Offending Service now has a ‘virtual team’ of trained facilitators who
%an jointly deliver restorative justice work for all offences, including vulnerable and sensitive victims.

«Q

E;(amples include multi-agency restorative meetings with Curo housing, where family conflicts were addressed in order to avoid evictions and
S mpletion of restorative conferences for assaults and criminal damage. Shuttle mediation has been undertaken to answer victims’ questions
when it has not been possible for victims and young people to meet face to face. Payment for damages and direct reparation has been
undertaken and victims have usually provided excellent feedback.



One person questioned the use of a Youth Hub for a meeting, saying that it did not feel a sufficiently neutral environment as it was more
comfortable for the young person to be there than for the victim. The Service has learned from this and is now reviewing ‘neutrality’ of location in
every instance.

It is clear that young people are also appreciative of what they learn from engaging in this work:-

-
Q

3

Where direct involvement with victims is not possible, then young people are asked to make amends or pay back the wider community by
gndertaking reparation work. This continues to be planned on a more bespoke basis in order to better meet the needs of victims, the local
community and young people. Discussions are had with both victims and young people, with direct reparation completed where appropriate. If
victims do not wish for direct reparation they are encouraged to suggest projects they feel are important where reparation could be carried out.

A large Bath store asked for any reparation to support the work of the Woodland Trust, a charity it supports, or activity in the environment which
would benefit the local community. After discussion with the store and young person it was agreed that they would spend time making open
spaces in the city centre better for the community to enjoy. Part of his reparation was with the Council’s Parks Department, potting up 1000
daffodil bulbs as well as gardening in Bath’s Parade Gardens. He also did a litter pick near the entrance of community green space, the Linear
Park.

Young people are often keen to do litter picking for their reparation and so the challenge is to encourage them to broaden their horizons and do a
reparation activity that has some relevance to the offence and also their aspirations. The Service continues to work with young people to boost
their confidence and esteem. Examples include packing food parcels at the Foodbank, growing fruit and vegetables on the allotment, helping in
a charity shop in Midsomer Norton and helping walk dogs and care for cats at the Bath Cats and Dogs Home.



3.8 Work with parents/carers and families

The Youth Offending Service led in the refresh of the Parenting Strategy this year, promoting whole family approaches and re-stating the
commitment to evidence-based work in supporting parents undertakes assessment of a young person’s family situation and parenting and offers
a range of interventions designed to support family relations, improve parenting skills and confidence. Work with parents is usually on a
voluntary basis but can sometimes be within a Parenting Order. The interventions include individual parenting skills sessions, family mediation
and joint work with the parents/carers and the young person, for example, concerning a young person’s aggression within the home. The Youth
Offending Service is also part of the Connecting Families’ wider matrix team and sometimes takes on the role of ‘lead professional’ with families
who meet the national Troubled Families criteria. This includes undertaking a Whole Family Assessment profile, organising regular Team Around
the Family Meetings and co-ordinating a Whole Family Plan to provide support for all family members.

4. Multi-Disciplinary work

A key strength of Youth Offending Services is that they are multi-disciplinary. The co-location of staff from a wide range of disciplines supports
information sharing and planning and enables readily tailored approaches to young people’s needs.

4 1 Education (Bath and North East Somerset Council)
A new Education Worker has enabled a fresh look at how the Youth Offending Service supports young people’s engagement in education,

ining and employment, a key protective factor in reducing the risk of offending. She monitors young people’s participation in learning and will
B2 comparing this with data for the whole academic age 16/17 cohort in the Local Authority. She is working closely with the Council’s new Youth
Cbnnect Service to integrate approaches to identifying and addressing young people’s need and with the Special Educational Need and
Disability Team to strengthen information sharing and support for young people. It is clear that a small number of young people known to the
Youth Offending Service have particular needs that are hard to meet from the provision currently available and key areas of work for 2016-17 will
be with commissioners to ensure that young people’s needs for compulsory education up to the school leaving age are met, and to support the
development of a 14-25 Strategy.

4.2 Health (Bath and North East Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group)
The Youth Offending Service benefits from secondment of a part-time Speech and Language Therapist and a part-time Nurse. Speech and
Language therapist achievements this year have included:

% Increased rate of screening and identification of speech, language and communication needs

+» Systematic tracking of cases and development of information sharing between professionals

“ Input into interventions leading to improved engagement and participation by service users

+¢ Introduction of ‘communication profiles’ for magistrates/panel members that have impacted upon the understanding of the way the service-user
may present, due to their speech and language therapy needs.



Over the next year, the priorities are to maintain the current effectiveness of screening during transition to the new assessment tool, strengthening
joint-working practice with case managers and continue involvement in the training of staff, volunteer Panel Members and Magistrates.

The inclusion of a Nurse in the multi-agency team has been valuable, has enhanced education of the Service in health matters and information
sharing. Links with professionals and young people at Project 28 are now well established and a weekly enhanced sexual health clinic has been
set up, supporting vulnerable girls and access to appointments in dental care and with GP surgeries. With one young person, this led to a
diagnosis which enabled staff to support him holistically whilst he completed his Court Order. With young people working voluntarily with the
Compass team, she has been able to attend Team around the Child meetings with families and support with links with paediatricians and the Child
and Adolescent Mental Health Service. Joint work with Social Care includes supporting a family where there has been an allegation of harmful
sexual behaviour. Opportunities this year also included delivering a session to colleagues on the workings of the teenage brain, enabling the team
to look at the biological differences and how interventions with young people can be tailored to their individual needs.

4.3 Probation Officer (National Probation Service)
A seconded Probation Officer works as a case manager, directly supervising young people subject to Court Orders and bringing skills in
assessing and managing risk, including working closely with Impact and Multi-Agency Public Protection Arrangements to ensure integrated
@anning for work with young people who present a higher risk of serious harm to others. They also support the transition to adult criminal justice
Services for young people who continue to offend. Following national consultation, the National Probation Service is reducing the post in Bath
and North East Somerset from full-time to half-time. Whilst this is a loss to the case management capacity which will need to be identified from
ewhere, it provides an opportunity to strengthen the transition arrangements for young people from youth to adult justice services, with the
same member of staff providing a level of direct continuity in some cases.

4.4 Social Worker and Youth Justice Worker (Bath and North East Somerset Council)

Two full-time qualified staff work as case managers and bring particular skills in child development and safeguarding and working with young
people in the context of their family experience. They undertake assessments and interventions with young people involved in sexually harmful
behaviour and support victims of child sexual exploitation.

4.5 Police (Avon and Somerset Constabulary)

Two four-day per week seconded Police Constables provide a link with the Integrated Offender Management Service concerning the young
people at highest risk of re-offending, support the Out of Court Disposals Panel and lead on work with victims.

10



4.6 Panel Members

Volunteer Panel Members take on a key statutory function in chairing Referral Order meetings with young people and, where they are willing, the
victim of their offence, to agree how they will make amends and what work they need to undertake to reduce their risk of re-offending. As part of
our commitment to supporting Panel Members, annual appraisals are held in order to identify opportunities for development. In addition, they are
regularly offered training that will help them in their roles. In 2015-2016 this included diversity training, emotion coaching (understanding
attachment disorders) and child sexual exploitation training. In addition The Youth Offending Service has begun holding regular bi-monthly
meetings for Panel Members in-house; this gives them the opportunity to meet up and discuss any problems or concerns — as well as being a
good way for the Service to promote and praise good practice. In order to meet their’ varying schedules, these meetings are alternated between
daytime and evening sessions in order to give as many people as possible the chance to attend. The Service recognises the commitments of its
volunteers in its bi-monthly newsletters to Panel Members and by nominating them for relevant awards. In 2016, they were nominated for the
Volunteer Team of the Year, at an event run by the Council.

69¢ abed

11



5. Performance

5.1 The principal aim of the youth justice system is to prevent offending by young people. The effectiveness of the work is measured through
five national performance measures. During the year ahead, the Service will be working on more ‘distance travelled’ approaches to measuring
outcomes for young people.

5.2 Reduce the rate of first time entrants to the youth justice system

This performance measure helps understanding of how effective the local area has been in supporting young people not to offend and enter the
youth justice system for the first time. It is shown as a rate of young people per 100,000 in the general population of 10-17 year olds who
received their first substantive outcome (a Youth Caution or Youth Conditional Caution following admission of an offence, or a conviction in

Court), to enable comparisons to be made. Data is taken from the Police National Computer and is published in rolling full years.

First Time Entrants

800
A 700 I "
Q
@
% 600 = '\’/‘\\
\]
O
‘“’0 Co——
300
200
100
0
Oct11-| Jan12- | Apr12- | July 12- | Oct12- | Jan13- | Apr13-| Jul13- | Oct13- | Jan14- | Apr14-| Jul14- | Oct14-
Sept12 | Dec12 | Mar13 | Jun13 | Sep13 | Dec13 | Mar14 | Jun14 | Sep 14 | Dec14 | Mar15 | Jun15 | Sep 15
—#—Bath and North East Somerset| 730 726 626 589 600 562 602 555 495 467 412 370 350
South West 636 601 564 518 477 455 449 454 448 431 415 390 375
England 607 565 533 499 470 452 436 432 426 410 402 388 376

12




Local performance has shown significant improvement after a number of years with a higher rate than comparators and a slower rate of
improvement than other areas. The continued local focus on early help and the introduction of the Cannabis Diversion initiative have had an
impact and performance is now lower (better) than comparators and is improving at a faster rate.

5.3 Reduce the rate of re-offending

This performance measure helps understanding of the effectiveness of the youth justice system in supporting young people who have previously
offended to avoid re-offending. It is a quarterly rolling measure of the rate of re-offending after twelve months of a cohort of young people who
received a Caution or Conditional Caution or a sentence in Court or were released from custody. The data is taken from the Police National
Computer and published as a frequency rate (the number of re-offences per 100 young people) and as binary information (a count of the number
of young people who re-offended, expressed as a percentage of the cohort). For re-offending, the indicator is the rate of re-offending after 12
months by a cohort of young people who received a substantive outcome.

This is now shown in three ways — re-offending by individual young people, the binary rate (the percentage of young people who re-offended)
and the frequency rate (the number of young people in the cohort divided by the total number of offences they committed). The latest data
dvailable shows that after a considerable period of having lower rates of re-offending than all comparator groups, the local rate is increasing,
@though it is below the national average. With a reducing rate of first time entrants, the Youth Offending Service is working with a smaller cohort

¢# more concerning young people whose offending is more prolific.
H

Re-offending - Re-offences by offender

3.2 /_—’/f‘\‘\\

»

L

Oct09- | Jan10- | Apr 10- | Jul 10- Oct10- | jan 11- | Apr11- | Jul11l- Octl11l- | Jan12- | Apr12-  Jul12- Oct12- | Jan 13- | Apr 13-

Sept 10 Dec 10 Mar 11 Jun 11 Sep 11 Dec 11 Mar 12 Jun 12 Sep 12 Dec 12 Mar 13 Jun 13 Sep 13 Dec 132 Mar 14
—&—Bath and North East Somerset 2.72 2.53 2.21 2.26 2.31 2.28 2.58 2.64 3.52 3.50 3.62 3.49 3.2 2.55 2.79
South West 2.82 2.79 2.71 2.72 2.74 2.77 2.82 2.83 2.84 2.88 2.87 2.84 2.83 2.81 2.83
England 2.84 2.88 2.88 2.88 2.9 2.89 2.88 2.88 2.91 2.94 2.99 3.03 3.07 3.12 3.13

13



2. ¢ abed

1.4

1.2

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.2

Reoffending - Frequency Rate

W

Oct09-|Jan10- |Apr 10-| Jul10- |Oct10-|Jan11- Apr11-|Jull1ll- |Oct11-|Jan 12 - |Apr 12 -| Jul12 - |Oct12-|Jan 13- Apr 13-
Sept 10 | Dec 10 | Mar 11 | Jun 11 | Sep 11 | Dec 11 | Mar 12 | Jun 12 | Sep 12 | Dec 12 | Mar 13 | Jun 13 | Sep 13 | Dec 13 | Mar 14

—4—Bath and North East Somerset| 0.76 0.73 0.65 0.69 0.73 0.64 0.74 0.74 0.96 1.07 1.08 1.19 0.97 0.97 1.05

South West

0.98 0.96 0.94 0.93 0.93 0.92 0.93 0.92 0.90 0.93 0.92 0.92 0.94 0.94 0.93

England

0.99 1.02 1.03 1.04 1.04 1.03 1.02 1.02 1.03 1.05 1.08 1.10 1.14 1.18 1.19

45.00%

40.00%

35.00%

30.00%

25.00%

20.00%

15.00%

10.00%

5.00%

0.00%

Reoffending - Binary Rate

Oct09-|Jan10- |Apr 10-| Jul10- | Oct10-|Jan11- Apr11-| Jul1ll- |Oct11- Jan12- | Apr12-| Jull12- Oct12-|Jan 13- | Apr 13-
Sept 10 | Dec 10 | Mar 11 | Jun 11 Sep 11 Dec 11 | Mar 12 | Jun 12 Sep 12 | Dec 12 | Mar 13 | Jun 12 Sep 13 Dec 13 | Mar 14

—&— Bath and North East Somerset

27.90% | 28.90% | 29.30% | 30.40% | 31.50% | 28.20% | 28.60% | 28.00% | 27.30% 30.60% | 28.90% | 24.00%  30.30% | 38.10% | 37.50%

South West

34.50% | 34.50% | 24.50% | 24.10% | 232.90% | 23.40% | 32.00% | 22.40% | 21.80% | 32.20% | 22.10% | 22.40% | 22.20% | 22.30% | 23.00%

England

34.80% | 35.40% | 35.80% | 36.00% | 36.10% | 35.90% | 35.40% | 35.30% | 35.40% 35.70% | 36.00% | 26.50%  37.20% | 37.90% | 37.90%

14




5.4 Reduce the rate of custodial sentences

The third national performance measure relates to the use made of custody as a sentencing option. The Youth Offending Service makes
proposals to Courts to assist sentencing decisions; any sentence of custody for a serious offence is not taken lightly and is avoided wherever
young people can be safely supported to remain within the community. The Custody Review Panel supports this work by examining the role of
Police, Social Care and the Youth Offending Service, in making suitable provision for young people at key stages in the youth justice process
from arrest to sentence.

Custody Rates

0.8
0.7
0.6
0.5

0.3 I \

av) 0.2 = = —
8 0.1
@ o—0 \
W 0 ¢ ® ® *—
~ Oct Jan Apr July Oct Jan Apr Jul Oct Jan Apr Jul Oct Jan
w 11- 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 13- 13- 13- 13- 14 - 14 - 14 - 14 - 15-
Sept Dec Mar Jun Sep Dec Mar Jun Sep Dec Mar Jun Sep Dec
12 12 12 12 12 13 14 14 14 14 15 15 15 15
=4 Bath and North East Somerset| 0.06 0.06 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.19 0.13 0.13 0.07 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
South West 0.29 0.27 0.32 0.32 0.33 0.29 0.22 0.18 0.18 0.18 0.19 0.21 0.19 0.20
England 0.73 0.68 0.63 0.59 0.57 0.55 0.52 0.50 0.47 0.44 0.44 0.42 0.41 0.40

For four consecutive reporting periods, the local custody rate has been zero. Whilst Bath and North East Somerset has never been the only
Authority to report at this level, there always being one or two others, it is the only area to have shown this rate of continuity, with no young

person sentenced to custody for more than two years. However, the Service is continuing to work with challenging young people and is not
complacent about this.

Outside the date range of the data being reported in this Plan, two young people have been sentenced to custody, one in 2013 and another in
2016. On both occasions, the sentence arose from their repeated return to Court for failure to co-operate with the requirements of their Court
Orders, rather than as an immediate sentence for the presenting offence.

15



5.5 Accommodation

The tables below provide information about the suitability of young people’s accommodation on the last day of their Court Order. The excellent
performance masks some of the significant issues that young people face. The number is of Court Orders closed, not necessarily of the number
of individual young people.

Accommodation in B&NES

120

100

80

60
40
20

0

Suitable

Closed Disposals Accommodation Percentage
m2011-2012 102 94 92%
m2012-2013 101 91 90%
m2013- 2014 59 49 83%
W 2014 - 2015 11 38 93%
2015 - 2016 (Apr - Dec) 25 25 100%

Accommodation across Avon and Somerset

120%

100%

80%

60%

40%

20%

0% .
B&NES Bristol N Somerset SGlos Somerset

m2011-2012 92% 90% 84% 94% 91%
H2012-2013 90% 90% 83% 92% 94%
m2013-2014 83% 88% 76% 91% 75%
W 2014-2015 93% 91% 86% 93% 88%
B 2015-2016 (Apr - Dec) 100% 90% 95% 96% 75%

v.g abed

5.6 Education, Training and Employment

The table below shows the proportion of Court Orders closed where the young people were assessed as being in suitable education, training
and employment on the last day of their Court Order. This is a declining performance and there needs to be a review of provision for young

people who have offended.

5.7 Performance reporting

ETE at closure

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

A40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

B&MNES Bristol N Somerset S Glos. Somerset

m2011-2012 75% 61% 69% 63% 69%
m 2012 - 2013 83% 59% 72% 68% 61%
w2013 -2014 62% (o] 53% (o] 61%
m 2014 - 2015 69% 55% 56% 80% 61%
MW 2015-2016 (Apr -Dec) 57% 54% 56% 70% 60%

16

in 2016-2017




These measures will all continue to be monitored by the Youth Offending Service Management Board, supplemented with some further
information on ‘distance travelled’ by young people from the start to the end of their statutory supervision. From 1 April 2016, monitoring of
Compass will transfer from the internal Council commissioning service to the Board. The following will be monitored through quarterly reports:

Number and % of young people currently working with Compass who enter the youth justice system for the first time.

Number and % of young people entering the youth justice system up to one year after completing work with Compass.

Number and % of parents and carers accessing parenting support who report increased confidence in their parenting skills.

Number and % of reductions in assessed risk of offending.

Number and % of young people showing a measurable improvement in their social wellbeing at the end of the intervention (includes

lifestyle indicators including engaging positively with peers, engaging in positive activities, increased confidence).

6. Number and % of young people showing a measurable improvement in their emotional wellbeing (including self-esteem and coping
strategies).

7. Number and % of young people showing a measurable increase in their engagement in education, employment and training.

o~

The Youth Offending Service Management Board will also be monitoring findings from the Re-offending Tracking Tool over a three year period
which looks at Age, Gender, Ethnicity, Looked After Children, type of offence, time to further offending, seriousness of re-offending and types of
outcomes. The Youth Offending Service will hold a workshop in the summer of 2016 to look at data over a three year period to see if there are
ghy lessons to be learned and any patterns which we need to be addressed.

?

Y
6. Learning from Feedback

The Youth Offending Service is keen to ensure that the service provided to young people, parents and carers, victims, the Courts and other

partner agencies is of the highest quality. It seeks regular feedback and endeavours to implement changes from the comments received.
Feedback from victims has been included above, in the Restorative Justice section of the Plan.

6.1 Young people

HMI Probation now facilitates an annual survey of young people known to Youth Offending Services, which has the advantage of being
anonymous. The latest survey yielded the following comments from local young people:-

17



(a) Things that have made you less likely to offend:-

“Mixing with the right people”

“Moving back in with my Mum and Dad and : : : actions”
being back in education” Coming to YOS

“Realising if | reoffend | will not be able to get

“Being able to talk about my problems” the job | want”

“Thinking about the consequences of

(b) What has got better with your health?

“That | don’t drink”

“I'm using contraception and I’'m eating
properly”

(c) What things have got better for you or how has the Youth Offending Service helped you?

— = “By listening to me”
Helped me to think in a positive way “It's made me think more about my mistakes
and my relationships with Mum and Dad have
got better”
“Stopped drinking”
‘I haven’t been arrested in over a year
now”

“Thinking about my actions and consequences
of my actions and keeping my temper”

“Tag makes you not want to do it cuz (sic)
it's just a waste of time”

18



“I have got a job and talk to people at ) :
the YOS’ It made me think about what people | should

hang around with”

“They have made me realise right
from wrong”

(d) Ideas for how the Youth Offending Service could be improved (and the Youth Offending Service response):

“Less meetings, better reparation” (our new Community
Involvement worker has been tailoring reparation to the “More computer-based stuff’ (We have installed
wishes of victims and young people, wherever possible. two new computers to facilitate this)

More bespoke projects now take place)

“Make the offices look better” (We involved young
people in re-painting and furnishing our two interview
rooms. One young woman who was involved in this
went on to obtain an apprenticeship in painting and
decorating, drawing on this experience)

“‘Reparation was difficult to organise as | work full-time
and no workers available the hours | am free” (We now
have 3 sessional workers who are available at
weekends)

/1€ abed

6.2 Parents and Carers

The Service has collected less feedback from parents this year and will be endeavouring to increase this in the year ahead.

“When we first started working with the Youth Offending Service we didn’t know what to expect. If I'm honest we
clashed a bit at the beginning, that was partly due to us not understanding the system (family are from overseas).
But when it all made sense it has been brilliant, not just for my son but for all of us as a family — it has been really

holistic. | remember one conversation | had with his case manager when | was frantic and she listened and was
able to get me to calm down and see things more clearly”

19



6.3 Courts and Magistrates

The Youth Offending Service meets quarterly with the local Magistrates and Court Clerk. These meeting serve as opportunities to share service
updates, provide case studies to Magistrates to enhance their confidence in sentencing and receive feedback about practice in Court. They have
particularly found the work of the Speech and Language Therapist to be helpful in promoting good communication with young people in the
Court setting. The congruence level between proposal and sentence in Pre-Sentence Reports has continued to be 100% in 2015-2016.

6.4. Short Quality Screening Inspection

The Youth Offending Service was subject of a Short Quality Screening Inspection undertaken by HMI Probation in February 2016. The
Inspectors reported as follows. “We were pleased to see that there had been overall improvements in the work of the YOT since our last
inspection in 2010, and that many of our previous recommendations had been addressed. Compliance with orders was excellent, and reflected
the skill and commitment of case managers. Work to reduce reoffending and to protect children and young people was sound, and was well
supported by a wide range of partner organisations. Further improvement is needed in the quality of risk assessment and risk planning, and
management oversight of public protection needs to be more robust.” Actions to strengthen risk assessment and planning and management
oversight have been included in the Work Plan.

o
Q
Q
7. The Context for Youth Justice
\'
(o¢]
7.

1 Implementation of AssetPlus

AssetPlus is a new assessment and planning interventions framework developed by the Youth Justice Board to provide a holistic end-to-end
assessment and intervention plan, allowing one record to follow a child or young person throughout their time in the youth justice system. It
focuses on professional judgement of practitioners and will enable better-focused intervention plans to improve outcomes for children and young
people. Implementation has been a major piece of work for the whole Service, involving database upgrades and training.

7.2 Walker Review of Youth Justice

There is currently a national review of the youth justice system in England and Wales. It follows recognition of considerable success in reducing
youth offending but the challenges in working with a group of children who continue to offend, some of them prolifically. The review is based on
listening to the views of those working within the youth justice system — practitioners, young people and their families and staff in other parts of
the criminal justice system. Two key principles are informing the review. The first is that children who break the law should continue to be dealt
with differently from adults and the second is that education must be central to an effective youth justice system. In anticipation of publication of
the review in the summer, the Youth Offending Service Management Board has set aside a day to reflect on the findings and their implications
for local delivery.

20



8. Work Plan for 2016-2017

Divisional Priority 1: Narrow the gaps in education and employment outcomes for vulnerable groups of children
and young people (Children and young people have equal life chances)

(linking with work to support Looked After Children).

Indicators Actions Lead Intended Impact Timescale
1. Increase in the 1 | Ensure all Youth Offending Service young people Education Increased take up of | September
proportion of young people applying for post-16 education and training have Worker suitable provision 2016
engaged in education, transition plans and support in place.
training and employment 2 | Ensure all reparation projects provide an opportunity for | Community | Develop confidence December
2. Number and % of young young people to identify and record new skills. Involvement | and raise aspirations | 2016
people aged 16-18 who Worker
are NEET 3 | Participate in review of post-16 provision and the Service Meet the needs of all | March
3. % of 16 and 17 year development of the 14-19 Strategy, to ensure it reflects | Manager young people 2017
olds who have an offer of the needs of young people who have offended are
education or training by the included.
_8nd of September 4 | Work with Bath College to develop integrated support Education Suitable provision for | March
2 and procedures for vulnerable learners, together with Worker all young people 2017
@ transitions support.
g 5 | Work with commissioners to ensure access to Service Suitable provision for | March
compulsory education for those who have offended. Manager all young people 2017
6 | Support access to work experience or the National Education Develop confidence March
Citizenship Scheme for those in Years 11 and 12 Worker and raise aspirations | 2017

Divisional Priority 2: Prevent and reduce significant harm and the need for children to grow up in care — achieve
sustainable improved outcomes at the lowest level of intervention (Children and young people are safe and healthy)

Indicators Actions Lead Intended Impact Timescale
1. Reduction in the rate of | 1 | Review the model for conducting return home Team Young people June 2016
first time entrants interviews and ensure it addresses the needs of those Manager signposted on to
2. Reduction in the rate of at risk of offending, child sexual exploitation and/or relevant support
re-offending those affected by parental imprisonment.
3. Reduction in the rate of | 2 | Agree a model to proactively screen Police intelligence | Police Reduced first time September
custodial sentences to identify those likely to be at greatest risk of offending. | Constable entrants 2016
4. Increase in the 3 | Support a YOS practitioner to join the Willow Team for | Operational | Keep young people September
proportion of young people young people at risk of child sexual exploitation. Manager safe 2016
in suitable accommodation | 4 | Ensure all case managers are trained to work with Operational | Reduced re-offending | September

21




5. Increase in the those involved in sexually harmful behaviour (AIM). Manager 2016
proportion of young people |5 | Ensure risk assessments are clearly explained in Operational | Robust planning September
engaged in education, relation to how previous behaviour and offences are Manager 2016
training and employment linked to serious harm and arrange training
(Inspection).
6 | Develop approaches to working with young people at Operational | Keep young people December
risk of perpetrating child sexual exploitation. Manager safe 2016
7 | Review the Service’s work in assessment and planning | Operational | Plans address all December
including management of risk of serious harm to others | Manager identified risks 2016
(Inspection).
8 | Address learning from forthcoming Laming Report on Service Reduced offending by | December
Looked after Children and offending Manager Looked After Children | 2016
9 | Ensure development of the Multi-Agency safeguarding | Service Provision of early December
Hub supports young people’s referral into youth crime Manager help 2016
prevention projects.
10 | Apply learning from the YJB reducing re-offending Operational | Reduced re-offending | March
project to introduce service improvements. Manager 2017

83’0”"9 people, parents

carers, victims of crime at team, service & divisional level

2D|V|S|onal Priority 3: Keep children and young people at the heart of everything we do - listening to children and

Excellence and
Restorative Service Quality

Indicators Actions Lead Intended Impact Timescale
1. Reduction in the rate of | 1 | Support staff to be proactive in integrating and sharing | Operational | Integrated planning September
first time entrants plans with relevant partner agencies. Manager and delivery 2016
2. Reduction in the rate of | 2 | Introduce a new, accessible format for young people’s | Operational | The purpose of our September
re-offending plans and ensure that they are always given a copy Manager work understood by 2016
3. Reduction in the rate of (Inspection) young people
custodial sentences 3 | Ensure that audits regularly seek evidence of the voice | Operational | All work is young September
4. Increase in the of the child Manager people-centred 2016
proportion of young people | 4 | Review how parenting support is provided within the Operational | Identified parenting March
in suitable accommodation Youth Offending Service Manager need addressed 2017
9. Increase in the 5 | Produce quarterly evidence of what the Service has Team Service users March
proportion of young people learned from feedback and what it has done in Manager understand the value | 2017
in education, training and response of their feedback
employment 6 | Ensure provision of an effective parenting intervention Service More effective March
Customer Service for parents of teenagers Manager parenting 2017

22




Mark

Divisional Priority 4: Support staff to work effectively with children, young people and families through workforce
development, streamlining systems and processes and focusing our resources

Indicators Actions Lead Intended Impact Timescale
1 Complete implementation of new database (ChildView | Information | Case management/ | June 2016
v.3) Manager reporting compliance
2 | Transfer the monitoring of Compass to the Youth Information | Consistent oversight | June 2016
Offending Service Management Board Manager and time efficiencies
3 Review staffing structure to strengthen accountability Service Within budget June 2016
and ensure core of suitably qualified staff. Manager legislative compliance
4 Review ‘buddying’ system practice to ensure staff Operational | Staff safety June 2016
safety when making home visits. Manager
5 Ensure a compliant model of delivering Unpaid Work Operational | Legislative September
requirements in Court Orders. Manager compliance 2016
6 | Agree a process for identifying, recording and Operational | Provision of support | December
supporting children affected by parental imprisonment. | Manager 2016
o 7 Agree local implementation of the national transitions Service Tailored support and | December
oY . . ;
o protocol for young people moving to adult services. Manager reduced re-offending | 2016
W 8 Review Performance and Development Review Service Better supported and | March
R process to include youth justice competencies and Manager trained workforce 2017
introduce 360 degree feedback for all staff.
9 | Complete the managers’ module of the Bath and North | Service Healthy workforce March
East Somerset Workplace Wellbeing Charter. Manager 2017
10 | Ensure staff are briefed on the Prevent Strategy, Child | Operational | Meeting safeguarding | March
Sexual Exploitation and Female Genital Mutilation Manager responsibilities 2017
11 | Ensure all staff support young people in improving Education Raised aspirations March
qualification levels and raise aspirations. Worker 2017
12 | Review and update secure storage of all data and Information | Compliance with March
records Manager Government Connect | 2017
13 | Work with the Management Board to respond to the Service Work to prevent March
findings of the national review of youth justice. Manager youth offending 2017

9. Governance, Leadership and Partnership Arrangements

9.1 Bath and North East Somerset Council, as the relevant Local Authority, is the lead partner for youth justice. It has the primary responsibility
to the Secretary of State for ensuring that the Youth Offending Service fulfils requirements and delivers services required under the Crime and

23




Disorder Act 1998, and any subsequent criminal justice legislation and that it meets the requirements of all relevant legislation applicable to
young people. The statutory partners (Social Care, Police, Probation, Education and Health) have a duty to ensure that statutory requirements
are met, through the provision of resources and other support.

9.2 Governance of the Youth Offending Service rests with the Community Safety Partnership’s Responsible Authorities Group, and immediate
oversight and accountability is provided by the Youth Offending Service Management Board, with representation from the key statutory partners.
Following two very positive years of chairing by Michelle Maguire from Oxford Health NHS Trust, the Board now has a new chair in Mike
Bowden. The new Head of Education Inclusion has now joined the Board. It continues to have a Partnership Agreement in place, setting out its
responsibilities for the strategic direction, resourcing and operational delivery of youth justice services. A number of members of the Board also
sit as members of the Local Safeguarding Children Board. The Management Board has two sub-groups — the Youth Crime Prevention Board
that oversees work to reduce the rate of first time entrants and the Custody Review Panel that oversees work to reduce the rate of custody. Both
groups are chaired by the 11-19 Prevention Service Manager and report annually to the Youth Offending Service Management Board.

9.3 The Custody Review Panel supports prevention of the use of custody for young people wherever possible and oversees the local shared
protocol on safeguarding in Police custody, use of the Youth Justice Board Remand Grant and the custody performance indicator. It is attended
by the Youth Offending Service, Police, Children’s Social Care, the Deputy Head of Safeguarding and Placements Strategy and Commissioning
and aids partnership working at a strategic level. Meetings are held quarterly to review outcomes, identify learning and plan for improvements.
uring 2015-2016, the Panel has promoted awareness of legislative changes regarding the treatment of 17 year-olds in Police custody and the
gsk of custodial sentences for young people convicted of a second knife offence. It has clarified arrangements for Police notification of young
Reople held overnight, the availability of alternative placements, case recording and a protocol for arrangements for young people with
Education, Health and Care Plans who are sentenced to custody. Learning from cases has underlined the importance of early help for children
under the age of ten who are involved in sexually harmful violent or otherwise concerning behaviour and the need for longer-term support.

9.4 The Youth Offending Service is managed within the People and Communities Department of the Council. Strategic responsibility for the
Youth Offending Service is allocated to the 11-19 Prevention Service Manager who is also responsible for the Youth Connect Service and is line
managed by the Divisional Director. The Operational Manager has oversight of all services delivered and is supported by the Partnership and
Intervention Manager. An organisational chart can be found in the appendices.

9.5 This Youth Justice Plan will be monitored by the Youth Offending Service Management Board and there will continue to be a level of support
and oversight from the Youth Justice Board. The Board receives quarterly financial and performance reports and annual assurance and National
Standards reports and has now established a Challenge Register. Progress on the Work Plan will also be reported to the relevant Council
Development and Scrutiny Panel.

9.6 Membership of the Youth Offending Service Management Board

24



Management Board Member

Chair: Mike Bowden

Director, Children and Young People’s Strategy and Commissioning, Bath and North East Somerset
Council

Vice Chair: Richard Baldwin

Divisional Director, Children and Young People’s Specialist and Targeted Services, Bath and North
East Somerset Council

Chris Saunders

Detective Chief Inspector — Avon and Somerset Constabulary

Elizabeth Spencer

Assistant Chief Officer, South West South Central Division, National Probation Service

Michael Evans

Lead Member for Children, Bath and North East Somerset Council

Chrissie Hardman

o

Head of Children’s Health Services, Sirona Care and Health

oy
AMichelle Maguire
w

Head of Service, Swindon, Wiltshire and Bath and North East Somerset NHS Foundation Trust

WJ

w
Amy Hunt

Youth Champion and Health and Wellbeing Officer, Avon and Somerset Police and Crime
Commissioner’s Office

Christopher Wilford

Head of Education Inclusion Service, Bath and North East Somerset Council

Pauline Kinton

South West Partnership Adviser, Youth Justice Board for England and Wales

Sally Churchyard

11-19 Prevention Service Manager, Bath and North East Somerset Council

9.7 Budget Summary 2016 - 2017

25




Source Pooled Staffing Other costs Comments Total £
budget £ costs £ £
Avon and Somerset Police 26,442 82,472 0 Seconded Police on-site access to 108,914
Police National Computer is also
provided but not costed.
National Probation Service 5,000 34,435 0 Following national consultation, the 39,435
Probation Officer post is reducing to
half-time during 2016-2017. No date has
been set for this and so 75% of a full-
time post is shown as the contribution.
Bath and North East Somerset 14,885 31,109 0 CAMHS consultation is delivered 45,994
Clinical Commissioning Group through a separate contract and not
gHeaIth) costed to this budget.
%ath and North East Somerset 18,685 397,628 24,387 Office base. Financial and Human 440,700
Rouncil Resources services are also provided
but not costed.
Avon and Somerset Police and 0 10,217 0 This represents a small reduction 10,217
Crime Commissioner Additionally, £7,902 will be contributed
towards the commissioning of Project
28, a substance misuse service
Youth Justice Board for 0 141,669 38,946 This is an 11.2% reduction on the grant 180,615
England and Wales for 2015-16
Total 65,012 697,530 63,333 825,875

9.8 Partner Agency Commitment

26




Partner
Organisation

Name of Chief Officer

Signature

Date

Local Authority

Jo Farrar, Chief Executive of Bath and North
East Somerset Council

Local Authority

Ashley Ayre, Strategic Director for People
and Communities

Local Authority

(Social Care
representative)

Richard Baldwin, Divisional Director for
Children and Young People’s Specialist and
Targeted Services

Local Authority

Health and

ducation
Trepresentative)
(O8]

Mike Bowden, Director for Children and
Young People’s Strategy and
Commissioning

[e5)
“Avon and Somerset
Constabulary

(Police
representative)

Chief Superintendent lan Smith, North East
Area Commander

South West South
Central Division,
National Probation
Service

(Probation
representative)

Elizabeth Spencer, Assistant Chief Officer

10. Appendices

27




Appendix A: Review of Work Plan 2015-2016

What will be done Progress and Impact

Priority Area 1: Service Development

1. Introduce a continuing professional development process to keep the
team abreast of learning in risk management, safeguarding, effective
practice and serious case review lessons.

Completed - eight reading and reflective practice workshops
have been held in effective youth justice practice, the developing
teenage brain and assessment, ensuring readiness for the new
assessment framework, AssetPlus.

2. Implement a database upgrade to ChildView Version 2, including training
all staff.

Completed - all staff have now been trained and are using a
more efficient case management system.

3. Introduce youth justice competencies into Person Specifications and
review how these are tested in staff recruitment and supported through
Performance Reviews.

Progressing - these are being included as staff have their
Performance Development reviews and are being used as a
basis for providing ‘360 degree feedback.” The process will be
completed within 2016-17.

. Implement the new AssetPlus assessment tool, including co-ordinating
@raining for all staff.

Progressing — all staff will be trained by the end of April 2016
and improvements in analysis and planning are anticipated

%riority Area 2: Youth Crime Prevention Work

1. Work with other preventative services to align referral processes and
ensure young people have prompt access into the best service to meet
their needs.

Completed - consent to share information has been
incorporated into both Compass and Mentoring Plus referral
forms and young people are now matched to the most
appropriate service.

2. Use the forthcoming audit of National Standards to strengthen the quality
of preventative provision.

Completed - work has been undertaken to proactively increase
the rate of referrals and improve the timeliness of assessments.

3. Complete and commission external evaluation of the Cannabis Diversion
pilot and support partners in considering its wider roll out.

Completed (part discontinued) - between January 2015 and
March 2016, thirty one young people attended the Cannabis
diversion scheme and just three have offended again and
become first time entrants. An in-year reduction in the Youth
Justice Board grant meant that external tracking and evaluation
could not be commissioned, but the Police and Crime
Commissioner is interested in supporting a wider roll out

4. Lead a ‘task and finish’ group to raise awareness, improve identification
and promote effective support to children of prisoners, including youth

Progressing - a multi-agency task and finish group is working to
raise awareness, address information sharing and provide

28




What will be done Progress and Impact

crime prevention services where appropriate.

support for young people. It will report back to the LSCB in June

5. Promote referral of girls at risk of offending into youth crime prevention
services.

Completed — resulted in an increase from 3 referrals in 2014-15
to 13 in 2015-16

Priority Area 3: Work with young people including managing risk of ha

rm and safeguarding

1. Provide a member of staff from the Youth Offending Service to join the
Willow Project, (Child Sexual Exploitation Virtual Team) and supervise their
work as a member of a network of managers.

Completed — the Service has been actively involved in
supporting victims through this initiative since May 2015.

2. Ensure effective liaison and co-operation between the Youth Offending
Service and other agencies working to safeguard young people at risk of
sexual exploitation.

Completed - active membership of the LSCB’s sub-group
continues, informed by learning from leading a peer challenge.
Compass now undertakes Return Home Interviews.

3. Ensure that all assessments of likelihood of re-offending, risk of harm
and vulnerability take into account the impact of gender.

Progressing - this was addressed in the diversity elements of
case manager training in the new assessment framework

4. Ensure the Youth Offending Service takes a person-centred approach to
2assessment and planning with all young people and monitor this through
gase audits and feedback.

(o0}
~l

Completed — observation and case audit confirms this approach
is supporting young people to help write their own intervention
plans. The HMIP Viewpoint questionnaire 2015 highlighted that
all young people questioned knew what was in their plan.

5. Review current reparation placements and ensure future placements
provide specific, relevant opportunities for young people to repair the harm
caused by their offending to the community.

Completed - wherever possible, placements are now
successfully tailored to reflect the wishes of the victim. Young
people are assessed and matched to placements that they also
regard as an opportunity to make a worthwhile contribution.

6. Ensure the processes for feedback and planning meetings with young
people focus reparation placements as closely as possible to their
offence(s), interesting and skills-based.

Completed — young people’s feedback is now informing
development of reparation placements. Victims play a greater
role in the selection of reparation activities, as noted in the HMIP
Inspection report.

7. Embed delivery of effective resettlement practice amongst all Youth
Offending Service staff by refreshing practitioners’ understanding of their
role when a young person is sent to custody, demonstrating that provision
is based on lessons from research and addressing the emotional impact of
custody on all concerned

Completed — after a long period with no young people
sentenced to custody, this has raised awareness and
strengthened readiness amongst staff.

8. Review arrangements for provision of Appropriate Adult services to
young people being interviewed by Police.

Progressing — this has been reviewed through the Youth
Appropriate Adult Service Governance Group and is being kept

29




What will be done Progress and Impact

under review.

9. Introduce regular review of data by gender to understand the trends of
offending by girls and the needs they present.

Carried forward - this will be incorporated into the Re-
Offending Tracking initiative

10. Review ASSET assessments to understand the specific needs of girls
in the youth justice system and ensure appropriate interventions are
available and are offered to meet their needs.

Completed — a review of best practice with girls was undertaken
by the seconded Probation Officer. The Service is considering
offering a ‘girls-only’ afternoon.

11. Develop exit strategies to ensure that girls have access to appropriate
ongoing support when their involvement with the Youth Offending Service
ends.

Completed - a resource list for practitioners has been
developed for ‘signposting’ young people on to follow-up
support.

12. Introduce Speech and Language Therapy communication cards for
young people with these needs to support communication during meeting
with Courts, Police, or other official agencies.

o
Q

Completed - communication plans written in the young person’s
voice have been submitted to Bath Youth Court. Feedback from
Magistrates has been very positive and led to good outcomes for
young people.

“313. Work with the Community Involvement Worker to recruit and train a
w .
osmall cohort of new volunteer Community Panel Members.

Carried forward - following a review of need for new panel
members, this has been postponed until April 2016.

14. Incorporate young people’s feedback into the review of offending
behaviour resources by membership of the monthly Creative Resources
Group.

Completed - feedback from young people has been presented
to this group and will continue to be done at future groups
following the implementation of the new assessment framework,
Asset Plus.

15. Pilot the recruitment of volunteers to work alongside and supervise
young people on reparation activities and to continue their involvement with
young people as mentors.

Discontinued - an in-year reduction in national funding meant
that the project could not be introduced. In its place, a joint
mentoring scheme is being piloted between the Youth Offending
Service and Mentoring Plus.

16. Participate in working group to promote understanding of risk factors
leading to young people becoming child sexual exploitation perpetrators
and develop work to address this.

Completed and progressing — this is included in the new Work
Plan (Priority 2.6)

17. Analyse local data about young people’s re-offending and use this to
identify how the Service can support reductions in the level and frequency.
Participate fully in the YJB Reducing Re-offending initiative, including use
of the live tracking tool.

Carried forward - work commenced but the Management Board
agreed to defer this until a year’s data is available. A workshop
will be held in the summer with input from the Youth Justice
Board.

30




What will be done Progress and Impact

18. Review processes and protocols to support the work of the Service in
promoting the full engagement of young people in education, training and
employment.

Progressing — The protocols with Bath College and Youth
connect have been reviewed

19. Work with partners to learn from Laming’s national review of offending
by Looked after Children and identify how to apply the learning locally.

Carried forward — included in the new Work Plan (Priority 2.8)

Priority Area 3: Work with Victims

1. Develop effective partnership working practice with new victim services -
Lighthouse, the integrated victim care service, and the Young Victims’
Service.

Completed — working agreements are in place with all three
services to promote victims’ access to support services

2. Achieve the Restorative Justice Council’s Restorative Service Quality
Mark and introduce identified Service improvements

Progressing — all required development work has been
completed and the final on-site assessment is due in April

Priority Area 4: Work with Parents, Carers and Families

%. Re-design parent support plans in consultation with parents/carers to
gensure that they give a clearer description of specific planned work.

Carried forward - due to long-term staff sickness. This action is
incorporated into the new Work Plan (Priority 3.4)

%. Introduce regular case reviews to focus on young people and families
%chieving positive outcomes.

Completed - new system is in place for all young people on
Youth Rehabilitation Orders.

3. Ensure that quality assurance and management oversight arrangements
support achieving both Connecting Families and Youth Offending Service
outcomes.

Completed — arrangements have been reviewed at the
respective Management Board and Steering Group and there is
commitment to sharing learning

4. Ensure that the Youth Offending Service provides lead practitioners to
work with whole families within the Connecting Families programme and
audit work undertaken.

Completed - where appropriate, a wider whole family approach
is taken as part of the matrix team.

Priority Area 6: National Initiatives

1. Ensure that the Youth to Adult transition process is supported by a clear
local protocol and a positive interface with Working Links (the local
Community Rehabilitation Company) to ensure smooth and safe transitions
of young people at 18 years old.

Completed - national protocol has been signed and the
Probation Officer has reviewed processes to ensure they
balance the individual needs of young people with the
expectations of the Court.

2. Participate in the national review of self-assessment tools for Youth
Offending Services.

Completed - the tools have now been published by the Youth
Justice Board and will be used to review practice locally.

31




What will be done Progress and Impact

3. Nominate a champion for the Prevent / Channel initiative to prevent Completed — staff now have access to information and advice
extremism, and raise awareness through training. at a local level

-

QD

«Q

(9]

w

(o}

o

32



Appendix B: Youth Offending Service Values

OCoOoO~NOOOAPRWN--

. Respect young people for who they are and take their needs and wishes seriously

. Listen to young people and take any action necessary to keep them safe

. Recognise the damaging impact of crime on individuals and communities and uphold the importance of preventing it
. View diversity positively

. Believe in the possibility and desirability of change

. Want the best for young people and their families

. Work restoratively

. Work in an integrated and multi-agency way

. Have a drive for results and courage when things don’t go to plan

Locally, everyone who works with and on behalf of children and young people, and their parents/carers will collectively and individually:-

1.

T6€ abed

©ONOOR WD

Expect the best of our children and young people across Bath and North East Somerset

Shows respect for all

Uses help/services that are evidenced based

Ensures transparency in decision making

Has energy and purpose

Does not “assume” without thinking

Is positively disposed to deliver the best outcomes for each individual child

Recognises that young people’s participation in cultural, sports, play and leisure opportunities is valuable and is to be encouraged.

To support these values, there is an agreed set of behaviours that everyone is expected to embrace:-

1.
2.
3.

o

Young people are central to any discussions of their needs

Young people are involved in any meetings/discussions about their individual needs and plans

All staff front —line staffHead Teachers/managers/volunteers across the workforce will take responsibility for looking at the young people’s
needs and assessments holistically- look at the big picture:- will join up their work with that of other colleagues and or the family and
develop one plan of support/intervention

The young person will know who is the lead person for their plan and how to contact them

Staff will be accountable to the young person in delivering the plan

Line managers will make it happen

33



Appendix C: Youth Offending Service Organisational Chart (on 31.03.2016)

Bath and North East Somerset continues to comply with statutory minimum staffing requirements

11 — 19 Prevention Service
Manager

Sally Churchyard

Operational Manager
Carla Cooper

Systems and Information
Manager

Claire Barnett

: Admin.
Partnerships and )

;DU Interventions Manager Officer (0.8 fte)

% (0.8 fte) Rebecca Cross

o Lena Higginson

©

o | I

Senior Practitioner
(0.5 fte)
Emily Andrews
Admin. Probation Social Police Compass Community Police Youth Admin. Education Parenting School Speech &
Officer Officer Workers Constable Workers Involvement Constable Justice Officer Worker Worker Nurse Language
(0.5 fte) Danielle (0.8 fte) Terry Marsh Worker (0.8 fte) Worker (0.8 fte) (0.7 fte) Tina (0.4 fte) Tge2rafpt)|st
Janet Emily McFarland Sally Jenny Drew Samantha Michaela Noel Denise Mary Painter Amanda (0.2 fte)
Hughes Denne Vacancy Burton Felicity Nutbeem || Walker-Sowden Shortman Campbell |] Callaghan Clappen Cowley Helen
Diss

Volunteer Community Panel
Members and other

Volunteers

C)

Youth Justice
Sessional Workers

3)

34




Appendix D: Youth Offending Service Staff by Gender and Ethnicity (on 31.03.2016)

The work of the Youth Offending Service would not be possible without its volunteers. We thank them again for their time and commitment.
The Service has recently appointed a male Social Worker who will take up his post in May 2016.

Staff in the Youth Offending Team b

gender and ethnicity based on census 2001 categories

Strategic Team Practitioner | Administrator | Sessional Student Volunteers Total
Manager Manager
M F M F M F M F M F M F M F M F
White British 1 2 2 10 2 3 2 5 4 23
White Irish 1 0 1
_XVhite Other 1 0 1
jo2)
Q 1
‘Black British 0 1
(o]
Black Caribbean 0 0
White and Black
. 0 0
African
British Black 1 1 0
Caribbean
White and Asian 0 0
Pakistani 0 0
Preferred not to say 1 0 1
Total 0 1 0 2 2 12 0 3 0 3 0 0 3 6 5 27

35




Appendix E: Glossary of Terms

Appropriate Adults

Adults who safeguard a young person’s interests under the Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 when they are
being interviewed by the Police and a parent cannot attend. Bristol Youth Offending Service provides the service.

Asset Plus A structured assessment tool used to consider how a range of factors contributes to a young person’s risk of
offending. It provides a holistic assessment and intervention plan, allowing one record to follow a young person
ChildView Database used for case management and national reporting of data

Community Panel
Members

Volunteer representatives of the local community, selected and trained to chair panels which meet with young people
and their victims to agree how young people can make amends and address their offending behaviour.

Connecting Families

A local preventative initiative, part of the national Troubled Families work, to engage with and help improve outcomes
for families experiencing a range of issues including having children involved in crime and/or anti-social behaviour.

Early Help Strategy

The Local Authority’s commitment to work with vulnerable young people ‘early on’ to reduce need for specialist
services.

0
2
I-ﬂyll Probation
O
N

Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Probation is an independent Inspectorate, funded by the Ministry of Justice, and
reporting directly to the Secretary of State, including on the effectiveness of youth justice work.

LSCB The Local Safeguarding Children Board brings together local agencies working with children and families. LSCB is
responsible for policy, procedures and services to support children and families in need to prevent significant harm.

MASH A Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub is being planned to ease sharing of information to identify children at risk of
significant harm and support referral to early help for those not at immediate risk

MAPPA Multi-Agency Public Protection Arrangements to oversee information sharing, planning and action to safeguard the
public from serious violent or sexual harm by individuals who present a particular risk

NEET Young people not engaged in education, training or employment

Parenting Order

Parents whose children offend or persistently truant from school can be made the subject of Court Orders, requiring
them to attend parenting support, and sometimes, to exercise specific control over their child’s behaviour.

Return Home Interviews

Independent assessments of young people who have returned home after a period of being ‘missing,’

36




Referral Order

Under these Court Orders, young people are referred to a Community Panel, led by trained volunteers and attended
by their parent(s) and the victim(s) of their offence(s) to agree how they can make amends for their behaviour.

Reparation

Making amends to someone harmed. This can be doing something of direct benefit to the victim of an offence or could
be undertaking work that benefits the wider community, ideally suggested by the victim.

Restorative Justice

Restorative Justice describes a range of approaches to resolving a situation where harm, often an offence, has been
caused. It focuses on victim satisfaction, offering a range of services by which the victim can gain an understanding of
the offence, have a chance to be fully heard, and agree to or even participate in any suitable reparation. Where the
victim does not wish to be involved, then the Youth Offending Service will work with a young person to raise
awareness of the likely impact of their offending on others and will plan for them to take on some indirect reparation.

Team Around the Child
(TAC)

A multi-agency planning meeting with the child and parent/carer(s) present. The young person can help decide the
agenda and should be enabled to fully participate in the meetings and the planning.

Unpaid Work Order Unpaid Work is a requirement available to the Court as part of a Youth Rehabilitation Order. Individuals aged 16 and
- over carry out work that will benefit the community in order to repay the harm caused by their offending.

YRO The Youth Rehabilitation Order is a generic community sentence for young offenders and can combines a number of
3 requirements into one generic sentence. It is the standard community sentence used for the majority of children and
(6]

young people who offend. It simplifies sentencing for young people, while improving the flexibility of interventions.

Youth Justice Board
(YJB)

The Youth Justice Board for England and Wales is now linked to the Ministry of Justice and is responsible for
overseeing the youth justice system, including performance monitoring, providing advice and disseminating good
practice.

37




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 14

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING/
DECISION | Cabinet
MAKER:

EXECUTIVE FORWARD
MEETING/ PLAN REFERENCE:
DECISION | 4 May 2016
DATE: E 2840
TITLE: Primary and Secondary School Organisation Plan 2015 — 2019
WARD: All

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:
Appendix 1

Primary and Secondary School Organisation Plan 2015 — 2019 Including Longer Term
Place Planning within the Core Strategy Plan Period

1 THEISSUE

1.1 The Council has a statutory duty to secure sufficient school places for every
child resident in the Local Authority who requires a place. The Primary and
Secondary School Organisation Plan 2015 — 2019 at Appendix 1 outlines the
current level of primary and secondary provision in the Authority, detailed
projected pupil numbers over the next four years up to admissions in
September 2019 based on births and resident population data and outline pupil
numbers up to 2029 as a consequence of the future planned housing
development in the Authority. Estimates for the number of school places likely
to be required as a result and how and where these might be provided are also
included.

2 RECOMMENDATION
The Cabinet is asked to:

2.1 Approve the proposed strategy for the provision of school places within the
2015 — 2019 plan period.

2.2 Approve the proposed strategy for the provision of school places over the
longer term within the Core Strategy plan period.

3 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE)

3.1 Revenue funding for pupil places will be provided by the Department for
Education (DfE) through the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) on a per pupil
basis.

Printed on recycled paper Page 397



3.2 Where pupils generated by Strategic Development Sites cannot be
accommodated within existing provision, Developer Contributions in the form of
capital and where appropriate land, will be sought from developers in order to
provide the necessary school places. To date, the Council is in receipt of some
Developer Contributions with further contributions currently pending.
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) would be considered for the provision of
other primary school places and for secondary school places.

3.3 The DfE currently allocate Basic Need capital funding to local authorities in
order to provide additional school places where pupils are projected to exceed
the number of places available and where the increase is occurring as a result
of population growth other than from housing developments supported by
Developer Contributions. The level of Basic Need Funding provided is
calculated on the basis of the Local Authority pupil forecast data submitted to
the DfE, which outlines the number of existing places in the Authority, the
current number of pupils on roll and a projection of future pupil numbers
expected, excluding any pupils supported by Developer Contributions.

3.4 Basic Need funding of £6.4m was received in 2015/16 and is committed against
Basic Need schemes that are currently under development to ensure that
places projected to be required for 2016/17 can be provided.

3.5 The DfE has identified the Council’s future Basic Need allocations as £6.7m for
2016/17, £3m for 2017/18 and £5.76m for 2018/19. A number of Basic Need
schemes have recently been approved for 2016/17 and 2017/18 as part of the
Council’'s budget report.

4 STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS AND BASIS FOR PROPOSAL

4.1 Relevant considerations: The Council’s statutory duty to provide sufficient
school places, Children, Equalities, Planning, Social Inclusion, Property, Impact
on Staff.

4.2 An Equality Impact Assessment has been completed using corporate
guidelines. No adverse or other significant issues were found.

5 THE REPORT

5.1 Appendix 1 to this report contains all the information that Cabinet should
require in order to be able to assess the proposed strategy. A summary of the
key issues impacting on pupil place planning is set out below.

5.2 Despite significant recent changes to the educational landscape with some
schools becoming Academies and free schools being established, the Local
Authority still retains the legal responsibility for pupil place planning in its area
and for ensuring there are sufficient school places available. This also aligns
with the strategic priorities of the Council to invest in schools and to secure
school places to meet parental demand and preference.

5.3 In general, existing secondary school provision is expected to be sufficient for
future pupil numbers arising from underlying population growth and future
house building. Secondary pupil numbers have been lower over the last few
years as the smaller numbers of pupils in the older year groups of primary
school reached secondary school age. Numbers are projected to pick up again

Printed on recycled paper Page 398



with admissions into Year 7 in 2018 onwards when the current younger primary
age pupils who entered Reception in 2011 reach secondary school age.

5.4 However, should a future proposed new housing development in a particular
area be projected to result in a shortfall of secondary school places, the
Authority will apply for CIL funding to provide additional places. These are
highly likely to be delivered via the expansion of existing schools rather than by
building new schools.

5.5 The future need for primary school places is expected to be affected by levels
of underlying population growth coupled with pupils generated from new
housing developments in line with the Core Strategy and Strategic Housing
Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA). The impact of this will vary from area to
area across the Authority depending on where the population growth is taking
place.

5.6 In some areas the impact is likely to be less severe and be felt more gradually
as the number of places required will be fewer in number and will build up
gradually and there will be more options available for delivery of any additional
places that might be required, possibly via the expansion of existing local
schools.

5.7 In most areas where growth is expected to be greater and faster and options for
delivery of additional places is limited as existing local schools cannot be
expanded because the sites they occupy are not large enough, the impact is
likely to be much more pronounced and immediate, requiring additional places
to be created early on and most likely via the provision of whole new schools
which will require land to be provided. Officers have been working closely with
colleagues in Planning Policy to ensure that these land requirements are
reflected in the Council’s Core Strategy and Infrastructure Delivery Programme.

5.8 We cannot say for certain what will happen to the population beyond the latest
2014-2015 births and resident population data — numbers could level off, fall or
rise steeply or gradually and therefore it is difficult to forecast how many places
will be required beyond admissions into Reception in 2019 and into Year 7 in
2021. This is particularly challenging for primary school place planning, as it is
only possible to plan four years ahead with any degree of certainty.

6 RATIONALE

6.1 The Local Authority still retains the legal responsibility for pupil place planning
in its area. In order to do this effectively the Local Authority must identify where
new school places will be required as a result of underlying population growth
or pupils generated from new housing development, how much additional
provision is required and when. This additional provision might be provided via
Basic Need funding from the Government or Developer Contributions or CIL as
a result of new housing developments.

6.2 There is currently already pressure on primary school places in some parts of
the Authority and also projected to be a shortfall in places in some areas in the
future and the Authority must plan for the additional provision that is needed.
The Plan will serve as a useful planning tool to identify areas and levels of
need, when investment in places will be needed and also to inform discussions
with Developers.

Printed on recycled paper Page 399



7 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
7.1 None
8 CONSULTATION

8.1 Cabinet Member for Early Years, Children and Youth; Children and Young People
Policy Development & Scrutiny Panel; Ward Councillors; Catholic Diocese; Church of
England Diocese; Primary, Secondary and Studio School Headteachers and
Governing Body Chairs; Neighbouring Local Authorities; Planning Policy; School
Advisers; Admissions and Transport; Education Finance.

8.2 All schools are consulted annually when Planned Admission Numbers (PANs) are
discussed for the next academic year two years ahead, providing an opportunity to
discuss any future projected impact on the school prior to setting the PAN. The last
consultation took place from September to November 2015 for PANs in 2017.

8.3 Where appropriate, comments submitted via the consultation have been included in
Appendix 1 and pupil projections updated as at March 2016.

9 RISK MANAGEMENT

9.1 A risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been
undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision making risk management
guidance. Significant risks identified are:

9.2 The Council has a statutory duty to secure sufficient school places and failure
to ensure this will result in the Council being at risk of breaching its
responsibility. This Plan sets out a strategy for delivery of sufficient school
places in the right areas across the Authority.

9.3 The actual eventual need for places is less or greater than projected. Use of
Primary and Secondary Planning Areas allows a good understanding of where
places are likely to be required as a result of population growth. Where there
are opportunities and within the limitations of the space and funding available,
some additional extra places may be provided to give flexibility.

9.4 Insufficient land available in the right area on which to build new school
accommodation where existing school sites cannot sustain any further
expansion and where new sites will need to be provided. Officers have been
working to identify where sites will be required for new school provision and
feeding these requirements into the Council's Infrastructure Delivery
Programme to secure land Developer Contributions.

9.5 New house building spread over a long period of time and therefore Developer
Contributions received over an extended period will make the timing of the
delivery of new school places challenging, particularly where land is also
required. Need to plan the delivery of new school accommodation via stages
and through phasing and via the pooling of Developer Contributions. Explore
the possibility of combining Basic Need Funding with Developer Contributions
or CIL where possible.

9.6 Available capital either through Basic Need funding or Developer Contributions
not sufficient to cover cost of building work to provide additional
accommodation. Planned building work delivered as cost effectively as possible
through effective project planning including utilising existing accommodation

Printed on recycled paper Page 400



where possible to make best use of available resources. Ensure any potential
shortfalls which may require Council funding are identified at an early stage and
included in the Council’s financial planning.

Contact person Helen Hoynes 01225 395169
Background None
papers

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an
alternative format

Printed on recycled paper Page 401



This page is intentionally left blank



Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Appendix 1

Bath and North East Somerset Council

Primary and Secondary School Organisation Plan 2015 — 2019

Including Longer Term Place Planning within

the Core Strategy Plan Period

Bath and North East Somerset -

The place to live, work and visit




Contents Page |
Introduction 3
Summary Profile of Primary and Secondary Schools 3
Pupil Projections in General 4
Primary Pupil Projections by Planning Area for Admissions in 2015 - 2019 6
Primary Planning Areas Map 8
Bathavon South and Peasedown St John Planning Areas 10
Bath North East Planning Area 11
Bath North West Planning Area 12
Bath South East Planning Area 12
Bath South West Planning Area 13
Central North and Timsbury Planning Areas 13
Central South Planning Area 14
Chew Valley North Planning Area 14
Chew Valley South Planning Area 15
Keynsham and Saltford Planning Areas 15
Midsomer Norton Planning Area 16
Paulton Planning Area 17
Radstock Planning Area 17
Whitchurch Planning Area 18
Secondary Pupil Projections by Planning Area for Admissions in 2015 - 2019 18
Secondary Planning Areas Map 20
Broadlands Planning Area 22
Chew Valley Planning Area 23
Greater Bath Consortium Planning Area 23
Norton Hill Planning Area 24
Somervale Planning Area 24
Wellsway Planning Area 25
Writhlington Planning Area 25
Longer Term Place Planning Within the Core Strategy Plan Period 26
Future Housing as Outlined in the Core Strategy 26
The West of England Joint Spatial Plan 27
School Place Requirements by Core Strategy Area 28
Impact on Primary 28
Somer Valley Area — Midsomer Norton, Radstock, Paulton and Peasedown St John 28
Bath Area 29
Keynsham Area 29
Whitchurch Area 30
Rural Area — the Remainder of the Authority 30
Impact on Secondary 30
Somer Valley Area — Midsomer Norton, Radstock, Paulton and Peasedown St John 30
Bath Area 31
Keynsham Area 31
Whitchurch Area 31
Rural Area — the Remainder of the Authority 31
Strategy for Provision of New School Places and Options Evaluation Criteria 31
Educational Strategy 32
Educational Criteria 32
Conclusion 33
Glossary 34

P&ge 404



Introduction

The provision of school places is going through a period of dramatic change. In line with current
government strategy, rather than being direct providers of school places via Community
schools, Local Authorities are moving to becoming commissioners of school places via a range
of providers that include Academies, Free Schools, Studio Schools, Foundation schools, Trust
schools, Voluntary Aided schools, Voluntary Controlled schools and Community schools.

Despite these changes, the Local Authority still retains the legal responsibility for pupil place
planning within its area and has a statutory duty to provide sufficient school places for every
child resident in the Local Authority who requires a place. In order to achieve this it can propose
expansions to all categories of schools and commission the provision of new schools that will be
run by the most appropriate body.

This plan outlines the current level of primary and secondary provision in the Authority, the
projected pupil numbers based on births and resident population data over the next four years
up to admissions in September 2019 in detail and in outline within the Core Strategy Plan period
arising as a consequence of the future planned housing development expected to be delivered
within this period in the Authority. The plan also gives estimates for the number of school places
likely to be required in each of the planning areas across the Authority as a result of projected
pupil numbers. In some cases it also proposes specific solutions as to how and where these
additional places might be provided.

The plan does not extend to Special School provision as this is subject to a separate and
distinct place planning and delivery process.

Summary Profile of Primary and Secondary Schools

In Bath and North East Somerset there are a total of 61 primary, infant and junior schools as
follows:

25 Community schools

21 Voluntary Controlled Church of England schools

5 Voluntary Aided Church of England schools

2 Voluntary Aided Catholic schools

6 Church of England Academies

2 Academies

(Including 3 Federations: 2 Federations of 2 schools and 1 Federation of 3 schools)

There are a total of 13 secondary schools as follows:

10 Academies

1 Foundation school

1 Voluntary Aided Catholic school

1 Voluntary Aided Church of England school

(Including 1 Federation of 2 schools)

12 schools have sixth forms (The two Voluntary Aided schools share a joint sixth form).
11 schools are co-educational

3
Page 405



1 school is single sex boys and 1 school is single sex girls
There are a total of 3 Studio Schools as follows:

3 Academies

Pupil Projections in General

The future need for school places is expected to be affected by rates of underlying population
growth coupled with pupils generated from new housing developments. The impact of this will
vary from area to area across the Authority depending on where the population growth is taking
place.

Two main sources of funding are currently available to create additional school places,
depending on how the need for places has been generated. These are: Basic Need funding and
Developer Contributions or Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).

Basic Need funding is currently allocated to local authorities by the Department for Education
(DfE) to provide additional school places where there is underlying growth in pupil numbers that
is projected to exceed the number of places available and where the increase is occurring as a
result of population growth other than from housing developments supported by Developer
Contributions. The level of Basic Need funding provided will be on the basis of the data
contained within the annual School Capacity Return submitted to the DfE. This outlines the
number of existing places in each planning area in the Authority, the current number of pupils
on roll and a projection of future pupil numbers expected, excluding any pupils from new
housing development supported by Developer Contributions.

Developer Contributions will be sought to provide school places required as a result of pupils
generated by Strategic Development Sites. The new school places provided could be in the
form of additional accommodation added to existing schools where this is possible or via the
provision of whole new schools to serve the development. In addition to capital, land may also
be required to be provided by the development. CIL would be considered for the provision of
other primary school places and for secondary school places.

The Local Authority liaises with the Health Authority to obtain accurate figures for births
within the Authority for each academic year and also to obtain figures for the resident
population of children. The resident population data we use is updated every six months to
reflect on going changes and movements in the population. The births data is updated
annually

The Authority estimates what the resident population will be by the time children reach
Reception age, based on the current resident population figures and births figures. It then
estimates the percentage of resident 4 year olds that will take up a Reception (YR) place each
year — the transfer rate — and also estimates how many 11 year olds there will be and what
percentage of these will enter secondary school in Year 7 (Y7). It also estimates how the current
year groups already within schools might change as they move through the school years.

4
Page 406



The Authority also uses the figures contained in the Bath and North East Somerset Planning
Obligations Supplementary Planning Document in order to calculate the number of children of
each age group likely to be generated from new housing developments. The number of children
generated from new housing developments will then be added to the number of children arising
from births and underlying population growth.

As far as possible, school places should be distributed to meet current and projected needs and
to ensure that sufficient school places are available reasonably close to the communities they
serve. The Authority will seek to meet parental preferences as far as possible and to take this
into account where possible when planning school places. The limitations associated with some
school sites means that it is not always possible to put additional school places precisely where
they are required, however the best possible achievable option will always be pursued.

The table and chart below show the births and resident population data for O - 11 year olds by
academic year as at September 2015 for all Bath and North East Somerset.

Age in
2015 11 10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1 0
Academic
Year Born 03-04 | 04-05 | 05-06 | 06-07 | 07-08 | 08-09 | 09-10 | 10-11 1112 | 1213 | 13-14 | 1415
Year
Enter YR 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Year
Enter Y7 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
Total

Births 1642 1696 1720 1832 1774 1703 1698 1830 1829 1797 1747 1720

Total

Resident 1864 1901 1911 2028 1925 1971 2000 2033 1931 1911 1781 1792

Difference

Births/

Resident 222 205 191 196 151 268 302 203 102 114 34 72
5

Page 407



Births and Resident Population for All Bath & North East Somerset
2003-2004 to 2014-2015 as as 2015

2500

2000

1500

E Resident

1000 Births

Number of Children

500

200304 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 200708 2008-09 200910 2010-11 201112 201213 201344  2014-15

Academic Year Born

Primary Pupil Projections by Planning Area for Admissions in 2015 — 2019

For the purposes of primary school place planning, the Authority has been divided into
seventeen areas. Each planning area contains a grouping of Lower Super Output Areas which
are the smaller areas that wards have been divided into nationally to allow a range of data to be
recorded on a very local basis. Each planning area has been designed to group the child
population living within that area with the school places that could reasonably be said to serve
that planning area.

In some areas, usually in more rural areas, where some routes to schools are deemed to be
hazardous (as described in the B&NES A Primary School for Your Child booklet), it is more
likely that a single local school would normally be expected to serve a particular rural area or
village, compared to urban areas where there would usually be more than one school located
within a more compact geographical area that would be accessible to a local community.

Adjustments are made to allow for some movements between planning areas where this is
thought to be reasonable i.e. within a reasonable distance, reflecting current patterns of
movements of pupils that live in one planning area and attend school in another etc. and in this
report some of the individual planning areas have been grouped.

The challenges around primary school place planning are firstly to accurately estimate what the
resident population of 4 year olds is likely to be in the future based on the births and current
resident population data for each age group. Resident population figures change from year to
year and generally increase compared to the births figure for that age group, although they can
be lower. Increases can be irregular from year to year and vary for different year groups.

6
Page 408



Secondly it is to project the percentage of those 4 year olds that will take up a YR place,
primarily based on past patterns of admissions. The third factor is parental preference as
parents do not always choose their nearest school. Estimates are based on the assumption that
current patterns of take up of places will continue into the future. When planning YR places it is
only possible to plan four years ahead with any degree of certainty due to the availability of data
on actual births.

Finally, pupils generated from previously approved housing developments that have either yet to
be built or are currently under construction need to be taken into account. The following
projections up to 2019 would exclude all pupils from housing developments that have not yet
commenced as they would not necessarily impact on school numbers by 2019. Some of the
pupils generated from housing developments currently under construction will be included and
some excluded, to reflect the progress of the construction programme. These additional pupils
would need to be added on to the Baseline projection figures.

Pupil projections are reviewed annually and updated as necessary.

7
Page 409



Primary Planning Areas Map

Planning Areas
Eath Morth East Keynsham
Bath Morth West

Bath South East

Midsomer Marion
Paulton

Balh Soulh West Peasedown 51 John

Bathavon South Radsiock
Central Morth Satford
Cantral South Timsbwry
Chaw Valley Morth Whitchureh

Chaw Valley South

Chew Stoke Church School

QT abed

Ubdey € of E Primany

Chew Valley North

Chiw Magna Primary

Keynsham

5t Johos C of £ Primary
St Hayma Primacy—) ‘Chandog Lnfant
Charsdag Junior !

WhBChicH Brimary

Whitchurch ®
Castle Primary Saltford C of E Primary
Saltford
oword‘mmlrr
Central North

Stanton Drew Prisnary

Bishop Sutton Primary

Chew Valley South

East Harptroa € of E Prismary

Markstury € of £ Primary

Farmbarough € of B Primary

Bath
MNorth East
Bath
North West Svnirswick C of £ Primary

Bathsaston C of E Primary

Weston Wl Sxints € af E Primary
5t Saviours C of E Jumior i
Batham| Firmary
52 Saviours C of € Infant:
5% Mary's Cathalic Primary i Bathford C of E Prisnary
St Staphen's € of E Primary

St Androw's C ol E Primary

.‘hlﬂuﬂcl: St Mary C of E Primary
Mrld“h-nlrr'.
CHaaflald Park Infant

Stiichial's € of € Jursor .

ol B Dinbes
Twartan Infant —i

IR AR ST L

B st John's Catholic Primary

Meartands Jusior I Moorlands Infart Bath
Rosndbill Primary -8 Bath South East
South West

1 Philips € of § Primary
@ combe Gown € of € Primary

SF Martine Gardes Primany

Feeshifard C:E Primary

Elutton Primary
St Mary's C of E Primary
5t Julian's € of E Primary
Cameley € of £ Primary Timsbury
Camarton Church Schaol Bathavon South
High Littleton Chairchs of England Primary Schosd
@-Peazednwn 5 2ahn Primary
Central South
Peasedown St John
Paulton
Faulton Irrr-rt‘.‘l‘am.'lmim .-EnuwnhtcurEFrlmv
Farrington Gurmey € of E Frimary ) Radstock 1@ scademy of Trinity
Walban Primary oy yienalas’ C of £ Primary
5t John's C of E Primary & o —— @ st Mary's € of E Primary
Longwernat Primary )
@ wocifiold Frimary
Midsomer
Norton

Reproducad from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the parmission of the Contraller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright. Unauthaorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceadings.

8

Lizence number 100023334




The table below shows births and resident population for 0 - 10 year olds by academic year as
at September 2015 grouped by Primary Planning Area.

| Age in 2015 10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1 0
Academic Year
Born 04-05 | 05-06 | 06-07 | 07-08 | 08-09 | 09-10 | 10-11 | 11-12 | 12-13 | 13-14 | 14-15
Year Enter YR 2009 | 2010 | 2011 | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | 2015 | 2016 | 2017 | 2018 | 2019
Year Enter Y7 2016 | 2017 | 2018 | 2019 | 2020 | 2021 | 2022 | 2023 | 2024 | 2025 | 2026
Bathavon | Births 20 17 26 12 14 9 15 13 14 10 10
h
Sout Resident 27 20 34 20 18 19 20 14 22 12 10
Bath North | Births 244 252 274 265 230 240 274 254 240 223 215
East
Resident 255 230 289 256 245 281 289 240 234 214 223
Bath North | Births 187 209 210 248 190 209 209 222 210 183 190
West
Resident 224 259 240 257 233 248 242 229 222 178 186
Bath South | Births 75 67 78 70 64 60 69 55 68 64 62
East
Resident 95 101 93 97 75 90 90 72 71 62 59
Bath South | Births 405 382 429 406 435 394 420 467 443 441 426
West
es Resident 408 370 423 398 435 401 395 452 439 452 456
Central Births 38 39 34 35 36 32 29 37 37 35 29
North
Resident 47 49 46 44 42 41 38 44 39 34 26
Central Births 67 70 68 69 54 63 55 62 54 49 61
South
Resident 75 74 74 87 74 74 64 65 67 43 66
Chew Births 33 32 46 30 35 32 42 30 26 44 39
Valley
North Resident 41 51 56 41 53 44 50 39 32 43 45
Chew Births 26 35 37 42 32 34 30 26 26 27 25
Valley
South Resident 42 47 48 44 43 51 42 37 33 37 25
Births 149 144 146 138 144 133 181 151 162 159 158
Keynsham
Resident 172 167 185 175 188 174 219 194 196 175 167
Midsomer | Births 146 170 170 150 170 159 178 192 182 162 197
Nort
orten | Resident 190 | 199 | 190 | 150 | 216 | 196 | 204 | 191 | 223 | 175 | 202
Births 61 56 54 46 70 65 68 74 79 69 81
Paulton
Resident 61 79 56 62 94 77 86 78 82 82 88
Peasedown | Births 95 98 83 99 78 96 86 92 82 91 74
St John
Resident 90 97 85 99 88 109 95 97 81 93 81
Births 90 98 115 115 116 104 109 98 108 126 89
Radstock
Resident 89 99 110 95 94 97 114 100 98 118 94
Saltford Births 30 11 28 24 19 33 26 24 28 26 21
Resident 51 32 46 50 42 52 41 37 31 29 20
. Births 27 33 29 25 17 27 26 24 30 28 37
Timsbury
Resident 28 25 41 36 24 37 32 31 29 28 37
Whitchurch | Births 4 6 6 0 0 9 13 9 8 8 7
Resident 6 12 12 14 7 9 12 11 12 6 7
9

Page 411



The chart below shows births and resident population data for children aged 4 in the 2015-2016
academic year as at September 2015 grouped by Primary Planning Area.

Resident Population and Births by Primary Planning Area for 4 Year Olds
as as 2015
450

400

350

300

250

mResident
200

Births

Number at Age 4

150

100

50

e
4 & @‘\é} @Q"ﬁ v“\é} @p&\ F & 5 &°'§ epéé\ q‘?’&@o c&\ﬁ\(\ 05}0& & & &
fsp(\ \\0{\ 996 > ‘9&' & (ﬁ&q} 4*5'@ %@ N <« <€ Q‘(‘\\

Primary Planning Area

The following figures show the actual YR intakes for 2014 and the estimated YR intakes for the
academic years 2015 to 2019 as at the May School Census date. Also latest Net Capacity (NC)
figures or Capacity (C) if the school is an academy and the 2015 YR places.

Bathavon South and Peasedown St John Planning Areas

R 1 2 3 4 5 6 Total
2012 120 123 126 105 107 118 120 819
2013 103 122 130 127 106 106 111 805
2014 130 105 127 137 130 108 105 842
2015 139 133 108 125 138 127 109 879
2016 149 142 136 111 128 141 130 937
2017 149 152 145 139 114 131 144 974
2018 156 152 155 148 142 117 134 1004
2019 149 159 155 158 151 145 120 1037

10
Page 412



Reception Places in 2015: 147

Schools:

10 Camerton Church School (NC 55), 20 Freshford C of E Primary (NC 140), 75
Peasedown St John Primary (NC 525), 20 Shoscombe C of E Primary (NC 120), 22 St
Julian’s C of E Primary (NC 112).

Camerton Church School, Shoscombe C of E Primary and St Julian’s C of E Primary are
federated.

Some additional places can be created at Camerton Church School for September 2016 and
2017 admissions by increasing the PAN.

Some additional capacity may need to be created at Freshford C of E Primary at a future date.

Capacity has been added to Peasedown St John Primary in order to accommodate the pupils
generated from underlying population growth and from the new housing development at Wellow
Lane in Peasedown. A feasibility study to add additional capacity to the school for September
2018 admissions onwards in order to accommodate pupils generated from the new housing
development at Greenlands Road in Peasedown St John is being undertaken.

Bath North East Planning Area

R 1 2 3 4 5 6 Total
2012 170 202 166 166 174 162 178 1218
2013 168 174 206 169 167 173 160 1217
2014 | 207 174 183 211 174 167 176 1292
2015 197 213 177 190 215 180 169 1341
2016 167 202 216 180 193 218 181 1357
2017 165 172 205 219 183 196 219 1359
2018 162 170 175 208 222 186 197 1320
2019 163 167 173 178 211 225 187 1304

Reception Places in 2015: 200

Schools:

30 Bathampton Primary (NC 206), 30 Batheaston C of E Primary (NC 209), 36 Bathford C
of E Primary (NC 210), 30 Bathwick St Mary C of E Primary (NC 210), 60 St Saviour’s C of
E Infant (NC 210) (and 60 St Saviour’s C of E Junior (NC 240)), 14 Swainswick C of E
Primary (NC 84).

St Saviour’'s C of E Junior school will have a bulge class added for Year 3 admissions in 2017 to
accommodate the bulge class of children that originally entered the St Saviour's C of E Infant
school in 2014.

11
Page 413



Bath North West Planning Area

R 1 2 3 4 5 6 Total
2012 264 | 265 259 230 226 219 221 1684
2013 260 | 265 262 255 236 224 222 1724
2014 267 | 265 266 261 260 224 223 1766
2015 268 | 270 268 269 259 259 223 1816
2016 258 | 271 273 271 271 261 261 1866
2017 288 | 261 274 276 273 273 263 1908
2018 257 | 291 264 277 278 275 275 1917
2019 268 | 260 294 267 279 280 277 1925

Reception Places in 2015: 270

Schools:

60 Newbridge Primary (NC 450), 30 St Andrews C of E Primary (NC 210), 30 St Mary’s
Catholic Primary (NC 210), 60 St Stephen’s C of E Primary (NC 420), 90 Weston All Saints
C of E Primary (NC 630).

The process to deliver the new 210 place primary school at Ensleigh with a Planned Admission

Number (PAN) of 30 has commenced and the school is scheduled to open in September 2017.
This will also serve the Bath North East Planning Area.

Bath South East Planning Area

R 1 2 3 4 5 6 Total
2012 114 | 113 119 111 113 106 103 779
2013 120 | 117 116 120 111 112 105 801
2014 119 | 114 120 116 118 112 118 817
2015 120 | 119 115 122 117 120 112 825
2016 120 | 121 120 117 122 118 120 838
2017 120 | 120 121 121 118 123 119 842
2018 120 | 120 121 122 122 119 124 848
2019 120 | 120 120 122 122 123 120 847

Reception Places in 2015: 120

Schools:

60 Combe Down C of E Primary (NC 418), 60 Widcombe Infant (NC 180) (and 60
Widcombe C of E Junior (NC 232)).

The new 210 place primary school with a PAN of 30 to accommodate pupils generated by the
Mulberry Park (MoD Foxhill) development is currently being planned and is scheduled to open
in September 2018. This will also serve the Bath South West Planning Area.

12
Page 414



Bath South West Planning Area

R 1 2 3 4 5 6 Total
2012 | 333 334 292 314 291 286 284 | 2134
2013 | 354 320 330 279 304 291 285 | 2163
2014 | 308 354 323 333 275 305 288 | 2186
2015 | 320 311 354 320 340 279 308 | 2232
2016 | 361 323 313 356 325 343 281 2302
2017 | 363 364 325 315 361 328 345 | 2401
2018 | 363 366 366 327 320 364 330 | 2436
2019 | 375 366 368 368 332 323 366 | 2498

Reception Places in 2015: 370

Schools:

60 Moorlands Infant (NC 210) (and 60 Moorlands Junior (NC 270)), 60 Oldfield Park Infant
(NC 210) (and 75 Oldfield Park Junior (NC 229)), 60 Roundhill Primary (NC 407), 40 St
Philip’s C of E Primary (NC 280), 45 St Martin’s Garden Primary (NC 315), 45 St John’s
Catholic Primary (NC 312), 60 Twerton Infant (NC 180) (and 60 St Michael’s C of E Junior
(NC 240)).

Moorlands Infant and Moorlands Junior are federated.

Should additional places be required in this area these are likely to be proposed to be provided
by adding capacity to St Martin’s Garden Primary school or Moorlands Infant and Junior
schools.

The new 210 place primary school with a PAN of 30 to accommodate pupils generated by the

Crest development at Bath Western Riverside (BWR) has an estimated opening date of
approximately 2022/2023, based on the latest build programme for the development.

Central North and Timsbury Planning Areas

R 1 2 3 4 5 6 Total
2012 54 60 49 61 53 57 54 388
2013 55 57 66 49 63 54 57 401
2014 65 57 57 60 46 55 45 385
2015 56 66 57 61 57 43 55 395
2016 66 58 68 59 63 59 44 417
2017 69 68 60 70 61 65 60 453
2018 59 71 70 62 72 63 66 463
2019 66 61 73 72 64 74 64 474

Reception Places in 2015: 65

Schools:

20 Farmborough C of E Primary (NC 120), 15 Marksbury C of E Primary (NC 105), 30 St
Mary’s C of E Primary (Timsbury) (NC 210).

Farmborough C of E Primary school is currently being expanded to accommodate pupils
generated from underlying population growth and from the new housing development currently

13
Page 415



under construction in Farmborough. The school will have a PAN of 25 for Reception admissions
in 2016 onwards.

Central South Planning Area

R 1 2 3 4 5 6 Total
2012 78 65 70 70 64 58 61 466
2013 66 78 62 67 62 65 57 457
2014 64 65 72 61 70 59 67 458
2015 71 64 67 71 61 70 60 464
2016 79 72 65 68 72 62 71 489
2017 83 80 73 66 69 73 63 507
2018 61 84 81 74 67 70 74 511
2019 91 62 85 82 75 68 71 534

Reception Places in 2015: 80

Schools:

20 Cameley C of E Primary (NC 138), 25 Clutton Primary (C 147), 15 Farrington Gurney C
of E Primary (NC 105), 20 High Littleton C of E Primary (C 140).

New housing development in Temple Cloud is expected to generate the need for additional
capacity to be added to Cameley C of E Primary school.

New housing development in Clutton is expected to generate the need for additional capacity to
be added to Clutton Primary school.

Additional places may be required for Reception admissions in 2017 and 2019. This could be

achieved by expanding Clutton Primary school to a PAN of 30 and Cameley C of E Primary
school to a PAN of 25 or 30.

Chew Valley North Planning Area

R 1 2 3 4 5 6 Total
2012 62 59 58 55 52 64 58 408
2013 62 66 62 61 57 57 65 430
2014 55 66 67 62 62 59 58 429
2015 64 57 68 68 64 60 60 441
2016 53 67 59 70 70 66 61 446
2017 51 55 68 61 72 72 67 446
2018 65 53 57 70 63 77 73 458
2019 73 67 55 59 72 65 75 466

Reception Places in 2015: 67

Schools:

15 Chew Magna Primary (NC 105), 27 Chew Stoke Church School (C 189), 15 Pensford
Primary (NC 105), 10 Stanton Drew Primary (NC 70).

14
Page 416



Stanton Drew Primary is federated with Bishop Sutton Primary.
Future demand is expected to be met by current school provision in the Chew Valley North

Planning Area up to 2018. Additional capacity may be required in the area for Reception
admissions in 2019.

Chew Valley South Planning Area

R 1 2 3 4 5 6 Total
2012 38 50 42 32 38 40 38 278
2013 42 38 52 43 34 37 38 284
2014 44 44 40 52 43 37 36 296
2015 47 46 45 41 55 45 35 314
2016 42 47 48 47 43 57 47 331
2017 48 44 49 50 49 45 59 344
2018 49 50 46 51 52 51 47 346
2019 40 51 52 48 53 54 53 351

Reception Places in 2015: 56

Schools:

25 Bishop Sutton Primary (NC 149), 15 East Harptree C of E Primary (NC 103), 16 Ubley C
of E Primary (NC 80).

Bishop Sutton Primary is federated with Stanton Drew Primary.

Bishop Sutton Primary school is currently being expanded to a 210 place school with a PAN of
30 for admissions in September 2017 onwards due to new housing development in Bishop
Sutton.

Additional capacity is expected to be required at Ubley C of E Primary school to accommodate

pupils generated by local underlying population growth.

Keynsham and Saltford Planning Areas

R 1 2 3 4 5 6 Total
2012 | 215 219 197 214 186 200 196 1427
2013 | 209 217 224 198 220 187 198 1453
2014 | 222 213 216 223 196 219 187 1476
2015 | 268 225 213 225 222 201 218 1572
2016 | 250 271 227 219 227 225 201 1620
2017 | 264 253 273 233 221 230 225 1699
2018 | 260 267 255 279 235 224 230 1750
2019 | 257 263 269 261 281 238 225 1794

15
Page 417



Reception Places in 2015: 270

Schools:

60 Castle Primary (NC 327), 60 Chandag Infant (NC 180) (and 68 Chandag Junior (NC
240)), 60 St John’s C of E Primary (Keynsham) (C 240), 30 St Keyna Primary (NC 210), 60
Saltford C of E Primary (NC 390).

Castle Primary school is currently being expanded to provide a total of 60 places per year group
to become a 420 place school to accommodate pupils from both parts of the K2 housing
development in Keynsham and some pupils from underlying population growth.

Two classrooms are being added to Saltford C of E Primary school to allow it to accommodate
60 pupils in every year group and become a 420 place school.

A bulge class of 30 places for Reception admissions in 2016 at St Keyna Primary school is
currently being discussed with the school.

The process to deliver the new 210 place primary school with a PAN of 30 at Somerdale has
commenced and the school is scheduled to open in September 2017. This will accommodate
the pupils generated from the new housing development on the former Somerdale factory site in
Keynsham.

Due to the higher than expected population growth being experienced in Keynsham in recent

years, a feasibility study to add additional capacity to St Keyna Primary school in order to
accommodate pupils generated from underlying population growth is being undertaken.

Midsomer Norton Planning Area

R 1 2 3 4 5 6 Total
2012 158 188 192 178 163 174 193 1246
2013 199 163 186 203 183 164 177 1275
2014 186 205 167 193 201 189 165 1306
2015 | 206 190 210 175 196 210 194 1381
2016 | 208 211 195 215 180 201 215 1425
2017 | 245 213 216 200 220 185 206 1485
2018 | 246 250 218 221 205 225 190 1555
2019 | 264 251 255 223 226 210 230 1659

Reception Places in 2015: 218

Schools:

25 Longvernal Primary (NC 113), 45 Midsomer Norton Primary (NC 315), 60 St John’s
Primary School (Midsomer Norton) (C 420), 28 Welton Primary (NC 196), 60 Westfield
Primary (NC 420).

Additional capacity will be required in Midsomer Norton by 2017 in order to accommodate pupils
generated by several new housing developments under construction. A new 630 place Free
School with a PAN of 90 has been approved, by the DfE, for the Midsomer Norton area to open
in September 2017. The Free School Trust plans to open initially with a PAN of 60.

16
Page 418



Paulton Planning Area

R 1 2 3 4 5 6 Total
2012 58 57 60 52 60 62 61 410
2013 73 55 57 64 56 61 64 430
2014 75 72 58 53 63 61 63 445
2015 73 76 72 62 56 66 65 470
2016 75 75 78 74 64 58 68 492
2017 86 77 77 80 76 66 60 522
2018 90 88 79 79 82 78 68 564
2019 88 92 90 81 81 84 80 596

Reception Places in 2015: 90
Schools:
90 Paulton Infant (NC 269) (and 60 Paulton Junior (NC 255)).

Paulton Infant school has been expanded to provide 90 places per year group to become a 270
place school to accommodate pupils from underlying population growth and from existing
housing developments in Paulton. Paulton Junior school is being expanded for September 2016
onwards to provide 90 places per year group and become a 360 place school.

Radstock Planning Area

R 1 2 3 4 5 6 Total
2012 83 89 78 66 67 57 68 508
2013 75 80 84 72 65 64 57 497
2014 87 75 77 79 72 70 66 526
2015 89 91 74 77 80 72 73 556
2016 79 90 92 75 78 81 73 568
2017 79 80 91 93 76 79 82 580
2018 97 80 81 92 94 77 80 601
2019 83 98 81 82 93 95 78 610

Reception Places in 2015: 95

Schools:

30 Academy of Trinity (C 210), 25 St Mary’s C of E Primary (Writhlington) (NC 149), 40 St
Nicholas’ C of E Primary (NC 270).

St Mary’s C of E Primary school is currently being expanded to add capacity to accommodate
pupils generated from the Knobsbury Lane new housing development in Radstock. It will have a
PAN of 30 for admissions in September 2017 onwards.

In addition, a feasibility study to add additional capacity to St Nicholas’ C of E Primary school for
September 2018 admissions onwards in order to accommodate pupils generated from the new
housing development at Radstock Railway Line is being undertaken.

17
Page 419



Whitchurch Planning Area

R 1 2 3 4 5 6 Total
2012 30 29 30 25 31 29 22 196
2013 29 30 28 29 27 31 26 200
2014 29 30 30 30 29 27 30 205
2015 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 210
2016 30 30 30 31 30 30 31 212
2017 34 31 30 30 31 30 30 216
2018 32 34 31 31 31 31 32 222
2019 30 32 34 32 31 31 32 222

Reception Places in 2015: 30
Schools:
30 Whitchurch Primary (NC 210).

There are projected to be sufficient places available in this planning area to accommodate
pupils up to 2019.

Secondary Pupil Projections by Planning Area for Admissions in 2015 — 2019

For the purposes of secondary school place planning, the Authority has been divided into seven
planning areas which relate to the seven secondary school catchment areas, also called Areas
of Prime Responsibility, within the Authority.

The catchment areas for Chew Valley and Writhlington schools extend beyond the boundary of
Bath and North East Somerset into the neighbouring authorities of North Somerset and
Somerset respectively. Children living within this part of the catchment area are considered on
the same level of priority as children living within the Bath and North East Somerset part of the
catchment area for that school.

The catchment area for St Gregory’s Catholic College extends beyond the boundaries of the
Greater Bath Consortium catchment area, primarily to the north, east and south of the Authority
as it serves designated Catholic parishes in North West Wiltshire and the north of the County of
Somerset as well as Bath and North East Somerset.

The Authority is a net importer of pupils with many pupils travelling into the Authority from
neighbouring authorities. This can create challenges when planning secondary school places as
these patterns can change for a variety of reasons. External factors such as the popularity of
schools in neighbouring authorities can impact on parental preference and affect the number of
pupils that come into Bath and North East Somerset, as can any changes to schools within the
Authority.

Some schools currently admit a significant number of pupils from outside of their catchment
area and outside of the Authority, notably Chew Valley, Broadlands and Oldfield and to a lesser
extent Writhlington. Within the Authority, there is an established pattern whereby Norton Hill,
Somervale and Writhlington tend to admit pupils from each other’s catchment areas to varying
degrees and Wellsway admits a significant number of pupils from the Broadlands catchment

18
Page 420



area and also from outside the Authority. Numbers at these schools can be significantly affected
by these movements of pupils.

If pupil numbers in the catchment areas for these schools were to increase in future as a result
of underlying population growth and/or new housing development, it is possible that gradually
over time the new Year 7 pupils living in the catchment area who apply for a place at their local
school could serve to displace some of these out of catchment pupils..

The projected Year 7 (Y7) intake figures for 2015 — 2019 have been calculated by estimating
the number of resident population children reaching Year 7 age based on the current resident
population and births figures in each secondary planning area and then the percentage of
resident 11 year olds that will take up a Year 7 place is estimated, primarily based on past
patterns of parental preference and take up of places. Then a projection of the current year
groups already within schools is calculated. The estimates are based on the assumption that
these current patterns will continue into the future.

The figures also include pupils who currently travel into the Authority from outside of the
individual school catchment areas and again are based on the assumption that this current
pattern continues at this level. Also, popular schools are likely to attract additional pupils from
outside of their catchment area should less places be required by children living within the
catchment area because the population there has fallen.

Finally, pupils generated from previously approved housing developments that have either yet to
be built or are currently under construction need to be taken into account. The following
projections up to 2019 would exclude all pupils from housing developments that have not yet
commenced as they would not necessarily impact on school numbers by 2019. Some of the
pupils generated from housing developments currently under construction will be included and
some excluded, to reflect the progress of the construction programme. These additional pupils
would need to be added on to the Baseline projection figures.

Generally speaking, secondary pupil numbers are expected to be lower over the next few years
as the smaller numbers of primary pupils seen in the past reach secondary school age. The
increasing primary age population is first anticipated to reach Year 7 of secondary school in the
2017/2018 and 2018/19 academic years, resulting in a marked increase in secondary school
age pupils at this time in most areas and generally to remain higher from that point onwards.

However up to admissions in 2019 there are still projected to be sufficient secondary school
places available in all areas of the Authority for children living within the secondary school
catchment areas for Bath and North East Somerset.

19
Page 421



Zey abed

Secondary Planning Areas Map

Areas of Prime Responsibility (APR)
Eroadiands
Chaw vallay
Greater Bath Consortium
Martan Hil
Somervals
Wellsway

Wiithlington

Chew Vallay Schood

Chew Valley

The Greater Bath Consortium
catchment area covers the
following seven secondary schools:

Beechen Cliff, Bath Community
Academy, Hayesfield, Oldfield,
Ralph Allen, St Mark's and

St Gregory's.

Ralph Allen & St Mark's
catchment areas within the
Greater Bath Consortium

give children living in those areas
priority when applying to that
particular school.

Broadlands
Eroadiands Academy )

KB Studio School-EHE-Wellsway Schoal
St Mark's Church of England Schoal

Didfield School - Greater Bath Consortium

Wellsway Hayesflald Girls' School @)
-Beechen CIiff School

Bath Commanity Acadamy ) Ralph Allen School )

@ The Rath Shudin Sehanl
Saint Gregery's Catholic College )

Norton
Hill

Writhlington
Somervale

@ The Hendip Studic School
Wirithlingtan Schoal-#)

Semaervale School-if  Norton
Morton Hill School-@  Hill

Reproducad from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permissian of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office @ Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

20

Licence number 100023334




The table below shows births and resident population data for O - 11 year olds by academic year
as at September 2015 grouped by Secondary Planning Area.

Age in
2015 1 10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1 0
Academic
Year
Born 03-04 | 04-05 | 05-06 | 06-07 | 07-08 | 08-09 | 09-10 | 10-11 | 11-12 | 12-13 | 13-14 | 14-15
Year
Enter YR | 2008 | 2009 | 2010 | 2011 | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | 2015 | 2016 | 2017 | 2018 | 2019
Year
Enter Y7 2015 | 2016 | 2017 | 2018 | 2019 | 2020 | 2021 | 2022 | 2023 | 2024 | 2025 | 2026
Births 109 117 115 125 105 119 104 160 128 129 131 121
Broadlands
Resident 109 123 125 145 137 146 125 172 156 146 136 129
Births 64 78 84 93 85 77 75 80 66 59 79 74
Chew Valley
Resident 106 102 111 116 99 109 108 102 86 74 87 79
G;;Le’ Births 907 932 926 1013 | 1005 | 936 913 989 1011 974 923 902
Consortium | Resident 993 1009 | 981 1073 | 1031 | 1010 | 1039 | 1036 | 1009 | 987 919 933
, Births 135 122 131 135 144 127 152 149 145 154 138 152
Norton Hill
Resident 153 151 166 163 156 160 175 172 159 186 144 163
Births 144 156 176 166 135 182 163 179 211 190 170 206
Somervale
Resident 168 176 204 168 155 237 193 210 198 211 187 213
Births 71 85 66 76 77 63 88 74 76 90 81 81
Wellsway
Resident 124 129 113 126 126 114 132 121 106 117 94 82
i Births 214 207 221 224 222 200 204 199 193 197 225 183
Writhlington
Resident 210 211 211 237 221 197 229 220 217 190 217 194

The chart below shows births and resident population data for children aged 11 in the 2015-
2016 academic year as at September 2015 grouped by Secondary Planning Area.

21
Page 423



Resident Population & Births by Secondary Planning Area for 11 Year Olds

as at 2015
1000

900

800

700

600

500

mResident

Births

400

Number at Age 11

300

200 I —
0 I

Bath Broadlands  Chew Valley Morton Hill Somervale Wellsway Writhlington
Secondary Planning Area

The following figures show the actual Y7 intakes for 2014 and the estimated Y7 intakes for the
academic years 2015 to 2019 as at the May School Census date. Also latest Net Capacity (NC)
figures or Capacity (C) if the school is an academy and the 2015 Y7 places.

Broadlands Planning Area

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 Total
2012 107 95 87 144 186 0 0 0 619
2013 44 101 94 83 142 0 0 0 464
2014 84 48 103 95 82 0 0 0 412
2015 95 87 57 107 92 0 0 0 438
2016 108 98 92 61 106 0 0 0 465
2017 111 111 103 96 60 0 0 0 481
2018 132 114 116 107 95 0 0 0 564
2019 130 135 119 120 106 0 0 0 610

Year 7 Places in 2015: 150
School:
150 Broadlands Academy (C 750).

There is projected to be sufficient capacity available in this planning area to accommodate the
projected number of pupils up to 2019. Whilst there will be pupils generated from new housing
development within this period the impact is not expected to be significant.

22
Page 424



Chew Valley Planning Area

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 Total
2012 189 195 196 200 187 101 102 0 1170
2013 193 187 198 198 199 108 77 0 1160
2014 184 193 182 196 199 107 90 0 1151
2015 | 202 182 196 182 196 113 81 0 1152
2016 198 204 184 198 184 112 86 2 1168
2017 | 238 200 206 186 200 105 85 2 1222
2018 | 238 240 202 208 188 114 79 2 1271
2019 | 219 240 242 204 210 107 86 2 1310

Year 7 Places in 2015: 210
School:
210 Chew Valley School (NC 1,336).

There is projected to be sufficient capacity available in this planning area to accommodate the
projected number of pupils resident in Bath and North East Somerset up to 2019. This may be
achieved via the displacement of some future pupils from outside the school’s catchment area.
Whilst there will be pupils generated from new housing development within this period the
impact is not expected to be significant.

Greater Bath Consortium Planning Area

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 Total
2012 | 893 892 906 934 969 443 394 5 5436
2013 | 998 878 901 918 969 513 330 17 5524
2014 | 988 999 886 910 911 596 418 26 5734
2015 | 1057 | 1008 | 1013 | 902 906 560 485 33 5964
2016 | 1088 | 1071 | 1022 | 1025 | 910 557 456 38 6167
2017 | 1105 | 1102 | 1085 | 1034 | 1033 | 560 453 36 6408
2018 | 1218 | 1119 | 1116 | 1097 | 1042 | 635 456 36 6719
2019 | 1203 | 1232 | 1133 | 1128 | 1105 | 641 517 36 6995

Year 7 Places in 2015: 1,195

Schools:

175 Beechen CIiff School (C 1,131), 120 Bath Community Academy (C 720), 190
Hayesfield Girls’ School (C 1,226), 224 Oldfield School (C 1,216), 224 Ralph Allen School
(C 1,110), 160 St Gregory’s Catholic College (NC 951), 102 St Marks C of E School (NC
513), 30 (Year 10) The Bath Studio School (C 300).

The Bath Studio School opened in September 2014 and offers a total of 300 places for pupils
aged 14 -19.

There is projected to be sufficient capacity available in this planning area to accommodate the
projected number of pupils resident in Bath and North East Somerset up to 2019. This may be
achieved via the displacement of some future pupils from outside the school’s catchment area.
Whilst there will be pupils generated from new housing development within this period the
impact is not expected to be significant.

23
Page 425



Norton Hill Planning Area

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 Total
2012 | 252 243 252 258 249 129 108 5 1496
2013 | 238 252 246 248 259 141 112 6 1502
2014 | 225 239 251 251 250 145 135 0 1496
2015 | 277 232 244 252 250 164 133 8 1560
2016 | 293 281 234 246 254 164 150 8 1630
2017 | 343 297 283 236 248 167 150 9 1733
2018 | 338 347 299 285 238 163 157 9 1836
2019 | 347 342 349 301 287 156 149 9 1940

Year 7 Places in 2015: 280
School:
280 Norton Hill School (C 1,621).

Norton Hill School is federated with Somervale School.

There is projected to be sufficient capacity available in this planning area to accommodate the
projected number of pupils resident in Bath and North East Somerset up to 2019. This may be
achieved via the displacement of some future pupils from outside the school’s catchment area.
Whilst there will be pupils generated from new housing development within this period the
impact is not expected to be significant.

Somervale Planning Area

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 Total
2012 74 95 95 78 106 22 18 4 492
2013 90 73 96 93 81 39 14 1 487
2014 100 89 77 94 92 23 37 0 512
2015 61 105 91 78 96 41 17 1 490
2016 68 63 107 93 80 43 30 1 485
2017 80 70 65 109 95 36 32 1 488
2018 65 82 72 67 111 42 27 1 467
2019 68 67 84 74 69 49 31 1 443

Year 7 Places in 2015: 141
School:
141 Somervale School (C 839).

Somervale School is federated with Norton Hill School.

There could be an impact on numbers due to the Polestar Barratts and Polestar Bovis
developments in Paulton and the Cautletts Close housing development in Midsomer Norton
within this period. However there is projected to be sufficient capacity available in this planning
area to accommodate the projected number of pupils up to 2019.

24
Page 426



Wellsway Planning Area

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 Total
2012 | 208 208 215 214 220 137 116 0 1318
2013 | 219 210 209 215 213 147 122 0 1335
2014 | 231 219 208 209 214 134 137 0 1352
2015 | 230 231 219 219 210 190 115 0 1414
2016 | 250 230 231 230 219 186 163 2 1511
2017 | 217 250 230 242 230 194 160 3 1526
2018 | 278 217 250 241 242 204 166 3 1601
2019 | 293 278 217 261 241 215 175 3 1680

Year 7 Places in 2015: 230
Schools:
230 Wellsway School (C 1,400), 40 (Year 10) IKB Studio School (C 300).

IKB Studio School opened in September 2015 and offers a total of 300 places for pupils aged
14 -19.

There is projected to be sufficient capacity available in this planning area to accommodate the

projected number of pupils resident in Bath and North East Somerset up to 2019. This may be
achieved via the displacement of some future pupils from outside the school’'s catchment area.

Writhlington Planning Area

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 Total
2012 | 244 260 242 237 241 177 157 0 1558
2013 | 257 244 254 246 237 170 144 0 1552
2014 | 260 251 244 247 242 156 157 0 1557
2015 | 219 263 251 248 245 159 138 3 1526
2016 | 251 222 264 255 248 161 141 3 1523
2017 | 250 254 223 268 255 163 142 3 1514
2018 | 287 253 255 227 268 168 144 3 1537
2019 | 261 290 254 259 227 176 149 3 1529

Year 7 Places in 2015: 245
Schools:
245 Writhlington School (C 1,645), 40 (Year 10) The Mendip Studio School (C 300).

The Mendip Studio School opened in September 2015 and offers a total of 300 places for pupils
aged 14 -19.

There is projected to be sufficient capacity available in this planning area to accommodate the
projected number of pupils resident in Bath and North East Somerset up to 2019. This may be
achieved via the displacement of some future pupils from outside the school’s catchment area.
Whilst there will be pupils generated from new housing development within this period the
impact is not expected to be significant.

25
Page 427



Longer Term Place Planning within the Core Strategy Plan Period
Future Housing as Outlined in the Core Strategy

The Core Strategy is the key overarching document in the Local Development Framework and
is the first of a new generation of policy documents that will set out the long-term planning
framework for the district.

The Core Strategy sets out the policy framework for the location and level of new housing and
other development and is one of the Council's key policy documents that seeks to build upon
the area's strong foundations which include the emerging creative industries, success of local
Universities, and vibrant retail and tourist offer.

The Core Strategy for Bath and North East Somerset Council was formally adopted by the
Council on 10th July 2014. The Core Strategy now forms part of the Development Plan for the
District and will be used in the determination of all planning applications submitted to the
Council alongside policies in the Joint Waste Core Strategy (2011) and those saved policies in
the Local Plan (2007) not replaced by the Core Strategy.

The Core Strategy sets out the long term spatial vision for Bath and North East Somerset within
the plan period from 2011-2029 and the broad locations for new housing, jobs and other
strategic developments. It will also focus on the delivery of policy objectives and any
infrastructure requirements, which would include schools.

The Core Strategy outlines the expected total number of new dwellings to be provided within the
plan period in each of the five planning areas of the Authority, as follows: 7,022 dwellings in
Bath, 2,152 in Keynsham, 2,467 in the Somer Valley area, 1,115 in the rural area and 200 in the
Whitchurch area of Bath and North East Somerset. Some of these dwellings have already been
built or are part of known housing developments that currently have planning permission but
have not yet been built.

This plan outlines the likely need for primary and secondary school places based on these area
quotas of dwellings as listed above. Should more dwellings than this be built, current place
planning will need to be reviewed as more school places would be required.

In general, the majority of existing primary schools are either already at capacity or projected to
reach capacity within the next few years and it is anticipated that there will be minimal or nil
surplus capacity to absorb primary age children generated from future new housing
development. Therefore additional primary school places will be required to accommodate these
new pupils.

The impact of pupils generated from future house building will vary from area to area across the
Authority depending on where the population growth is taking place. In some areas the impact
is likely to be less severe and be felt more gradually, as the number of places required will be
fewer in number and will build up gradually and also because there will be more options
available for delivery of any additional places that might be required, possibly via the expansion
of existing local schools using Developer Contributions or CIL.

26
Page 428



In other areas where growth is expected to be greater or more rapid and options for delivery of
additional places is limited, as existing local schools cannot be expanded, for example because
the sites they occupy are not large enough, the impact is likely to be much more pronounced
and immediate, requiring additional places to be created early on and most likely via the
provision of whole new schools. This will require Developer Contributions and CIL in the form of
capital to build the new school accommodation and sufficient land to build on.

In most parts of the Authority existing schools that occupy large enough sites will already have
been expanded up to the maximum possible and it is anticipated that whole new primary
schools on new sites will be required in most cases.

The Authority will need to consider the timing of the delivery of any additional places that might
be required, particularly where the need for places is created by more than a single
development and where Developer Contributions might need to be pooled or where a
Developer Contribution from a single development is received in several staged payments. This
is particularly so where additional land will be required.

It is likely that Developer Contributions and CIL could be received over an extended period of
time which would make planning building work challenging. Also where additional places are
required as a result of underlying population growth as well as new housing development, it
would be best practice to combine Basic Need funding with Developer Contributions or CIL
where possible to achieve the most cost effective solution. However it will be a challenge to
achieve this level of co-ordination whilst at the same time ensuring that the additional places are
provided in time and are available when required.

Existing secondary school and sixth form provision is currently expected to be sufficient in most
areas of the Authority for future pupil numbers arising from future house building as outlined in
the Core Strategy. However in other areas it is possible that there will be a future shortfall as a
result of the additional dwellings being proposed in Bath and the Somer Valley.

The most significant future increases in pupil numbers as a result of new housing development
are expected to be in the Broadlands Planning Area as a result of the two parts of the K2
development, the Somerdale factory site development and other future proposed housing
development in Keynsham and Whitchurch, in the Somervale Planning Area as a result of the
Polestar development and other developments in Midsomer Norton and in the Greater Bath
Consortium Planning Area as a result of the BWR development and other major developments
planned for Bath.

Should a future proposed new housing development in a particular area be projected to result in
a shortfall of secondary school or sixth form places, the Authority will seek CIL contributions to
provide additional places. If additional secondary and sixth form provision is required, this is
likely to be delivered via the expansion of existing schools rather than by building whole new
schools. This situation will continue to be monitored.

The West of England Joint Spatial Plan

Bath and North East Somerset Council together with the three neighbouring Unitary Authorities
of South Gloucestershire, North Somerset and City of Bristol have recently commenced work on

27
Page 429



preparing The West of England Joint Spatial Plan (JSP). This Plan will establish the amount of
housing that needs to be provided in order to meet needs arising within the Bristol Housing
Market Area during the period 2016 to 2036. The JSP will also establish a spatial strategy for
providing this housing and identify broad locations for development, as well as outlining the
infrastructure required to support this development, including for education.

The JSP may identify additional development locations within Bath and North East Somerset
over and above that set out in the adopted Core Strategy. Associated with the JSP the Council
is committed to undertaking a partial review of the adopted Core Strategy in order to allocate
specific sites to provide this new development. The JSP and Core Strategy partial review are
currently anticipated to be adopted in 2018.

In addition to the JSP the Council’s Local Development Scheme also outlines the programme
for a full review of the B&NES Core Strategy due to be undertaken in 2018-2019. This will
establish and plan for future housing needed in the longer term in the Bath Housing Market
Area.

School Place Requirements by Core Strategy Area
1) Impact on Primary
Somer Valley Area — Midsomer Norton, Radstock, Paulton and Peasedown St John

In Midsomer Norton approximately 27 more pupils per year group are expected to be generated
from planned new housing development and will need to be added to the projections. Additional
capacity will be required in Midsomer Norton in order to accommodate the pupils generated by
the housing developments at Alcan, Cautletts Close, Fosseway South, Monger Lane and other
developments in Midsomer Norton. A new 630 place Free School has been approved for this
area. Any further significant housing development in this area above that already planned is
likely to generate the need for a new school.

In Radstock approximately 8 more pupils per year group are expected to be generated from
planned new housing development and will need to be added to the projections. Additional
capacity will be required in Radstock in order to accommodate the pupils generated by the
housing development at the former Radstock Railway Line and other smaller developments. It is
proposed to add capacity to St Nicholas’ C of E Primary school in this area. Any further
significant housing development in this area above that already planned is likely to generate the
need for a new school.

Paulton Infant and Junior schools cannot take any further expansion above that already planned
for the existing approved housing as the sites will be at capacity and any additional housing in
Paulton would create the need for additional land and capital for a new school.

In Peasedown St John approximately 4 more pupils per year group are expected to be
generated from planned new housing development and will need to be added to the projections.
A small expansion of Peasedown St John Primary school is proposed in order to accommodate
these pupils. Any additional housing in Peasedown St John would create the need for additional
land and capital for a new school.

28
Page 430



Bath Area

Many of the existing primary schools in Bath have limited or no capacity for extension or expansion
on site as they are on sites that are constrained in size, therefore land for new school
accommodation will be required in order to provide additional school places.

The exact number of additional places required in total will depend on the housing mix in the new
housing developments — how many dwellings are flats, how many houses and how many
bedrooms they have. It is expected that these places will be delivered via Developer Contributions
in the form of capital and also land where appropriate.

The process to deliver the new 210 place on-site primary school to serve the MoD Ensleigh
housing development in North Bath comprising of Ensleigh North and Ensleigh South and also
for the adjacent new area of Royal High School land and Hope House has commenced.

It is planned to expand Bathwick St Mary C of E Primary school to accommodate pupils
generated by the MoD Warminster Road development and for other smaller developments in
the Bath North East Planning Area.

In addition to the Crest BWR school of 210 places, it is projected that another 210 places will
eventually be required in the future to accommodate pupils from the remainder of the BWR
development and other developments in the central and river corridor area in the Bath South
West Planning Area.

A new 210 place on-site primary school is planned to serve the Mulberry Park (MoD Foxhill)
housing development in the Bath South East Planning Area.

It is proposed to expand St Martin’s Garden Primary school in order to accommodate the pupils
generated by the proposed new area of housing development at Odd Down in the Bath South
West Planning Area.

Keynsham Area

In Keynsham approximately 58 more pupils per year group are expected to be generated from
planned new housing development and will need to be added to the projections.

There is considered to be limited future scope for existing primary schools to accommodate
growth utilising Developer Contributions to add extra capacity in Keynsham. This is due to both
the more significant underlying population growth happening in this area as well as anticipated
growth from new housing and the fact that the existing school sites do not lend themselves to
expansion. The exception to this is St Keyna Primary school where a feasibility study to expand
the school to a 420 place school via the use of an adjacent area of land is being undertaken.

The expansion of Castle Primary school to a 420 place school to accommodate pupils
generated from the two parts of the K2 development is under construction.

29
Page 431



The process to deliver the new 210 place on-site primary school to accommodate the pupils
from the housing development planned for the former Somerdale factory site in Keynsham has
commenced.

Additional school places would also be required in the Keynsham and Saltford planning area as
a result of the proposed new areas of housing development in South West Keynsham and in
East Keynsham and these places are expected to be provided via an additional new 210 place
school located on the Keynsham East development site.

Whitchurch Area

Additional school places are required in the Whitchurch planning area as a result of the
proposed new area of housing development in Whitchurch and this will be provided via the
expansion of Whitchurch Primary school by 105 places to become a 315 place school with a
PAN of 45. An additional area of land will be required in order to expand the school and
Developer Contributions in the form of land and capital have been sought.

Rural Area — the Remainder of the Authority

In the rural areas there is generally considered to be greater scope for some existing primary
schools to accommodate growth utilising Developer Contributions to add extra capacity. This is
due to both the lower levels of growth anticipated which is also intended to be spread
throughout various village centres across the area and not concentrated in one place and the
greater potential for extension or expansion of most existing school sites. However some rural
school sites do not lend themselves to expansion as they are on constrained sites and
development in these areas could be an issue. It is not anticipated that any whole new schools
will be required.

Some additional capacity is expected to be required in Timsbury at some point in the future as a
result of new housing development.

2) Impact on Secondary
Somer Valley Area — Midsomer Norton, Radstock, Paulton and Peasedown St John

In the Somer Valley area secondary pupil numbers are increasing as a result of new housing
and it is possible that the combined capacity available within Norton Hill, Somervale and
Writhlington schools could start to be met or exceeded by admissions at some point after 2017
— possibly in 2018. It is possible that some of the future out of catchment pupils on roll at the
schools in this area could be displaced gradually over time as new Year 7 pupils resident in the
Catchment Area apply for a place at their local school, resulting in fewer places being available
for pupils from outside the Catchment Area and sufficient places for pupils within the Catchment
Areas.

The new areas of housing proposed for the Somer Valley Area may require additional
secondary places to be created in the future.

30
Page 432



Bath Area

In the Bath area secondary pupil numbers are projected to gradually increase, although the
capacity available within the seven schools in this area is still likely to be sufficient to meet
current demand if, over time, the future new Year 7 pupils resident in the Catchment Area
gradually fill most of the places that are currently taken up by out of catchment pupils. If it is not
possible to displace the maijority of the future out of catchment pupils in this way, it is possible
that available capacity could start to be met or exceeded at some point after 2017 — possibly in
2018.

The new areas of housing proposed for Bath may require additional secondary places to be
created in the future.

Keynsham Area

In the Keynsham area there is projected to be sufficient secondary capacity available as the
majority of the planned housing development is within the Broadlands Planning Area where
there are projected to be secondary school spaces available in the future. Additional sixth form
places may be required.

Whitchurch Area

As Whitchurch is within the Broadlands planning area, the pupils generated by the new housing
proposed for this area could be accommodated at Broadlands as there is projected to be
sufficient capacity available at this school in the future. Additional sixth form places may be
required.

Rural Area — the Remainder of the Authority

There is also projected to be sufficient secondary capacity in the Rural Area as the planned
development in this area is on a smaller scale and spread across a wide area and thus across
several secondary school planning areas in the Authority. Also it is possible that some of the
future out of catchment pupils at various schools could be displaced gradually over time as new
Year 7 pupils living in the catchment area apply for a place at the school, resulting in fewer
places being available for pupils from outside the catchment area and more to those from within.

Strategy for Provision of New School Places and Options Evaluation Criteria

‘School’ means maintained school, academy or free school. Any changes to existing maintained
schools would be subject to completion of the appropriate statutory processes as necessary.

Criteria have been developed to enable options for the provision of new school places to be
assessed. This will be applied when considering the options for providing additional places
needed as a result of new housing development or underlying population growth (Basic Need).

31
Page 433



New school places can be provided either through expansion alone or expansion and relocation
of existing schools or through the provision of new schools.

When assessing the most appropriate educational solution, issues such as educational
standards, proximity to development site or area of underlying population growth, admission
policies and patterns, balance of faith and non-faith school places will be taken into account.

Where it is identified that the preferred educational solution requires additional land to enable
expansion of an existing school or a site for a relocated and expanded school or a new school,
this will be referred to Planning Policy to test its deliverability.

Educational Strategy

Sufficient school places must be provided so that the Council can meet its statutory obligation to
provide a school place for every child that requires one.

Where possible existing schools should be expanded within their existing site or via the addition
of an adjoining area of land. If this is not possible, expansion and relocation of an existing
school may be considered. If this is not possible, new schools will be required on new sites.

The Council will retain a degree of flexibility when considering the expansion of existing schools
to take account of future trends and the possible need to accommodate additional pupils
generated by increased birth rates and not exclusively generated by new housing
developments.

There must be a degree of flexibility within each school place planning area — not all schools
should be 100% full — to allow for natural annual variations in intakes, families moving house
etc.

All schools, including new and expanded schools are encouraged to be run in accordance with
the Council’s aspiration that schools are ‘community hubs’ in order to achieve:

e Schools that work within the local community and actively encourage those nearby to
attend.

e School buildings that feature a range of services, all of which serve the wider community.
Examples include healthcare; early years provision; advice and information services and
youth provision.

e School buildings that are used to their maximum capacity, such as during evenings,
at weekends, and during all school holidays e.g. through holiday clubs.

Educational Criteria

1. New school places will need to be provided where there is projected to be insufficient
available surplus capacity in surrounding schools within a reasonable distance of a new housing
development or area of underlying population growth (walking distance — 0.5 of a mile
approximately in urban and suburban areas for primary school places and 1.25 miles for
secondary school places) to accommodate pupils generated. Local school places should be
provided to promote community cohesion and reduce length of journey from home to school,

32
Page 434



enabling pupils to walk to school thus helping to promote healthy lifestyles and reducing carbon
emissions as journeys by car are rendered unnecessary.

2. Where possible existing schools should be expanded. Expansion should be on a single site
and not serve to create a split site school. If expansion cannot be within the existing site then
expansion via the addition of an adjoining area of land will be considered. If this is not possible,
expansion and relocation of an existing school may be considered providing this can be
achieved without any negative impact on the local community served by the school in its current
location. If this is not possible, new schools will be required on new sites.

3. If an existing school is to be expanded, where possible it should have good educational
standards with an OFSTED rating of Outstanding or Good.

4. If an existing school is to be expanded, where possible it should be popular with parents and
be admitting pupils at or near its PAN.

5. When considering the expansion of existing schools or the provision of new schools,
preference will be given to those schools which use universal admissions criteria, in order to
facilitate access to the local school.

6. When considering the expansion of existing schools or the provision of new schools, the
balance of faith versus non-faith places within a school place planning area will be taken into
consideration.

7. Where it is identified that existing local schools cannot be expanded then a new school will be
required.

8. New primary schools will be expected to be all through schools (ages 4-11). New secondary
schools will be expected to be secondary schools with a sixth form (ages 11-18).

9. New primary schools would be a minimum size of 210 places. New secondary schools would
be a minimum size of 600 places in Years 7 — 11

Conclusion

Beyond the latest 2014 - 2015 births and resident population data provided by the Health
Service, we cannot predict exactly what will happen to the child population in Bath and North
East Somerset. Numbers could level off, fall dramatically or gradually or continue to rise steeply
or gradually and therefore it is difficult to forecast precisely how many school places will be
required beyond admissions into Reception in 2019 and into Year 7 in 2021.

It is also difficult to predict exactly when pupils expected to be generated by new housing
developments will appear as this depends on when building work commences, how quickly it
progresses, the final number and type of dwellings approved and how quickly the dwellings are
occupied.

The Authority will continue to plan to ensure that a sufficient number of places are provided in
the areas and within the timeframe required and delivered in the most cost effective way

33
Page 435



possible. However this will be challenging as capital funding streams in the form of Basic Need
from the DfE and Developer Contributions from new housing developments are uncertain in the
long term, both in terms of the actual sums involved and when the capital will become available
to the Council. The availability of sufficient land to build on is also an important factor that will
need to be addressed.

Glossary

Academies

Publicly funded independent schools for pupils of all abilities that operate outside of Local
Authority control with funding provided directly from central government. The Governing Body
employs the staff and controls pupil admissions to the school. Some academies have sponsors
such as businesses, universities, other schools, faith groups or voluntary groups. All new
academies that open will be classed as Free Schools.

Community Schools
State maintained schools which are wholly funded by the Local Authority. The Local Authority
employs the staff and controls pupil admissions to the school.

Federated Schools

Two or more schools that agree to work together to raise standards. Leadership arrangements
are shared by more than one school via an Executive Headteacher. A Hard Governance
Federation is a statutory relationship in which the schools agree to have a single governing
body, integrated service provision, integrated management and joint budgetary decisions. There
are various ‘softer’ variations of such federations in which the joint working is less formalised but
still collaborative. Federations often involve high performing schools supporting lower
performing schools or are used as a way to improve the sustainability of small and rural schools.

Foundation Schools
State maintained schools where the Governing Body employs the staff and controls pupil
admissions to the school.

Free Schools

A form of academy, they are publicly funded independent schools for pupils of all abilities that
operate outside of Local Authority control with funding provided directly from central
government. The Governing Body employs the staff and controls pupil admissions to the school.
Free schools can be set up by groups of parents, teachers, businesses, charities, trusts,
universities, independent schools, community groups, faith and voluntary groups. All new
academies that open will be classed as Free Schools.

Studio Schools

Small schools of around 300 all ability pupils aged 14-19 years. Studio Schools teach the
national curriculum through interdisciplinary, enterprise-themed projects and offer a range of
academic and vocational qualifications. They have a very different style and ethos to most
existing schools, with a much stronger emphasis on practical work and enterprise.

34
Page 436



Trust Schools

Foundation schools that have acquired a charitable foundation (or trust) to support the school
and enable it to work with external partners to bring expertise and wider knowledge to the
school Trust schools can be single schools or groups of schools - a shared trust - working within
one overarching trust.

Voluntary Aided Schools

State maintained schools set up and owned by a voluntary body — usually a church body - but
largely financed by the Local Authority. The Governing Body employs the staff and controls
pupil admissions to the school.

Voluntary Controlled Schools

State maintained schools set up by a voluntary body — usually a church body and generally
Church of England — and wholly funded by the Local Authority. The Local Authority employs the
staff and controls pupil admissions to the school.

35
Page 437



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 15

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING | Cabinet

EXECUTIVE
FORWARD PLAN
4 May 2016 REFERENCE:
MEETIN

E 2851

97/101 Walcot St. Supplementary Report to identify more fully the
TITLE: social objectives which are to be delivered by Genesis from these
premises in favour of the community

WARD: Walcot

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM/

List of attachments to this report:

Appendix 1: E2784 Report to Cabinet 97/101 Walcot St

Appendix 2: Social Objects to be delivered by Genesis Trust as a result of the
Community Asset Transfer

1 THE ISSUE

1.1 At the meeting on 9 September 2015 the Cabinet resolved (Appendix 1. E2784)
to request that a further report be brought back to Cabinet within the following 4
months to consider and approve that the provisions in 5.7 had been satisfied.

1.2 The provisions in 5.7 are set out in full in this report and in summary the
requirement is to identify more fully the social objectives which are to be
delivered from these premises in favour of the community.

1.3 This is the first available Cabinet meeting for this report to be made
2 RECOMMENDATION

2.1 To reconfirm authority, first approved in the Single Member Decision E2741
dated 11th February 2015, that the Corporate Property Officer be authorised to
enter into an agreement for lease leading to grant of a lease based on the
agreed heads of terms. The structure of the transaction has been amended
however and the contract will be a direct lease to commence from date of
exchange.

Printed on recycled paper Page 439



2.2 To note that:

(1) Assessment work undertaken has demonstrated that the value of services as
a result of the Community Asset Transfer if externally procured is at least
equal to or greater than the value of the rent abatement (£20,000pa)

(2) A separate cost/benefit analysis has demonstrated a clear overall benefit to
the public purse from the asset transfer project

2.3 To adopt and agree the Social Objects(Appendix 2) to be delivered as a result of
the Community Asset Transfer and to note the arrangements set out in
paragraph 5.8 for monitoring and review

2.4 To note the range of uses that are considered inappropriate for the environment
as stated in para 3 of the Social Objects.

3 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE)

3.1 These were set out in full in the previous report E2784 and have not altered for
the proposed transaction to grant the lease to Genesis Trust.

3.2 There are no additional resource implications resulting from this current report.
4 STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS AND BASIS FOR PROPOSAL

4.1 These were set out in full in the previous report E2784 and have not altered for
the proposed transaction to grant the lease to Genesis Trust.

4.2 There are no additional considerations resulting from this current report
5 THE REPORT

5.1 Cabinet previously requested that further work take place with Genesis Trust
to:

e More fully identify the social objectives which are to be delivered from
these premises in favour of the community

e Formally agree and record these social objectives to be delivered by
Genesis Trust

e Undertake an assessment to ensure that the value of those services if
externally procured is at least equal to or greater than the value of the rent
abatement and works to the building

o The proposal is to abate the rent to nil during the entire term of the
lease. The estimated rental value of the property, assuming the
building is in good repair, is £21,000 pa. Genesis will be committed
to investing a minimum of £60,000 to carry out a scheme of
improvements, subject to approval by the Council. The value of
those works can be rentalised and equates to a deduction of £4,000
pa. Therefore the net revenue foregone is £17,000 pa.

o The Council are committing £100,000 to enable the refurbishment
scheme of 97/101 Walcot St. If this sum is decapitalised over the 99

Printed on recycled paper Page 440



year term of the lease this would equate to an annual equivalent of
roughly £1,000 per annum

o The capital input of £100,000 was approved and included in the
2014/15 Corporate Capital Estate Planned Maintenance cost plan
and this has been carried forward into 2016/17.

o The total annual revenue amount of the rent foregone together with
the decapitalised capital works delivered by the Council equates to
approximately £18,000 per annum.

o The rent shown in the draft lease is £18,000pa.

The analysis was carried out at a slightly higher baseline rent of
£20,000pa.

¢ Identify specific uses which should not be carried out from the premises
which otherwise form part of Genesis Trust’s activities:

o The draft lease limits the Use in accordance with the aims and
purposes set out in the charitable objects of, and in accordance
with, the Memorandum and Articles of Association of Genesis Trust
Bath. The statement of objects and usage will be annexed to the
lease and may be varied from time to time to provide for similar
charitable aims and purposes

5.2 The main aim of this Community Asset Transfer is to deliver significant
improvements in the level of service offered by the Genesis Trust and this in
turn will deliver measurable outcomes for vulnerable people in Bath and North
East Somerset. In summary, the project will do this through:

e The expansion of the Genesis Life Skills project, which will see a doubling
of the number of hours per week provided by Life Skills Facilitators and
additional volunteer support. In addition, a new Genesis “Personal
Fulfillment Programme” will see those in crisis gain access to a wide range
of skills and activities with the support of a new role of Life Skills Navigator

e Establishing a new ‘social enterprise’ project named ‘Acacia’, providing
work experience. This will be a high quality retail outlet for upcycled
furniture, home crafts and appropriate bought-in goods. Acacia will
provide work placements for those who are long-term unemployed. An
Employment Navigator, another new role, will support trainees into
employment. Genesis will work in partnership with Bath College to offer
apprenticeships at Acacia and the Furniture Project, in retail, customer
service and business administration.

e Enabling co-location of the 2 projects — Life Skills and Acacia. This will
improve accessibility between the two schemes so help can be tailored to
those who need it most and progression between the schemes supported.

5.3 Detailed discussions have taken place between the Council and the Genesis to
identify how the Community Asset Transfer and associated projects summarised
in 5.2 above will deliver key social objectives. These social objectives are set out

Printed on recycled paper Page 441



in detail in Appendix 2 and will be used to monitor and assess delivery of the
Community Asset Transfer, under the following headings:

Objective One: Lever in new resources. New investment as a result of the project
includes:

e £1m of capital funding from the Genesis Trust into the building
e Investment from Genesis Trust in new staffing totalling £189,378pa;

e Increased volunteer time to help vulnerable people gain the skills they need. The
project will lead to an estimated additional 5,800 volunteers hours.

Objective Two: Produce defined outputs so that change and improvement can be
measured. The project will see 117 people undertake work placements - 67 at Acacia and
50 at the Furniture Project - an increase of 77. All 117 people on work placements will
complete certificated training opportunities and enhance their C.Vs. Based on similar
external projects, as referred to in 5.5 below, a comparable unit cost for such a project is
£600 per person per year, meaning that the costs if externally procured of this project
would be in the region of £46,000 which compares well with the base £20,000 “rent
abated” figure being tested.

Objective Three: Improved outcomes for people benefiting from the projects, particularly
through helping people into work. These outcomes have a significant impact on reducing
the longer-term cost of public services through focusing help on those most in need to gain
skills and move nearer to the labour market. This reduces the overall burden on the public
purse across a range of agencies, including health services and central government
departments such as DWP. The Treasury and DWP place a cash “value” on the benefits of
helping people back into work which can be used to assess this project. This identifies a
direct annual “fiscal” saving to the DWP and Treasury of £9800 for Jobseekers who move
into work. In addition, there is also an estimated reduction of a third in annual health
service costs as a result of people being in employment . Through apprenticeships,
community work placements and other trainee placements, this scheme aims to directly
help 21 long-term unemployed people back into work per annum, a figure based on
current experience at the Furniture Project. Using the JSA figures above, this would lead
to a total full-year fiscal saving of £205,000 per annum to the DWP and £11,886 to the
NHS. These savings - along with the wider social and economic benefits of helping people
back into work - help identify a “total public value” of the project which can then be
compared to cost (or, in this case, rent abated).

5.4 As well as clarifying the social objectives to be delivered, the Council has also
analysed whether the value of services if externally procured is equal to or
greater than the rental value abated (which is calculated at £20kpa). The
Council has examined comparable services which it has externally procured to
help inform this assessment. In particular it has made comparisons with
schemes it has funded to help vulnerable groups to move closer to the labour
market. These schemes have objectives comparable to this project including
increasing participation in accredited learning and training, increasing work-
related activity and/or entering sustainable employment. Based on these
comparisons, advice received is that the rent abated is deemed good value for
the outputs identified

Printed on recycled paper Page 442



5.5 As highlighted above, an initial Cost Benefit Analysis of the Community Asset
Transfer has been undertaken, in order to assess the overall costs and benefits
to the “public purse” of the project. This has used the New Economy Cost
Benefit Calculator, which in turn draws on data from HM Treasury to assess the
impacts on the overall fiscal position of public services of a range of projects
and indicators, as well as identifying wider public benefits. The model makes
provision for a wide range of factors and assumptions to be included, such as:

e The initial cost of the investment as well as future costs and discount rates
applied

e The overall impact of projects on key outcomes, including potential “drop-
off” rates and other factors

e Savings made to public services in the form of costs foregone and the
impact of specific interventions

5.6 The model, based on conservative planning assumptions relating to employment
outcomes from the project, currently shows a positive “Net Present Value” (NPV)
of the scheme over the assessed twenty five year period. An initial sensitivity
analysis indicates a positive NPV across a range of assumptions. Due to the
nature of the scheme and its focus on employment support for those furthest
away from the labour market, the model identifies that the majority of benefits
accrue to the public purse though the DWP, with some benefits also accruing to
health services.

5.7 The Council has worked with Genesis to identify arrangements for monitoring
and assessing delivery against the Social Objects. This will entail an annual
review of objectives, to be made publicly available. As part of this review,
amendments to the next year’s indicators will be agreed and the cost/benefit
analysis refreshed in the light of that year’s data.

5.8 There is also significant potential to strengthen the links between the work of the
Genesis Trust and other partners contributing to tackling unemployment.

5.9 Included in the Social Objects are uses which are considered inappropriate for
the site. These will be specifically excluded and set out as prohibitions in the
lease.

- Soup Run
- Residential use for clients

6 RATIONALE

6.1 Cabinet requested that further information be gathered to assess the value of the
community benefits gained by the work of Genesis Trust

6.2 The report has set out an analysis of the community benefits compared to the
rental value abated.

7 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

7.1 None

Printed on recycled paper Page 443



8 CONSULTATION

8.1 Council Economic Development team

9 RISK MANAGEMENT

9.1 Arisk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been
undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision making risk management

guidance.

Contact person

Richard Long x7075 (or Keith McCombie x7976)

Background
papers

None

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an alternative

format

APPENDIX

Social objectives to be delivered by Genesis Trust as a result of the

Community Asset Transfer

A) OBJECTIVE- LEVERING- IN ADDITIONAL RESOURCES

Benefits arising from the Community Asset Transfer

Roles New Resources per New Resources per annum (£)
annum (Hours)

Life Skills Facilitators | 2080 hours £22,344

Life Skills Navigator | 1950 hours £20,948

Life Skills Volunteers | 559 £4,612 (measured at living wage)

Acacia Retail Staff 3900 hours £43,911

Acacia Workshop 3120 hours £32,857

Printed on recycled paper

Page 444




staff

Employment 1950 hours £20,948

Navigator

Acacia Volunteers 5304 hours £43,758 (measured at living wage)
Total £189, 378

B) OBJECTIVE- DELIVERING MEASURABLE OUTPUTS

Life Skills

Additional outputs per annum

Increase in number of Life Skills clients

181 clients

Increase in number of sessions

442 sessions

Increase in activity hours 5587 hours
Increase in number of attendances 2527 attendances
Increasing clients accessing work 37 clients

placement

Acacia and Furniture Project

Additional outputs per annum

(people)

Apprenticeships undertaken 3

Extra work placements offered 77 (67 at Acacia & 10 at the Furniture
Project)

Acacia trainees completing at least 1 67

certificated course

Furniture Project trainees completing at | 40

least 1 certificated course

C) OBJECTIVE- DELIVER BETTER OUTCOMES

Additional outcomes per
annum (people)

Fiscal benefit (including improved health outcomes) of | 21

moving people off benefits and into work

Increase in people gaining NVQ Level 2

2

Improved mental
esteem)

health (increased confidence/self | 71

Printed on recycled paper

Page 445




This page is intentionally left blank



Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING/ | Cabinet
DECISION
MAKER:

EXECUTIVE
MEETING/ | 9 September 2015 FORWARD PLAN
DECISION REFERENCE:
DATE: E 2784
TITLE: 97-101 Walcot Street
WARD: Walcot

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:

All attachments to this report are available on Council’s website under 9" September
2015 meeting of the Cabinet.

1 THEISSUE

1.1 To provide an update to cabinet on the proposed Community Asset Transfer of
the above premises and in particular note work to establish agreed social
objectives to be delivered by the proposed occupier as part of the transfer terms.

2 RECOMMENDATION

Cabinet is requested to:

2.1 Note that the transfer was approved under the Community Asset Transfer policy
by the previous Administration

2.2 Note the transfer facilitated the release of 1-3 James Street West for
development generating both a capital and revenue income.

2.3 Note the community benefits as currently assessed under the transfer in
Appendix 3

2.4 Note the range of uses that are considered inappropriate for the environment
stated in Appendix 3

2.5 Note that the transfer is subject to Genesis obtaining planning permission
3 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE)

3.1 This transaction facilitates the disposal of 1-3 James Street West which is due to
generate the capital receipt and annual rental income as set out in Appendix 1.

Printed on recycled paper Page 447



3.2 The Council are committing £100,000 to enable the refurbishment scheme of
97/101 Walcot St. If this sum is decapitalised over the 99 year term of the lease
this would equate to an annual equivalent of roughly £6,500 per annum

3.3 The proposal is to abate the rent to nil during the entire term of the lease. The
estimated rental value of the property, assuming the building is in good repair, is
£21,000 pa. Genesis will be committed to investing a minimum of £60,000 to carry
out a scheme of improvements subject to approval by the Council. The value of
those works can be rentalised and equates to a deduction of £4,000 pa. Therefore
the net revenue forgone is £17,000 pa.

3.4 The capital input of £100,000 was approved and included in the 2014/15
Corporate Capital Estate Planned Maintenance cost plan and this has been
carried forward into 2015/16.

3.5 The total annual revenue amount of the rent forgone together with the
decapitalised capital works delivered by the Council is approximately £23,500 per
annum, equating to a theoretical capital value of the leasehold interest at
£260,000.

3.6 It will be necessary to demonstrate that the value of the services to be delivered
by Genesis from these premises is equal to or greater than the annual revenue
forgone.

4 STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS AND BASIS FOR PROPOSAL

4.1 Under s123 of the Local Government Act 1972, any disposal by the Council of
an asset in excess of 7 years (including leasehold interests) must obtain “best
consideration”, unless the General Disposal Consent (England) 2003 can be
applied or a specific consent is obtained.

4.2 The General Consent allows specified circumstances where the consent can be
applied:

a) the local authority considers that the purpose for which the land is to be
disposed is likely to contribute to the achievement of any one or more of the
following objects in respect of the whole or any part of its area, or of all or any
persons resident or present in its area;

i) the promotion or improvement of economic well-being;
i) the promotion or improvement of social well-being;
iii) the promotion or improvement of environmental well-being;

and

b) the difference between the unrestricted value of the land to be disposed of
and the consideration for the disposal does not exceed £2,000,000 (two
million pounds).

4.3 The RICS is the governing body for Chartered Surveyors and they have set out
guidance specifically to deal with this issue which should be followed unless
there are particular circumstances that mean that it is not appropriate. It
essentially puts in place an audit trail so that the decision to dispose at less than
market value is demonstrably robust. It is, therefore, considered that this is an
appropriate model for sign off of the individual transactions which should be

Printed on recycled paper Page 448



undertaken in liaison with the Section 151 Officer. In summary the guidance
requires:

e a full valuation exercise is undertaken which understands the maximum
theoretical Market Value for the asset to be transferred.

e calculation of the reduced values that apply because of any restrictions that
the Council applies relating to things such as use, alienation, clawback, etc.

e the value added to the Council through the outcomes of the transfer has
been assessed and found to be not less than the difference between market
value and the actual price to be paid.

4.4 The disposal is not considered to constitute State Aid.
5 THE REPORT

5.1 Until recently Genesis occupied premises at 1-3 James Street West. This was
the latest of several temporary addresses occupied by Genesis.

5.2 1-3 James St West is a development opportunity and the Council required
vacant possession of the property in order to facilitate a disposal for its re-
development in return for a capital receipt and ongoing revenue income which
will be derived by taking back the ground floor accommodation within the
completed development.

5.3 Under a Joint Single Member Decision E2741 (Appendix 2) by the then Cabinet
Member for Community Resources and the Leader of the Council, approval was
granted to the Chief Property Officer to enter into negotiation to grant a lease of
premises at 97-101 Walcot Street to the Genesis Trust under the Community
Asset Transfer policy.

5.4 The proposed Lease and Building Agreement are currently under negotiation
and the transaction is subject to the Genesis Trust obtaining planning
permission for the works and proposed use of the premises.

5.5 Whilst the basis for the transaction at less than market value has been properly
set out and recorded as part of the single member decision process under the
previous administration, there remains the opportunity to further improve the
clarity around not only the social objectives which are to be delivered in favour
of the community through this transfer but also identify the range of uses that
are considered inappropriate for the particular environment within which the
premises are located. This will assist in addressing and reducing concerns now
being expressed within the local community.

5.6 Key Facts about Genesis Trust Bath and a statement of their social objectives
including limitations on future use of the premises are set out in Appendix 3 and
will form the basis for the assessment required in 5.7 below.

5.7 Clir Gerrish, Cabinet member for Finance and Efficiency has accordingly
requested that further work be undertaken with Genesis Trust to:

e More fully identify the social objectives which are to be delivered from these
premises in favour of the community

Printed on recycled paper Page 449



o formally agree and record these social objectives to be delivered by
Genesis Trust

e Undertake an assessment to ensure that the value of those services if
externally procured is equal to or greater than the value of the rent
abatement and works to the building which the Council would potentially
be funding.

¢ identify specific uses which should not be carried out from the premises
which otherwise form part of Genesis Trust’s activities.

5.8 It is recommended a further report is brought back to cabinet within the next 4
months to consider and approve that the provisions in 5.7 have been satisfied.

6 RATIONALE

6.1 At its meeting of 19th February 2013 Council resolved to note the approach to
Community Assets as set out and support the progression of transfers to the
organisations identified in the Annexe. It was agreed, as set out at Appendix 2 -
Annexe 6 to the February 2013 Council report, that a number of potential
organisations be identified to be taken forward and Genesis Trust was one of
those listed.

6.2 The application of this policy is in line with guidance to Local Authorities on
asset transfers. The idea is to help secure community benefits in line with
Council priorities and objectives by transferring property at a peppercorn rental,
in exchange for arrangements designed to secure community benefits in line
with Council objectives.

6.3 The majority of the quick wins were considered in a joint Single Member
Decision - E2625 Community Asset Transfer - Granting Long Leases,
(Appendix 4) which confirmed the disposal of the assets on long lease at a
peppercorn, but the Genesis Trust proposal was excluded because discussions
were not sufficiently advanced.

6.4 As there are no current delegations in place to officers it is necessary to give
specific authority to enter into this transaction. The proposals give a structure
which can demonstrate the audit trail that led to the grant of a leasehold
disposal at less than market value.

6.5 The grant of a lease to Genesis will enable the realisation of the capital receipt
from the sale of premises at 1-3 James St West.

7 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

7.1 None. This proposal is in accordance with the approved policy of community
asset transfers in relation to one of the subject organisations identified as a
“Quick Win”

8 CONSULTATION

8.1 Finance Team; Section 151 Officer; Strategic Director - Resources; Monitoring
Officer.

Printed on recycled paper Page 450



The report has been circulated to the above consultees and any comments or
amendments incorporated in to the final document.

9 RISK MANAGEMENT

9.1 Arisk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been
undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision making risk management
guidance.

Contact person Richard Long — 01225 477075

Background
papers

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an alternative
format

Printed on recycled paper Page 451



This page is intentionally left blank



Genesis Trust Bath

1 Objects

As stated in the Charity’s Memorandum of Association, the Charity’s Objects are, for the
public benefit:-

3.1 the relief of poverty amongst homeless and destitute persons and the relief of
sickness, hardship and distress of people in need in particular (but not limited to) those
living in Bath and the surrounding areas; and

3.2 to promote social inclusion for the public benefit by preventing people from
becoming socially excluded, relieving the needs of those people who are socially
excluded and assisting them to integrate into society in particular (but not limited) to
those living in Bath and the surrounding areas.

For the purpose of Article 3.2 ‘socially excluded’” means being excluded from society, or
parts of society, as a result of one of more of the following factors: unemployment;
financial hardship; youth or old age; ill health (physical or mental); substance abuse or
dependency including alcohol and drugs; discrimination on the grounds of sex, race,
disability, ethnic origin, religion, belief, creed, sexual orientation or gender re-
assignment; poor educational or skills attainment; relationship and family breakdown;
poor housing (that is housing that does not meet basic habitable standards; crime
(either as a victim of crime or as an offender rehabilitating into society).

2 Usage of 97-101 Walcot Street

The initial usage will be as follows...

A retail shop selling mainly refurbished furniture and items made by our clients. The
shop will be staffed by clients as part of their Personal Programmes, supported by staff
and volunteers. The atmosphere of the shop will be in sympathy with the eclectic and

artistic nature of Walcot Street, and will be welcoming to customers and visitors.

A workshop where the refurbishment and production will be undertaken, staffed by
clients and employees.

A hall where items will be made for sale, and where training courses and other activities
will be held as part of the Personal Programmes for clients.

A counseling room for one-to-one support.

Page 453



A meeting and training room for general meetings and client support.
A domestic kitchen for use by people in the building and for teaching cookery.
An office for the staff of the charity.

Disabled access and toilets.

3 Future usage
In the future, the usage of the building will be consistent with the Objects of the charity,
but the actual activities are bound to develop over a period of time to suit the needs of

our clients.

We will never use the building either for a soup run or for accommodation for our
clients.

Genesis Trust
23 July 2015

Page 454



	Agenda
	8 Minutes of Previous Cabinet Meeting
	10 Single Member Cabinet Decisions Taken since Previous Cabinet Meeting
	12 Receipt of information requested by Council on the Park & Ride/East of Bath Transport issues
	Scrutiny Inquiry Day
	LDF report to Cabinet
	Appendix 1 LDF SG Park and Ride Meeting 1
	Appendix 1 LDF SG Park and Ride Meeting 2
	Appendix 1 LDF SG Park and Ride Meeting 3
	Appendix 1 LDF SG Park and Ride Meeting 4
	Appendix 2 GreenBelt
	Appendix 2 AONB
	Appendix 2 FloodZones
	Appendix 2 WHSsetting
	Appendix 3 Meadows Community Alliance Report
	Appendix 4 Table and Plan of Sites - final table

	13 Youth Justice Plan
	E2857z YOUTH JUSTICE PLAN 2016-17

	14 Primary and Secondary School Organisation Plan 2015 - 2019
	E2840z SOP 2015-2019 and Beyond

	15 97/101 Walcot St : Genesis Trust
	E2851z  9th Sep 2015 Report to Cabinet
	E2851z Social Objects of Genesis Trust.




